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COMPANY PROFILE
NEEIT

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd. (1922.HK) is a leading property
management service provider in Nanjing and the Jiangsu Province
in the PRC. The Group ranked 16th and 2nd among China's Top
100 Property Management Companies and the Jiangsu Province's
Top 50 Property Management Companies in 2023, respectively,
and ranking the Tst in the Nanjing Property Management Industry
Credit Handbook Directory in the three consecutive years before.

The Group was established in 1997. Throughout the past 26 years of
development, the Group has always adhered to its business motto of
"operation is the key, reputation comes first” for its business operation.
Leveraging on the high quality services and sound management
system the Group possesses and the “Living+" and "Industry+" service
model it adopts, the Group has integrated resources to provide owners
and customers with professional, diversified and caring property
management services. Not only could this fulfil the owners' pursuit of a
better life, but there would also be an increase in the value of the owners'
immovable assets, as well as building strong support for non-residential
customers such that they could focus on their respective core business.

The Group mainly provides diversified property management
services and value-added services. The Group's business covers
a wide spectrum of properties, including residential properties
and non-residential properties covering government facilities,
financial institutions, property sales offices, medical institutions,
commercial complex, parks, transportation facilities, industrial parks,
mixed-use properties, education institutions and office buildings.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's business covers 25 cities in the
PRC, of which 20 cities are in the Yangtze River Delta Megalopolis.
The Group managed 1,057 properties, including 640 residential
properties and 417 non-residential properties, and served over 600,000
households covering over 1.9 million people as at 31 December 2023.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
AREH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

LI Chunling
HUANG Xuemei

Non-executive Directors

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)

HUANG Qingping

YAO Ning (appointed with effect from 24 August 2023)
PAN Xiaohu (appointed with effect from 24 August 2023)
MA Baohua (resigned with effect from 23 November 2023)
ZHU Li (resigned with effect from 23 November 2023)

Independent non-executive Directors

CHOW Siu Hang
LI Yougen
MAO Ning

AUDIT COMMITTEE

CHOW Siu Hang (Chairman)
MAO Ning
XIE Chenguang

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

MAOQ Ning (Chairman)
XIE Chenguang
LI Yougen

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)
MAO Ning
LI Yougen

REGISTERED OFFICE

Sertus Chambers, Governors Square
Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue
P.0. Box 2547

Grand Cayman, KY1-1104

Cayman Islands

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
IN THE PRC

5" Floor, Block AYincheng Plaza
289 Jiangdong Avenue North
Nanjing, Jiangsu Province

The PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Suite 2903, 29/F

China Resources Building

26 Harbour Road

Wanchai

Hong Kong

(with effect from 24 August 2023)
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Sertus Chambers, Governors Square

Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay Avenue

P.0. Box 2547
Grand Cayman, KY1-1104
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR

Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited
Room 2103B, 21/F.

148 Electric Road

North Point

Hong Kong

AUDITOR

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
27/F, One Taikoo Place

979 King's Road

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISER

P.C. Woo & Co.

12" Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

COMPANY SECRETARY
TSANG Qi Yin

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

HUANG Xuemei
TSANG 0i Yin

PRINCIPAL BANKS

Industrialand Commercial Bank of China (Asia) Limited
Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China, Chengxi Branch

COMPANY'S INVESTOR RELATIONS DEPARTMENT

Email: ir@yincheng.hk
Fax: (852) 3107 0898

COMPANY'S WEBSITE

www.yinchenglife.hk

LISTING INFORMATION
Equity Securities

The Shares are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1922).

Financial Calendar
Annual results announcement: Wednesday, 27 March 2024

Annual General Meeting: Tuesday, 18 June 2024
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

EF Pt

PERFORMANCE MAINTAINED AT A STABLE GROWTH

FERERENR

Revenue

1,973.2:

increased by 1 5 2
R ; ; . %

2019-2023 CAGR 29.8%
201922023 F B E18 R 3K29.8%

Gross profit margin

" 15.6.

Gross profit

E£7

308.0-

increased by 1 8 8
#R ; ; . %

2019-2023 CAGR 28.8%
201922023 F 8 518 K 328.8%

Profit margin

A

6.3

Profit for the year
FRiEF

2 | BET
increased by 9 7
R ; ; af %

2019-2023 CAGR 38.9%
20192023 F E SR RZEK38.9%

Earnings per Share

SR W

0.44 -

THE TWO MAIN BUSINESSES HAVE GROWN SUSTAINABLY

MAEEXFHIFELR

25.9q
MimonEFES;E
Value-added
services
BERE gltlgl{evenue
1 973 2 12.3%
, M\LUomfl.%ﬁ 1 536.7
M\LﬂonEE?ﬁ
Property
management
services
MEBERE

778.5

Million =5 & 7T

Non-residential
properties

ERERSYES

Property management
services

MEEERE

1,536.7

Million B & 7T

758.2

MillionEH & 7T

Residential
properties

FEME

The revenue contribution from non-residential properties, exceeded
that from residential properties.

FEEMENRETRBBEEME-

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023



RESULTS HIGHLIGHTS

et
THE NUMBER OF MANAGED PROJECTS CONTINUES TO INCREASE
EERREHHERERHA
Managed properties Increased by Residential Properties Non-residential
#EEH FILEE & FEEE Properties
EISER )=

1,057- 9. 640 417 :

OPERATING INDICATORS WERE MAINTAINED AT A HIGH INDUSTRY LEVEL
BERERRERTESKE

Residential Property Pre-collection rate Non-residential Property
management fee collection rate LV ES Management fee collection rate
TEMEERBEWRE FFEEMEEEERIRE

g 0% 47 % g 3°/o
Comprehensive management fee Customer Satisfaction rate Renewal rate
clearance rate ERREE mOx
BEERSBERE

51.. 89. 90..
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY
RS TR

TABLE 1: COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE
"ig— . REaRR

For the year ended 31 December (audited)
BE12ANHILEE (EER)

RMB'000 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
AREBTT 2023F 20224 20215 20204 20195
Revenue WA 1,973,200 1,712,934 1,351,329 962,017 695,765
Growth rate WRX 15.2% 26.8% 40.5% 38.3% 48.8%
Gross profit £ 308,049 259,354 219,246 162,385 111,882
Growth rate BRE 18.8% 18.3% 35.0% 45.1% 64.7%
Profit for the period/year R,/ E R 123,556 112,603 94,798 70,215 33,227
Growth rate BRE 9.7% 18.8% 35.0% 111.3% 22.7%
Profit attributable to the parent SYNGIE 2Nyl 116,819 106,734 88,694 67,286 33,121
Growth rate WRX 9.6% 20.3% 31.8% 103.2% 21.2%
Gross profit margin ERE 15.6% 15.1% 16.2% 16.9% 16.1%
Net profit margin P P 6.3% 6.6% 7.0% 7.3% 4.8%
Core net profit* AR 124,784 113,573 97,798 N/ATER 45,700
Core net profit margin* TZILAR 2 6.3% 6.6% 72%  N/ATER 6.6%
EBITDA ERIESHETE 209,000 189,320 163,326 122,647 65,764
Earnings per share (RMB) SREHN AEK) 0.44 0.40 033 0.25 0.16
* Before deduction of listing expenses or management fee arising from share incentives
* AR LR SR E BN EEER
EBITDA= Earnings before tax + financial expenses + depreciation and amortisation
BEMITER RIS = AR EH+7 75 B B+ 8 B i 8
TABLE 2: RESULTS BY SEGMENTS
RIEZ  DEbEE

For the year ended 31 December (audited)

HE12B31ALEE (TB)

RMB'000 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
AREBFT 2025 20215 20205 20195
Revenue from property management services 1 BIZIRFURA 1,536,723 1,368,638 1,082,123 771,917 553,091
Growth rate ER¥ 12.3% 26.5% 40.2% 39.6% 50.4%
Revenue from value-added services IBERBWA 428,362 340,328 268,760 189,830 142,674
Growth rate WRE 25.9% 26.6% 41.6% 33.1% 42.6%
Gross profit from property management services %)% & 2R ER 155,257 128,678 107,797 82,056 54,175
Gross profit margin ER= 10.1% 9.4% 10.0% 10.6% 9.8%
Gross profit from value-added service EERBER 145,472 126,708 111,003 80,059 57,707
Gross profit margin EH=E 34.0% 37.2% 41.3% 42.2% 40.4%

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.

Annual Report 2023



TABLE 3: SUMMARY OF BALANCE SHEET
xE=  BEERRREE

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY

HE12A3ALEE BER)

MBREGRE

For the year ended 31 December (audited)

RMB'000 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARET T 2023 20206 20015 2020 20195
Trade receivables BH A 394,732 342,083 231,037 127,836 70,761
Total current assets REEERE 1,146,686 1,024,671 954,128 861,873 637,052
Total assets BEEE 1,463,367 1264769 1,135,361 981,052 694,711
Contract liabilities alaR 392,218 338,194 295,835 233,982 193,489
Trade and other payables, B o REMERTIE

deposits received and accruals BlhzeRETER 400,108 363,387 291,516 218,864 276,521
Interest-bearing bank and HERTK

other borrowings HAhfEm 64,814 118,546 209,000 280,000 50,000
Total liabilities BERE 966,833 879,793 862,425 785,481 572,909
Net assets BEFE 496,534 364,976 272,936 195,571 121,802
Financial ratios g duE
Return on equity(ROE) [ NEEES 28.1% 35.3% 40.5% 44.2% 34.1%
Excluding the impact of listing expenses Vi ¥l 4 46.9%
Current ratio BN 1.2x 1.2 1.1x 1.1x 1.1x
Average turnover days of trade receivables Z 3 EWFIBTIIBERHU 61.2 61.1 485 377 33.1
Average turnover days of trade payables B S EFIEFHEERH 19.9 15.1 1 7.9 6.4
Interest coverage ratio FEBELE 38.0 25.9 13.9x 11.4x 20.9x
TABLE 4: SUMMARY OF CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RO . RERERBE

For the year ended 31 December (audited)
BHE1ANALEE BER)

RMB'000 2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
ARBTT 2023F 20225 20214 20205 20195
Net cash generated from R EBMEREMPE

operating activities 199,461 38,562 120,358 68,000 105,781
Net cash (used)/generated from REEE i)/

investing activities ARy e 3493 (173722) (59,315)  (3,000,960) 71318
Net cash (used)/generated from RMEEH (FTA) /

financing activities S REMEE (61,568) (110,913) (89,827) 352,056 149,352
Net (decrease)/increase ReERREEEY (L) /

in cash and cash equivalents 1S5 141,386 (246,073) (28,784) 119,094 326,451
Cash and cash equivalents FRRERFEEEY

atend of year 433 444 292,058 538,131 566,915 447819

SR SERRTE A RAT
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS SUMMARY
MBREHEE

TABLE 5: BREAKDOWN OF PROPERTY MANAGEMENT SERVICES
RBE  YEEERTEHM

For the year ended 31 December (audited)

HEN2ANALEE (BER)
2022
2022
RMB'000 %
AREFT
By property types YEERES
Residential properties FEYE 758,187 49.3% 654,209 47.8%
Non-residential properties FHEEME 718,536 50.7% 714,429 52.2%
By geographic region hEEEE S
Nanjing MR 1,085,801 70.7% 988,590 72.2%
Districts outside Nanjing ARMUIME 450,922 29.3% 380,048 27.8%
By project sources RIEEREE S
From independent third parties REBUE=F 1,505,479 98.0% 1,249,798 91.3%
From Yincheng Group REFBEER 31,244 2.0% 118,840 8.7%
TABLE 6: SUMMARY OF BUSINESS DATA
RN EBEESHEE
As at 31 December
128318
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
20235 20224 20215 20204 20195
Number of managed properties EEEEYE 1,057 974 837 369 239
Growth rate HRE 8.5% 16.4% 126.8% 54.4% 47.5%
Customer satisfaction rate” ZEREE" 89.0% 90.0% 88.0% 86.0% 84.0%
Renewal rate Buyx 90.0% 95.0% 93.0% 94.1% 90.4%
Collection rate of residential properties EEMENEE 90.0% 90.0% 91.0% 91.3% 91.1%
Pre-collection rate of residential properties* (T E ¥ FE# =+ 41.0% 44.1% 41.1% 39.2% 38.1%
Collection rate of non-residential properties JE{FE4IERFE 93.0% 95.0% 93.0% 93.0% 95.0%

Mana ement fee pre-collected this year/ management fee receivable for the year after
kot e et

Accordlng to Beijing Saiwei Consulting CO., Ltd.

RIBEIEREIEARDERAT

> > * %

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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The 16th among the China Top 100 Property
Management Companies in 2023

2023P B AR TS B R 611

Huiren HengAn, a subsidiary of the company, ranked
94th among the China Top 100 Property Management
Companiesin 2023
EET{ET:'TELQLF%%)\ZEZOZBEP%%HE?%E?%*%%
BI4fI

2023 China Leading Property Management Companies
in terms of Marketisation of Business*

2023 E X EBIBTEMHBICEERTEE

The 2nd among the 2022 Top 50 Property
Management Industry in Integrated Strength in

Jiangsu Province
002FE IR EMERBITESGE DR 08E

FIEEBEBAI

The 2nd among the credit ranking of Nanjing Property
Management Industry in 2022
022FEMRTYEEETEERLEC

40 projects under management were assessed as
provincial demonstration property management
projects

LOEEEREET BB R TBYEEERE

53 projects under management were assessed as
municiple demonstration property management
projects

S3EEERBENATRREYEEERER

2023-2025 Nanjing Property Management Service
Demonstration Entrepreneurship Base

2023-2025F B R MY EIRF TSR FEM
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MILESTONES
REAC

e With the aim of “Gathering love and going
for charity, walking hand in hand with
warmth”, Yincheng Life's 6th “Veteran
Employee Acknowledgement Party"” was
successfully held, in which we recalled
our memory and planned for the future.

BREES BRERTIIREMEESEIR
EEETEZHEEMSET EIREE
RERRK-

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023

e |t was announced in the annual results for 2022 that the
Group recorded an operating income of approximately
RMB1.71 billion, representing a YOY increase of
approximately 26.8%, and the net profit exceeded
RMB100 million for the first time, reaching RMB113
million, registering a YOY increase of 18.8%. In recent
years, the non-residential property business has
developed prosperously and remarkable results were
seen. In 2022, its contribution to revenue exceeded that
of residential properties, accounting for 52.2% in total.
An online communication meeting was held to report the
results and prospects to shareholders and investors.
BM020252FX B EEARFSEXRALNITIET
(AR® > TR) » BEILIEEA926.8%; & REKIE
7T 3ER 3BT FILEIE R18.8%; A E RN ERIIIE
FEXEBFREREE  HRABRE2022FEBBEE
Mz Z552.2% AR LR GRRRNEEAE
BREBBNRRRELE

The first major M&A transaction completed by the Group
after its listing was the acquisition of Huiren HengAn
Hospital Property Management (FBE{Z 1B ZERYE).
With three years of post-investment management, the
CAGR of revenue reached 17%, much higher than the
previous performance commitment.

BERME CB3FNREBEEE WAFEARREE
7% iE B & F R ARG

In order to reward
the owners who
prepaid property
management fees in
2023, Yincheng Life
and Mr. CLEARE of
Haier jointly held a
fabulous live event
for a lucky draw.
[l EE TR 20234
MEEBEEZF
IR A R FBEMMR.CLEARESE R o4 » BT —15
RFEIENLA R EREEE -




MILESTONES
RE:C

e The Conference for Findings on the 2023 China Top 100
Property Service Enterprises Survey and the 16th China
Top 100 Property Service Entrepreneurs Summit were held 2023thE RS
in Beijing. The Group and Huiren HengAn (BE{Z1E %), its I\
hospital property service experts, were both rated as Top E;E_Ih!kg E
100.

2023 EMERBE AR ENRTRREMIEES 7B

PEYERBRRACERBEEEIREERT *&E
RIETBEYERBERECEZEEETTA

e The third batch of share options totaling
2.14 million shares were granted to 36
employees to award their long-term
contributions to the Company.

RESZMBRESH21EBRTIHE  The Company entered into a strategic cooperation
T UEBETHARMNRATM agreement with Suzhou Unocal Property

Management Co., Ltd. at the headquarters
of Suzhou Unocal. Given the spirit of
“complementary advantages, resource sharing
and win-win cooperation” shared by both parties, a
comprehensive and in-depth strategic partnership
was established to jointly leverage their advantages
in terms of resources, explore innovative models for
further cooperation and develop new service scopes
for the purpose of creating a better future.

BEEINEBERYEEERRATEHMEBEREY
fa%%zﬂﬁAVEﬁ%E%oAT’E‘ﬁHZK% MBREMH BER

BHER HRAZKEERED FHHAFSERIL

HE -GFEEFINEE BUE2HREBESF ’
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MILESTONES
P

JuLy
18
e Hong Kong Ruihua Investment

Management Limited continued to AUGUST
increase its shareholdings in the

issued shares of the Company to

27.98%, and also appointed two of e |t was announced in the 2023 interim results that the
its senior management personnel Group's revenue increased by 17.2%, net profit increased
as non-executive Directors of the by 16.2% and the ratio of contributions from new projects
Company. from third parties exceeded 97.3%. A conference was
EAMEREEEARARBEILTS convened online to report the results for the first half of
KABIBETRNE27.98% & the year and the outlook for the second half of the year of
HRUEEMRARR A FNITES the Group to shareholders and investors.

22023 HAE S RAERWRGEIER17.2%  FFEEE
16.2% > FrHRIBEE R B 5 = 5L ELiB97.3% o B BR4F &
HEERRRREANERAER L EFEEBERRTF
ERY

OCTOBER
108

e China Nanjing International Climbing Festival and Yincheng
Life Parent-Child Care Festival were successfully held in
Muyan Binjiang Damo Ancient Cave Scenic Area, bringing
a unique festival experience comprising climbing, running
and sightseeing.
TEEREGESHERRETHFEEMNETRNE
EETRREAE SR THREENES 7
B BB SRR
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
TREE

In 2023, China's economy continued to see a complex and fickle
environment in its own territory and globally. Against the backdrop of
slower growth round the globe, the Chinese government continued to
implement aggressive fiscal policies and prudent monetary policies
in an attempt to stabilise economic growth, while investing more in
infrastructure. On another note, it has provided fresh impetus to the
market in hopes to spur productivity through a mix of measures such
as tax and fee cuts and a hefty of supportive measures to SMEs. The
property management sector continued to see steady growth with the
support of the government. Along with accelerated urbanization and
improved living standards, we have witnessed growing demand for
high-quality property services. At the same time, a highly competitive
landscape has prompted the need for more innovative technology
and services for higher quality of services and efficiency. In particular,
digitalisation has been a key trend in the development of the sector, with
peers adopting digitalised management systems and lol technologies
one after another in pursuit of a brand new model of services and
management.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023

XIE Chenguang #1 2 ¢
Chairman £ /Z
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On the front of the Hong Kong stock market, listed property management
players performed quite stable in general over 2023. Despite volatility for
some players amid poor macroeconomic outlook and market sentiment,
fundamentals remained strong for the sector in the long run. Property
management companies capable of providing differentiated services,
solid customer base and sound financial position remained attractive.
With players now starting to compete for the definite share already
identified in a reshuffled environment, those survived being able to adapt
to the new landscape will be favoured.

Today, the scope of property management has extended to areas
involving people's daily lives, such as elderly care community, childcare,
reconstruction of old residential areas, and also other non-community
based urban and other handy services, well beyond the knowledge of
the management of the traditional residential or public areas. The call
for modern multi-functional property management services is putting
weight on the players' operational capabilities. Only the most reliable and
boldest player who dares to step out of its comfort zone will be able to
gain a biggerslice in the market.

After over two decades of development, through non-stop innovation and
business expansion, Yincheng Life Service has achieved steady growth
and unmatched performance without compromising its faith. Since 2022,
the Group has shifted from an area-based model to revenue-driven
model, a flight from quality over quantity. With that in mind, we focused
more on input-output ratio, in particular a healthier cash flow, instead of
growth rate or profit alone. Under this methodology, we have succeeded
in closely monitoring market changes and customer needs, improving
quality of services and efficiency on an on-going basis, encouraging
interaction and communication with customers, and promoting user
satisfaction. In terms of digitalisation, we have introduced a variety of
advanced technology and management system in hopes of improving
efficiency and standard of services, and providing customers with a more
convenient, safe and cosy living environment.

On the front of property services, the Group adheres to independent
development, firmly takes the approach of marketisation and regional
focus, sticks to quality and customers as the cornerstone, and adheres
to “Reputation Comes First, Operation is Key"” motto. In terms of urban
services, the Group has established and cropped some progress from
wholly-owned subsidiaries engaging in the new energy vehicle charging,
urban comprehensive parking, e-hailing new energy car rental, and
one-stop urban electric bicycle charging, battery exchange, rental and
sales, and sports businesses, striving to establish an edge in each of the
many branches of property services through the incubation of new brand
names.

Looking forward, we are expecting challenges ahead amid uncertainties
over economic outlook, competitive landscape and customer expectation,
where only the best could survive. However, | am confident in our
management team who is able to find ways to get everything sorted,
big or small, directly or indirectly, and who will, as always, continue to
steer the Group in overcoming difficulties, securing healthy growth, and
looking ahead to become a century-old name trusted, respected and
growing together with our customers.

Chairman
XIE Chenguang
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PRESIDENT’S STATEMENT

Looking forward to 2024, the Group will continue to innovate
and strive to maintain steady growth in both revenue and profit
in the new three-year plan. In the face of the ever-changing
market environment, we will maintain our edge and seize the
momentum, explore driver for sustained organic growth, and
strive to become a respected and vibrant enterprise in the
industry in a practical and step-by-step manner.

EE2024 AEBBREEN > HWBEMN=FEREIPEIE
HRERMFENEIRERES IR AR BN THIRIR
R BARETEZLIER A BEFENEERS S
—MEE R EMEFS— D EITEPRAER N
BIEREMIZ N EE Ao
LI Chunling =&
President #85t

Dear Board of Directors and Shareholders,

On behalf of the management, | am pleased to present the financial and
business report of Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd. for the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 (the "Period Under Review") and share the
outlook for the coming year with you.

Since 2023, China has rolled out various policies related to household
services, household expenditure, improving the standard and quality
of property services, aiming at creating a better living environment
for residents. The State Council has promulgated 26 measures for
“Silver Economy"” to encourage property management companies to
provide elderly catering and home care services. All these mean that
the government has positioned property management industry as a
crucial pillar in community management that directly impacts people's
livelihoods and has provided strong policy support.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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After the turmoil over the past two to three years, property management
companies have gradually shifted their focus from “real estate” back
to "service consumption”, and the importance of expanding residential
and non-residential portfolios has become more prominent. In fact, the
property services industry is one of the areas least affected by economic
cycle and development cycle within the entire real estate industry
chain, which is the most stable and promising sector. As a property
management company with over 20 years of experience, Yincheng Life
Service has already focused on expanding its business in the existing
market at a very early stage, and has always adhered to our core mottos
of “focus on long-term”, “service oriented” and "Reputation Comes First,
Operation is Key". During the Period Under Review, as high as 98% of the
Group's revenue was acquired from third-party developers, solidifying
our position of “second-hand property operation expert”.

Stable growth in revenue, bring fruitful returns to Shareholders

This year is the final year of the Group's 2021-2023 three-year plan. We
have seen tremendous changes in China's property management market
during the past three years, fortunately, the Group has been able to live
up to the trust of our Shareholders and maintain stable growth in both
revenue and profit, which is not easy to achieve in such challenging
time. Starting from 2023, although the business scale of the Group is still
expanding, we have slowed down the pace to review the meaning and
efficiency of each square metre. We adjusted our focus from the increase
in GFA to the growth of revenue, as such we no longer publish data on
GFA under management of our projects.

During the Period Under Review, the Group recorded a revenue of
approximately RMB1,973.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of 15.2%, the net profit of the Company was approximately RMB123.6
million, representing a year-on-year increase of 9.8%. Among which,
revenue generated from the provision of property management services
amounted to RMB1,536.7 million, while revenue generated from the
provision of value-added services amounted to RMB428.4 million,
accounting for 77.9% and 21.7% of the total revenue, respectively. The
total number of projects under management of the Group surpassed the
1,000 mark during the year and reached 1,057 as at 31 December 2023.

The Group's staff cost has increased as a result of, among others,
the multiple increases in the minimum wage level and social security
contribution base in Jiangsu Province in the past two years, the
establishment of its own company to gradually replace the original
cleaning outsourcing model. But with various effective measures we
have taken to reduce cost and increase efficiency, including improving
the informationisation level, integrating staff and positions to control
administration expenses, and optimising asset/liability structure to
reduce finance expenses, the Group's gross profit margin and net profit
margin were maintained at a reasonable level. During the Period Under
Review, the Group's gross profit margin reached 15.6%, representing
a year-on-year increase of 0.5 percentage point, while the net profit
margin after deducting the bad debt element of the amount due from
related companies was 7.9%, representing a year-on-year increase of 1.1
percentage points, and the management fee rate was further reduced to
5.1%, which was the benchmark levelin the industry.
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During the Period Under Review, earnings per share of the Group was
RMBO.44, representing a year-on-year increase of approximately 10.0%.
As at 31 December 2023, the net asset per share amounted to RMB1.86,
representing a year-on-year increase of 36.5%. As at 31 December
2023, the cash and cash equivalent of the Group was RMB433.4 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 48.4%. Taking into account the
continued positive operating conditions, sufficient cash flow and other
factors, the Board convened a Board meeting in February 2024 and
declared the payment of a special dividend of HK$0.124 per share to
reward the Shareholders for their long term support.

Secure the first growth curve, focusing on steady growth in
property management services

Basic property management services is the first growth curve for
property management companies. The operation of every project under
management has been recognised and recommended by the owners,
which is the foundation for the Group to achieve its two-pronged
development strategy of "keep existing clients” and "gain new clients".
During the Period under Review, revenue from residential properties of
the Group was RMB758.2 million, representing a year-on-year increase
of approximately 15.9%. The renewal rate of the Group's existing
customers remained at a high level of 90%, reflecting our strong ability to
retain clients. The overall customer satisfaction rate was approximately
89%, the collection rate for management fee payable of residential
property customers was approximately 90%, while the prepayment rate
(i.e., the management fee for next year is paid in advance in the current
year) was even as high as approximately 47%. These key operational
indicators show that the Group has gained a high degree of trust from
existing customers which are willing to maintain a long-term partnership
with us.

During the Period Under Review, the Group's revenue contribution from
non-residential projects accounted for approximately 50.7%, the number
of projects under management increased by nearly 11.5%, and the total
annualised contract amount reached approximately RMB800 million. We
have repeatedly won high-quality new projects, including Jinling Library,
China National Tobacco Corporation Jiangsu Branch, Yixing People's
Hospital, etc. Currently, the Group has provided services for 11 major
categories of non-residential projects, including more than 40 projects
under management in each of the categories of medical care, industrial
parks, transportation facilities, government facilities, and financial
institutions, etc., with rich experience accumulated, which will help us
stand out in bidding for similar types of projects.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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As mentioned above, the battlefield of “gain new clients” has been
transformed into competition in the existing market, and the entry of a
large number of players has led to increasingly fierce competition, and
even disordered and irrational competition that shall not happen between
enterprises. Although this has had a certain impact on the Group's
external expansion, with our good reputation, excellent management and
operation capabilities, as well as reasonable prices, we have still won the
favour of high-quality customers and successively obtained a number of
promising projects. During the Period Under Review, the Group acquired
159 new projects under management, representing 15% of the number of
total projects. As at 31 December 2023, there were 18 projects contracted
yet to be managed. This motivates us to identify our own advantages,
improve our weaknesses and develop our business with determination in
the chaotic market.

We are pleased to see that as the central government as well as provincial
and municipal governments have promulgated provisions to promote
the formation of property owners' committees, and even explicitly
stipulated the establishment objectives of property owners’ committees,
the number of property owners' associations and the management level
of residential properties are gradually improving. We believe that in this
broader market, the Group is able to leverage its first-mover advantage
and work with more customers to set the benchmarks for high-quality
property management.

Create the second growth curve, expediate service innovation

Value-added services is the second growth curve for property
management company. Beside strengthening the first growth curve, the
Group has been striving to create a second growth curve which grow
faster and of higher quality in recent years. This two-pronged approach
will push the Group to a new level.

Starting from "Gathering Love and Good Deeds"”, the Group aims to
enhance customer satisfaction and happiness at the core. The Group
always adheres to providing customers with various value-added
services that are in rigid demand, with high frequency, large volume
and sustainability. The service radius is extended from the community
to urban street corners. The Group owns a number of subsidiaries and
brands, covering professional services, life services and urban services.

The Group's professional services are provided under four brands,
namely Jingdian Technology ((RE#}#%), Xianhe Landscape (FEREM),
Cenze Engineering (22T %) and Meihe Environmental Technology
(32K151%), the business of which covers elevator installation
and maintenance, landscape design and maintenance, facilities and
equipment repair and maintenance, environment sanitation, etc. The
professional services subsidiaries can reduce costs and enhance
efficiency internally and bring more external revenue, which are
the Group's powerful assistants that we built over the years. During
the Period Under Review, the four professional service subsidiaries
contributed a total external income of approximately RMB51.3 million,
representing a year-on-year increase of 36.8%.
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The Group's lifestyle services cover all the needs of residential and non-
residential customers, including sports and fitness, home care for the
elderly, housekeeping, home decoration, infant and child care services,
house rental, group meals, conference reception, etc. We have over 700
living service consultants who are always at the forefront to hear and
respond to customer’s needs, driving the Group to continuously improve
our service quality. During the Period Under Review, the total revenue
from value-added services of the Group increased by 25.9% on a year-
on-year basis, with a gross profit margin of 34.0%.

Although the Group's urban services have only been in operation for two
to three years, they have developed rapidly. Currently, our services have
already covered new energy vehicle charging, urban comprehensive
parking, e-hailing new energy car rental, and one-stop electric bicycle
charging, battery exchange, rental and sales. The Group is the exclusive
dealer for ZL Battery Swap GS#2#2 &) brand in more than ten cities,
including Nanjing and Suzhou, and has become the leader in battery
charging and swapping in these cities in just a short period of time. Our
ZL Battery Swap business is now serving more than 21,370 registered
riders, and has contributed approximately RMB50.6 million of revenue
during the Period Under Review, representing a year-on-year increase
of 45.8%. The Group's new energy vehicle charging business is operated
under the brand name of "Big Zebra CABIEE)". Since its establishment
in mid-2022, Big Zebra has built 15 commercial DC charging stations
for urban operating vehicles and 130 property AC charging stations for
community network. Big Zebra has contributed approximately RMB19.3
million of revenue to us during the Period Under Review, representing a
year-on-year increase of 532.8%.

Our Groups adopts a mass coverage strategy, leveraging the high density
of our managed projects, we can take full advantage of resources
sharing, thereby improving efficiency and achieving synergy. The two
growth curves complement each other and are on the growth, making us
more confident in exploring and leading new development models in the
property managementindustry.

Conclusion and outlook

Although the difficulties we faced in 2023 are yet to be solved, this will
not affect the Group's determination in adhering to the market-oriented
approach and the concept of longtermism. Moreover, our management
team has built up resilience and came together to overcome difficulties.
In terms of business, while ensuring the stable development of our
basic business, we have actively explored businesses with potential and
further develop advantageous projects. In terms of finance, we have
strived to improve profitability and cash flow levels by reducing costs
and increasing efficiency. For corporate governance, we have improved
management quality by adjusting shareholder structure and Board
structure. For internal management, the Group has managed to maintain
a stable talent team through an established training, promotion and
incentive system. With the above effort, the Group has achieved relatively
satisfactory results.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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Looking forward to 2024, the Group will continue to innovate and strive
to maintain steady growth in both revenue and profit in the new three-
year plan. In the face of the ever-changing market environment, we will
maintain our edge and seize the momentum, explore driver for sustained
organic growth, and strive to become a respected and vibrant enterprise
in the industry in a practical and step-by-step manner.

President
LI Chunling
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

The Group is an established property management service provider in
the PRC with over 26 years of industry experience that engages in the
provision of diversified property management services and value-added
services. As at 31 December 2023, the Group's property management
services covered 25 PRC cities, of which 20 cities are in the Yangtze River
Delta Megalopolis. The Group managed 1,057 properties, including
640 residential properties and 417 non-residential properties, serving
over 600,000 households which covers over 1.9 million people as at 31
December 2023.

The Group's business covers a wide spectrum of properties, including
residential properties and 11 types of non-residential properties. The
Group operates its business along two main business lines, namely the
provision of (i) property management services; and (ii) value-added
services.

Leveraging on the Group's business scale, operational efficiency,
excellent service quality, development potential and social responsibility,
the Group obtained various awards in 2023 including ranking the 16th
among the China Top 100 Property Management Companies* (7
EY)ERFE B8 %), ranking the 2nd among the Top 50 Property
Management Companies of Jiangsu Province CLER &Y ERFFITE
FEEENE %) and ranking the 2nd in the Nanjing Property
Management Industry Credit Handbook Directory (FER B EIRITE
EAFMBER . Itis also worth mentioning that Nanjing Huiren HengAn
Property Management Co., Ltd* (I RECHEZYMEEEEFRAE),
a subsidiary of the Group which principally engages in the provision of
property management services to hospitals, is also on the list of the China
Top 100 Property Management Companies* (B2 RFE a1 %) .

The Group adheres to its business motto of “"Operation is the Key,
Reputation Comes First GE& A& T ~ OB ZE )" and service concept of
“Living* (47&7)" and “Industry” (Z2£*)", and has adopted the special
business model of “Service alignment, Business modularisation, Modules
specialisation and Management digitalisation (BRFSAFIZ(E ~ EFEIE
Wb~ EIRFE 10~ EIEHIRID) " to serve and create value for its
customers with quality property management services.
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Property Management Services

The Group provides a wide range of property management services that
comprises security services, cleaning services, car park management,
repair and maintenance of specialised elevators, escalators and
mechanical car park equipment, gardening and landscaping services,
daily repair and maintenance of equipment and machinery and ancillary
customer services.

Geographic Coverage

The Group has grown from a local property management service
provider in Nanjing to one of the leading property management service
providers in both Nanjing and the Jiangsu Province. The Group has
actively expanded its business to cities outside Nanjing in recent
years and have made a great progress. As at 31 December 2023, the
revenue generated from districts outside Nanjing had an increase by
approximately 18.6%, reaching approximately 29.3% of the Group's
total revenue from the provision of property management services.
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The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's managed
properties by geographic region as at the dates indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

TREHI PR BB HIEE S DR AR E

EORER=LY/E S =r N
As at 31 December
128318
2022 2023
2022%F 20235
Number of Number of
managed managed
properties properties Increase
TEVFEE ER=frES 4= g

%

Nanjing BB 742 787 6.1
Districts outside Nanjing ERMUIMRIHIE 232 270 16.4
Total st 974 1,057 8.5

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's property
management services revenue by geographic region for the periods
indicated:

TR PR A B R IR & i E
Y EIEAR TS UL BAAR ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BHE12B31HIEEE
2022 2023
20224 20234
RMB'000 RMB'000 Increase
ARBT T IUNSE: S )i
Nanjing [Ep 988,590 1,085,801 9.8%
(72.2%) (70.7%)
Districts outside Nanjing ERMUIHIHE 380,048 450,922 18.6%
(27.8%) (29.3%)
Total #Est 1,368,638 1,536,723 12.3%
SRR ERRIEBIRAR

2023FEERS




MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

Types of Property Management Services

The Group provides property management services in respect of both
residential and non-residential properties. As at 31 December 2023,
the non-residential properties managed by the Group comprised 11
types of properties, namely government facilities, financial institutions,
property sales offices, medical institutions, commercial complex, parks,
transportation facilities, industrial parks, mixed-use properties, schools

MEEERFBESE
FEERB/ETRIFETMRREHMEE
BARF - 102023128310 AEBEEN
FFETY)FERVEY)ZE R B BUF &
TREE - MEHESH BREE BER
AR -RAESE BoR EXEE VRS
R E BRI AKIE -

=%

and office buildings.

[y
v~ 5

—d E
E%QP EnE

|

Commercial Complex

[EESEa=)

Government Facilities Financial Institutions Property Sales Offices Parks Medical Institutions
BT TRMEAE RYES bl REPZE BRI
( R

Non-residential properties JE{X 4%

i it

Office Buildings Education Institutions

WAKIE B

Transportation Facilities
BRI

-

Mixed-use Properties

BERBRYE

ez [Q
Industrial Parks

While the provision of property management services in respect of
residential properties is the foundation of the Group's revenue generation
and scale expansion, the Group is actively seeking to improve its brand
awareness in the non-residential sector by diversifying its services
offerings to include other types of non-residential properties, optimising
its project portfolio and adjusting its business structure. The Group's
provision of property management services in respect of non-residential
properties has grown stably and reached 417 projects as at 31 December
2023, representing an increase of approximately 11.5% year-on-year.

e T T e

Newly acquired large-scale residential project in 2023
Jinzunhuafu at Jinhua city, Zhejiang Province

2023 FHERARETERE I NISESTER
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Newly acquired large-scale non-residential projectin 2023
People's Hospital at Yixing city, Jiangsu Province
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The table below sets out the breakdown of the number of the Group's
managed properties by property types as at the dates indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

TREIPCPAITBRRYFELRE DA E
EEEVEHERM

As at 31 December

112H31H

2022 2023

2022%F 20234

Number of Number of

managed managed
properties properties Increase
TEEMEHE EIfuES 4= 1

%

Residential properties EEYE 600 640 6.7
Non-residential properties IEEEME 374 417 11.5
Total st 974 1,057 8.5

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue and gross
profit margin from property management services by property types for
the periods indicated:

TREJIRPI AR A SRR EERE D
BV B AR W R B KA

For the year ended 31 December

HE1ANALEE

2022 2023
20224 20235
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue margin Revenue Increase margin
& ESIES 6 N ERFE
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
AREFTT AE®T T
Residential properties FEME 654,209 5.6 758,187 15.9 6.4
(47.8%) (49.3%)
Non-residential properties JE{EE#) 2 714,429 12.9 778,536 9.0 13.7
(52.2%) (50.7%)
Total st 1,368,638 9.4 1,536,723 12.3 10.1
Revenue Model W E
For the year ended 31 December 2023, all of the Group's property & ZE2023F12831HILEE > XEBFREY
management fees were charged on a lump sum basis. FEEEROTHHIUE
SR TERBARAT
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

B mADR

Project Sources

The Group is known for its market-oriented model and has strong
external expansion capabilities. As at 31 December 2023, over 97% of the
Group's projects were obtained from the market, either from property
owners associations or independent third party property developers. At
the same time, the Group has also been providing property management
services to Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd. and Yincheng
Real Estate Group Co., Ltd. and each of their subsidiaries (collectively,

"Yincheng Group").

The table below sets out the breakdown of the number of the Group's
managed properties by project sources as at the dates indicated:

IHE KR

FEBUTHEFEBEANER  AFRBEMIN
ERHREAE 1o 12023128310 AERB
BOTHLWIEERTS LES - HREESY
WIBUE=Z A YEREE - BILE R &
B 75— B A SR E R AR A R A B K R 53
EEERMVARATIUEEZSENEB AT
(rTEIRIMER)) IR ETER

TREHINFIRBRRERRREI DR EE
EREEYFEHERM

As at 31 December

1128318
2022 2023
20224 20234
Number Number Increase
B i
Projects from independent third parties REBBIUIE=FWIEER 942 1,023 8.6%
Projects from Yincheng Group REIRHERNIES 32 34 6.3%
Total “EEt 974 1,057 8.5%

The table below sets out the breakdown of revenue generated from the
Group's property management services by project sources for the periods

indicated:

TREHI PP A = E 1218 B R REE R
B0 EEERB WA

For the year ended 31 December

H#E12ANBLLEE
2022 2023
20224 20234
Revenue Revenue
Wi Wz
Increase/
RMB'000 RMB'000 (Decrease)
AREFTT AR®T i GEL)
Projects from independent third parties REBILE=FNIEEB 1,312,071 1,505,479 14.7%
(95.9%) (98.0%)
Projects from Yincheng Group REEMEENER 56,567 31,244 (44.8%)
(4.1%) (2.0%)
Total 4EEt 1,368,638 1,536,723 12.3%
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Value-added Services

The Group provides value-added services to property owners and
residents of its managed properties with an aim to enhance the level
of convenience at its managed communities and customer experience,
satisfaction and royalty.

The Group's value-added services mainly include (i) common area
value-added services; (ii) community convenience services; and (iii)
city services. The Group's common area value-added services include
rental of advertising space and the provision of management services
of the community’s common area and spaces. The Group's community
convenience services refer to the comprehensive and diversified
convenience services provided by the Group in response to the owners’
needs, including but not limited to rental of gym and membership
services, the use of express delivery cabinets, home renovation,
housekeeping, home and elderly care and operation of staff canteens
for non-residential properties owners. In recent years, the Group
has introduced city services through intensive project deployment to
provide services to clients other than residents in communities under
management, including charging of electric vehicles and the rider battery
swap service. The city services have grown rapidly and increased its
revenue contribution to the Group.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group's revenue generated
from the provision of value-added services amounted to approximately
RMB428.4 million, representing an increase of approximately 25.9% as
compared to that of approximately RMB340.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2022. Such increase was mainly attributable to an increase
in the number of projects undertaken by the Group and the diversification
of the scope of services provided by the Group following its continuous
business development.

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue and gross
profit margin of value-added services for the periods indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

YE{ERRTS

PESMEELRINEN KT REFER
MEERBOE ZAEBATEEETYEN
REIREFRHEERS-

AEENBERBEIEAREG)EBEBE
ERS ; (NEEHLREFIRE 5 K(ii)HkH
BB - AEENHAETHEERFEEERS
BEEEURATEHLARERERREHRE
ERDG -AEBENEEHEENRBIERE
EoREETREMREHNEZE LS TEE
RIR% BREEFARNEERSERGER
B ERAREE KERE KRB EREE
RBIFETYEERRERHETIERERSR
B AEBFNBARENEB MR 5IA
W RS UAREETEERINMIHME
FPRHERT GEEHERERBFREE
B mARBERDR  WEMENAEER
AU e SRR ©

EHE2023F 12831 HIEFE» % FIE I
ERBFEENKRENAARKLI284EEH
T BREE2022F1283THEEEN AR
340. 3B BT NMAN25.9% BAREEELTE
FARAERAENEREHEN NESER
REBFELEEERFFIREMNRFBREEERZ T
o

AR BB PR A R A S B4 B AR A5 O WL i
R EFZKEFAE

For the year ended 31 December

HE12B31HLEE
2022 2023
20224 20235
Gross profit Gross profit
Revenue margin Revenue Increase margin
Wz EFE L6 ¥En EFE
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
ARBETTT ARETT
Value-added services IRERRTS
(i) Common areavalue- (i) HAZEEIEE
added service AR5 216,460 48.0 250,074 15.5 43.1
(ii) Community convenience (i) &L & E ]
services AR5 86,149 22.0 108,385 25.8 27.0
(iii) City services (iii) L T AR 75 37,719 10.2 69,903 85.3 12.1
Total “Et 340,328 37.2 428,362 25.9 34.0
RIS ERB AR AE]

2023FEERS
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group's revenue increased by approximately 15.2% from
approximately RMB1,712.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB1,973.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2023 as a result of (i) an increase in the number of residential and non-
residential projects undertaken by the Group and which led to an increase
in the income from the provision of property management services; (ii)
the diversification of the scope of value-added services provided by the
Group following its continuous business development and hence the
continued income contribution in respect thereof.

The table below sets out the breakdown of the Group's revenue by
business segments for the periods indicated:

B 75 [Cl B

U a5
AEENRGZAEE2022F12831HIEEE
HARBEN T2 98B TIEMNI52%EHE
2023F 1283 THIEFENARE1,973.25
B DHP)VAEEEAZENETERIEES
EHE#EEMN CEREVEEERBHE
WABIEE ; R(NBEEEBTEERE > K
SEREENEERBEEEMBEA FES
REFEFHRIAFER

TREJINFTRAB A EEZEE D EE D
By U = BAAR

For the year ended 31 December

HE12A3BLLEFE
2022 2023
20224 20235

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREETT
Property management services MEEERP 1,368,638 79.90 1,536,723 77.88
Value-added services B ERTS 340,328 19.87 428,362 21.71

Gross rental income from REBKEMEN

investment property HAEEUWA 3,968 0.23 8,115 0.41
Total #Est 1,712,934 100.00 1,973,200 100.00

Revenue from the provision of property management services increased
by approximately 12.3% from approximately RMB1,368.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB1,536.7 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. Such increase was primarily due to
the continuous increase in the number of projects undertaken by the
Group.

Revenue from the provision of value-added services increased by
approximately 25.9% from approximately RMB340.3 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB428.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Such increase was primarily due to (i) an
increase of the number of projects under management; (ii) more value-
added services provided to the projects under management as a result
of optimisation of the property management environment; and (iii) the
diversification of the scope of city-level value added services provided
by the Group such as the provision of rider battery swap services and
electric vehicles charging services.
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Cost of Sales

The Group's cost of sales consists of labour costs, subcontracting costs,
equipment operation and facility maintenance costs, material costs,
depreciation of right-of-use assets, office expenses and others.

The Group's cost of sales increased by approximately 14.6% from
approximately RMB1,453.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB1,665.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, primarily due to an increase in the number of staff as a result of the
expansion of the Group's business.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

As a result of the foregoing, the Group's gross profit increased by
approximately 18.7% from approximately RMB259.4 million for the
year ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB308.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023. The gross profit margin increased
from approximately 15.1% for the year ended 31 December 2022 to
approximately 15.6% for the year ended 31 December 2023. The Group's
gross profit margin has increased due to the various effective measures
the Group has taken to reduce cost and increase efficiency, including
improving the informationisation level, integrating staff and positions to
control staff costs.

Other Income and Gains

The Group's other income and gains mainly represents interests income,
investment income, government grants, gain on disposal of a subsidiary,
fair value gains on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and
others.

The Group's other income and gains increased by approximately 21.7%
from approximately RMB16.6 million for the year ended 31 December
2022 to approximately RMB20.3 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, primarily due to the receipt of tax subsidy from the government and
gain on disposal of a subsidiary.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

Selling and Distribution Expenses

The Group's selling and distribution expenses consist primarily of staff
costs, advertising and promotional expenses, office expenses, business
development expenses, travelling expenses and others.

The Group's selling and distribution expenses increased by approximately
10.4% from approximately RMB4.8 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB5.3 million for the year ended 31
December 2023, primarily due to the increasing of market expansion.

Administrative Expenses

The Group's administrative expenses primarily include staff costs,
professional fees, office expenses, business development expenses,
rental expenses, travelling expenses, depreciation and amortisation,
bank charges, taxes and others.

The Group's administrative expenses remained relatively stable at
approximately RMB95.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB93.7 million).

Impairment Losses on Financial Assets, Net

The Group's net impairment losses on financial assets increased by
approximately 239.0% from approximately RMB17.2 million for the year
ended 31 December 2022 to approximately RMB58.3 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023, primarily due to impairment of trade
receivables and due from related companies of the Group. The increase
in impairment was primarily due to the management's assessment of
expected credit loss of related parties including probability of default, and
the general turbulent economic conditions of the PRC and the real estate
industry during the year. The Group has increased its efforts in recovering
receivables due from related companies to reduce the amounts due
from such parties. For details, please refer to notes 3, 23, 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Finance Costs

The Group's finance costs mainly include interest on bank borrowings and
other loans and interest on lease liabilities in relation to lease liabilities
recorded for properties leased by the Group for operation of its offices
and fitness centres.

The Group's finance costs decreased by approximately 21.9% from
approximately RMB7.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2022
to approximately RMB5.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2023, primarily due to the repayment of bank and other borrowings of
approximately RMB53.7 million.

Income Tax Expense

The Group's income tax refers to PRC enterprises income tax at a tax
rate of 25% on taxable profits of its subsidiaries incorporated in the
PRC. Some subsidiaries of the Group are qualified as small-low-profit
enterprises and thus are subject to a preferential tax rate of 2.5% to 5%
for the year ended 31 December 2023.

The Group's income tax expense remained relatively stable at
approximately RMB36.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: RMB38.2 million).
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Profit for the Year

As aresult of the foregoing, the Group's profit increased by approximately
9.8% from approximately RMB112.6 million for the year ended 31
December 2022 to approximately RMB123.6 million for the year ended
31 December 2023. Profits attributable to owners of the Company
for the year ended 31 December 2023 amounted to approximately
RMB116.8 million, representing an increase of approximately 9.5% as
compared to the corresponding period in 2022. The net profit margin
was approximately 6.3% for the year ended 31 December 2023, down 0.3
percentage points from approximately 6.6% in the corresponding period
in 2022. While the net profit margin decreased slightly, it was still at a
normal level. The decrease is due to the increase of impairment losses on
financial assets.

Liquidity, Reserves and Capital Structure

The Group adopts a prudent funding and treasury policy and maintained
a healthy financial position during the year ended 31 December 2023. The
Group's current assets amounted to approximately RMB1,146.7 million
as at 31 December 2023, representing an increase of approximately
11.9% as compared to that of approximately RMB1,024.7 million as at
31 December 2022. The Group's cash and cash equivalents amounted to
approximately RMB433.4 million as at 31 December 2023, representing
an increase of approximately 48.4% as compared to that of RMB292.1
million as at 31 December 2022, primarily due to (i) net cash flows
from operating activities of approximately RMB199.5 million; and (ii)
repayment of bank and other borrowings of approximately RMB53.7
million.

The Group's total equity amounted to approximately RMB496.5 million
as at 31 December 2023, representing an increase of approximately
36.0% as compared to that of approximately RMB365.0 million as at 31
December 2022. Such increase was mainly due to an increase in the profit
of approximately RMB123.6 million during the year.

Property, Plant and Equipment

The Group's property, plant and equipment amounted to approximately
RMB93.3 million as at 31 December 2023, representing an increase
of approximately 4.1% as compared to that of approximately RMB89.6
million as at 31 December 2022. This was primarily due to the increase of
office equipment, electronic and other devices purchased during the year.

Trade Receivables

The Group's trade receivables primarily consist of receivables for its
property management services and value-added services from its
customers. The Group's trade receivables amounted to approximately
RMB394.7 million as at 31 December 2023, representing an increase of
approximately 15.4% as compared to that of approximately RMB342.1
million as at 31 December 2022. This was primarily due to (i) the
increase in the Group's revenue in 2023; and (ii) the combined effect of
the increase of the Group's non-residential properties projects, and the
usual practice of non-residential properties customers paying property
management fee once per quarter.
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Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

The Group's prepayments, deposits and other receivables amounted to
approximately RMB112.7 million as at 31 December 2023, representing
anincrease of approximately 12.1% as compared to that of approximately
RMB100.5 million as at 31 December 2022. This was mainly due to
an increase in deposits and other receivables including bid bond and
performance bond as a result of an increase in the number of property
management projects undertaken by the Group.

Due from Related Companies

The Group recorded due from related companies of approximately
RMB166.7 million as at 31 December 2023, representing a decrease of
approximately 17.1% as compared to that of approximately RMB201.0
million as at 31 December 2022. The decrease was primarily due to the
increase of impairment losses of approximately RMB44.3 million.

Trade Payables

The Group's trade payables primarily consist of payables to suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group's trade payables amounted to approximately
RMB108.5 million as at 31 December 2023, representing an increase
of approximately 43.9% as compared to that of approximately RMB75.4
million as at 31 December 2022. This was mainly due to an increase in the
number of property management projects undertaken by the Group and
thus more supplier and subcontractor services were needed.

Other Payables, Deposits Received and Accruals

The Group's other payables, deposits received and accruals amounted
to approximately RMB291.6 million as at 31 December 2023, remaining
relatively stable as compared to that of approximately RMB288.0 million
as at 31 December 2022.

Contract Liabilities

The Group receives payments from its customers based on billing
schedules as provided in the property management agreements.
A portion of the payments are usually received in advance of the
performance under the contracts which are mainly from the provision of
property management services.

The Group's contract liabilities amounted to approximately RMB392.2
million as at 31 December 2023, representing an increase of
approximately 16.0% as compared to that of approximately RMB338.2
million as at 31 December 2022. This was mainly due to the Group's
practice of collecting part of the property management fees for the
upcoming year in advance during the previous year, and therefore, the
increase in the scale of the Group's projects has led to an increase in the
amount of property management fees received in advance.

Borrowings

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of RMB64.8 million, as compared to RMB118.5 million as at
31 December 2022. The Group's borrowings are all denominated in RMB.
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The table below sets out the Group's total borrowings and effective
interest rates as at the dates indicated:

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

TREJINAPATBRAEENBERRER
F=

As at 31 December

5128318
Effective Effective
interest interest
2023 rate 2022 rate
20235 BEFE 20224 BERFE
RMB'000 (%) RMB'000 (%)
AR¥TT ARBET T
Current: BNHA
Bank loans - secured IRTTER—BER 59,000 3.60-4.35 105,000 4.35
Other borrowings - secured Hihigm—B iR 5,569 6.08-7.67 7,066 6.08-7.67
Non-current JEBDHR :
Other borrowings - secured HER—B H#&R 245 6.08 6,480 6.08-7.67
Total st 64,814 118,546

The table below sets out the repayment schedule of the Group's
borrowings as at the dates indicated:

TREHICFIR AR EE G ERERE
xR

As at 31 December
128318

2023 2022
2023%F 2022%F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARBTT

Repayable within one year J?EEJEWE%E 64,569 112,066

Repayable in the second year FEFR2ERER 245 6,235
Repayable in the third to fifth years, inclusive EFA3ESFEWEE

(BaaRmE) - 245

64,814 118,546

Financial Risks

The Group is exposed to risks arising from its financial instruments such
as interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Interest Rate Risk
The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates relates
primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

The Group does not use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest
rate risk, and obtains all bank borrowings with a fixed rate.

BAF5 LB

AEEEBESHRTAMEENRE WF]
KA EERRERSES AR °

FEmBE
AEREENTEHNREHREBEZERE
5t B IRITREMERE R

FEERTECERTESERTIEH PHXR
(% BESBPARTEREILUBEER K5
B

SR A SERRIS AR AR 37
2023FEERS



38

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Credit Risk

The Group classifies financial instruments on the basis of shared credit
risk characteristics, such as instrument types and credit risk ratings
for the purpose of determining significant increases in credit risk and
calculation of impairment.

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents, the fair values
of pledged deposits, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, deposits and other receivables, and amounts due from
related companies included in the statement of financial position
represent the Group's maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to its
financial assets as at 31 December 2023.

As at 31 December 2023, all cash and cash equivalents were deposited in
high-credit-quality financial institutions without significant credit risk.

Liquidity Risk

The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of
funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings. Cash flows are closely monitored on an ongoing basis.

Foreign Exchange Risk

As all of the Group's businesses are conducted in the PRC, revenue and
profits for the year ended 31 December 2023 were denominated in RMB.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have significant foreign
currency exposure from its operations. The Group currently has not used
derivative financial instruments to hedge its foreign exchange risk. The
Group will monitor its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Gearing Ratio

The Group's gearing ratio is calculated based on net debt divided by
total capital plus net debt. The Group includes, within net debt, interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings amounts due to related companies
and lease liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents. The Group's capital
represents equity attributable to owners of the Company. As at 31
December 2023, the Group's gearing ratio was not applicable.

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's bank and other borrowings were
secured by: (i) certain of the Group's buildings with a net carrying amount
of approximately RMB21.5 million; (ii) certain of the Group's office
equipment, electronic and other devices with a net carrying amount of
approximately RMB8.5 million; (iii) the Group's investment properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB25.4 million;
(iv) the Group's right of receipt of property management fee and new
energy vehicle station charging fee managed by the Group in the future;
and (v) a mortgage over 100% equity interests of Nanjing Zhihui Meijia
Technology Service Co., Ltd.* (BREZZERFRBEBRAED), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.
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Save as disclosed above, the Company had no other pledged assets as at
31 December 2023.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities or guarantees as at 31
December 2023.

Significant Investments Held

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not hold any significant
investment during the year ended 31 December 2023.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a total of 11,270 employees
(2022: 9,166 employees). The Group offers employees competitive
remuneration packages that include fees, salaries, allowances and
benefits in kind, bonuses and pension scheme contribution, equity-
settled and share option scheme and social welfare. The Group
contributes to social insurance for its employees, including medical
insurance, work-related injury insurance, retirement insurance, maternity
insurance, unemployment insurance and housing funds.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

The Group will continue to focus on its existing property management
services and value-added services. Save as disclosed in the Prospectus,
no concrete plan for future investment is in place as at the date of this
report.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group did not perform any material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and associates.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERAD N

Reference is made to the Company's announcements dated 16 March
2020 and 1 August 2023, (collectively, the "Announcements”). Unless
otherwise defined, capitalised terms used herein shall have the same
meanings as defined in the Announcements.

On 16 March 2020, Yincheng Property Services, the Vendor, the
Guarantor, Mr. Kong, Ms. Shen and the Target Company entered into
an equity interest transfer agreement, pursuant to which the Parties
agreed that Yincheng Property Services shall acquire, and the Vendor
shall sell 51% of the entire equity interest in the Target Company at the
consideration of RMB45,900,000 (subject to adjustments). According to
the Performance Guarantee Undertaking, the Performance Guarantee
Deposit shall be returned to the Guarantor if the Target Company
achieves its target net profit.

The Target Company has met the target net profit of the Performance
Guarantee Undertaking for the years ended 31 December 2020, 2021
and 2022 respectively. Accordingly, the Purchaser has returned to the
Guarantor the First Repayment Instalment, the Second Repayment
Instalment. As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
report, the Purchaser has returned to the Guarantor RMB5,390,000 of
the Third Repayment Instalment and the remaining RMB510,000 shall be
returned by 30 June 2024.

Subsequent Events

On 22 February 2024, having considered the business, financial and
cashflow position of the Group, the Board resolved the declaration and
payment of a special dividend (the "Special Dividend") at HKS$0.124 per
ordinary share of the Company. It is expected that the Special Dividend
will be paid in cash on or about Tuesday, 30 April 2024 to the shareholders
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on
Tuesday, 16 April 2024.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any material
events undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2023 and up
to the date of this report.
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USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE LISTING

The Company was successfully listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange on 6 November 2019 with the issue of 66,680,000 new shares.
The total net proceeds (the “Net Proceeds") from the listing of the shares
of the Company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (including the
exercise of the Over-allotment Option (as defined in the prospectus of
the Company dated 25 October 2019 (the "Prospectus”)) amounted to
approximately HK$131.4 million after deducting the underwriting fees
and commissions and other expenses in connection with the Global
Offering (as defined in the Prospectus). As at 31 December 2023, all of
the Net Proceeds have been used.

The following sets forth a summary of the utilisation of the Net Proceeds:
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L HFRSRIERR

KATIBEBEIT66,680,00008 3 B1D A IHF
201911 H6HEB TR LT oARAE
P EBRETEMR ERETSRIE (81176
BEREKRE (EERA A BHHA20194FE10
B25HMBKRER (MBRER)))) 528 (TFr
BRIEEREE) St A 131 4588 BT (810
BREMEINEE (TERBRERE) NWEHE
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H>FiEFSRIEFEEeEs B
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X EFIBFBFRSTRIRFERBIELR

Net Proceeds
utilised from

the date of Net Proceeds Remaining
the Listing utilised for Net Proceeds
up to the year ended as at
31 December 31 December 31December
2022 2023 2023
BEm #HE2023F
HEAE20224 128318 72202345
128318 ILEE 12A31H/
EANFME EANAME B FFS
FRIERER TRIEBER RIERER
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
FAET FHx FHT
Continue to expand the Group's business by @BHEIIREHERE 40,261 - -
mergers and acquisitions or investments ~ ANEE S LR AERP
in order to expand its market shares REYEEERBITEN
in the property management service miSnEE
industry in the PRC
Invest in intelligent systems to improve the REEERFLUNESAER 19,713 - -
Group's service quality and enhance its IRBEETRAETFRER
customers' experience
Upgrade the Group's internalinformation  FH4RAEB A SRS BRI 5 13,142 - -
technology system to enhance &5 LURFHEEMEK
operational efficiency
Continue to recruit more technical and HERESLEMRER 6,571 - -
managerial talents and, at the same AT ARATEERRES
time, provide training to the Group's REEIINRREEF
employees for the expansion of its
operations
General working capital —EEES 13,142 38,592 -
SR TERBARAT
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND

SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEhEREEBZEBEHE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LI Chunling, aged 48, is an executive Director and the president of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for the overall strategic decision,
business planning and daily management and operation of the Group. Mr,
Li joined the Group in February 2014. He was appointed as a Director on
13 June 2019 and was re-designated as an executive Director on 18 June
2019.

Mr. Li received his bachelor's degree in law from the Renmin University
of China in the PRC in September 2008, and his Executive Master of
Business Administration (EMBA) degree from China Europe International
Business School in the PRC in November 2018. He has obtained
professional qualification as a certified property manager from the
Ministry of Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC* since
February 2014, and was granted the award of Model Worker of Nanjing by
the Nanjing Municipal People's Government of the PRC in 2006. Mr. Li has
more than 25 years of experience in the hotel and real estate industry in
the PRC.

Ms. HUANG Xuemei, aged 55, is an executive Director, the vice president
and CFO of the Company. She is primarily responsible for the overall
administration, audit supervision and the public building department
of the Group. Ms. Huang joined the Group in December 2004. She was
appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and was re-designated as an
executive Director on 18 June 2019.

Ms. Huang received her diploma in business administration under
the Jiangsu Province Higher Education Self-study Examination* from
the Nanjing University in the PRC in June 1989, and obtained her
qualification as an intermediate accountant from the Ministry of Finance
of the People's Republic of China in May 1999. She then completed her
Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA) course in Nanjing
University Business School in the PRC in October 2018. She has more
than 30 years of experience in financial management and accounting.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. XIE Chenguang, aged 61, is the chairman of the Board and a non-
executive Director of the Company. He is primarily responsible for the
formulation and provision of guidance and development strategies
for the overall development of the Group. Mr. Xie joined the Group in
December 1998. He was appointed as a Director on 13 June 2019 and
was re-designated as a non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Xie
is currently also a non-executive director of Yincheng International, a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1902).

Mr. Xie obtained a diploma in industrial and civil engineering from Nanjing
Jinling Vocational University in the PRC in August 1983 and obtained
professional qualification as a senior engineer in November 2020. He
then obtained his Executive Master of Business Administration (EMBA)
degree from China Europe International Business School in the PRC
in September 2007. He was more than 31 years of experience in the
engineering and real estate industry in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. HUANG Qingping, aged 60, is a non-executive Director of the
Company. He is primarily responsible for the provision of guidance for
the overall development of the Group. Mr. Huang joined the Group in
September 1992. He was appointed as a Director on 3 April 2019 and was
re-designated as a non-executive Director on 18 June 2019. Mr. Huang
is currently also the chairman and a non-executive director of Yincheng
International, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(stock code: 1902).

Mr. Huang obtained his diploma in industrial and civil engineering from
Nanjing Jinling Vocational University* in the PRC in August 1983. He has
over 30 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Mr. YAO Ning, aged 57, was appointed as a non-executive Director of the
Company on 24 August 2023. He is primarily responsible for the provision
of guidance for the overall development of the Group. Mr. Yao is currently
the chief executive officer of Jiangsu Ruihua Investment Holding Group
Co., Limited* CT & InZE B 1L EE B R/25) ("Ruihua Investment”),
and is mainly responsible for the daily operation of the group. Prior
to joining Ruihua Investment in 2018, Mr. Yao worked for Tiandi Real
Estate Company* (K EMZEAF)), Nanjing Bailu Lake Real Estate
Development Co. Ltd.* (R R B E#MEMERZE AR B]), Nanjing Qilin
Villa Development Co. Ltd.* (@3 RS LL 3T BAEE B IRA E]) and Fullshare
Group from 2004 to 2018. From 1987 to 2004, Mr. Yao worked at Factory
518 of the Ministry of Posts and Telecommunications of the People's
Republic of China (FEIEBE&B518/) (currently known as Nanjing Putian
Telecommunications Co., Ltd.* (AR EKBERID AR AE)) (listed on
the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, stock code: 200468).

Mr. Yao graduated from Nanjing University of Aeronautics and
Astronautics, majoring in materials engineering. He has extensive
experience in administration management.

Mr. PAN Xiaohu, aged 52, was appointed as a non-executive Director
of the Company on 24 August 2023. He is primarily responsible for the
provision of guidance for the overall development of the Group. He has
been the director of investment banking of Ruihua Investment since 2009,
and is mainly responsible for asset management and investment decision
making. Mr. Pan worked at a number of asset management companies,
including Qide Investment Management Co., Ltd.* (BUERREEEFRA
7)), Dinghui Investment Fund Management Company* (REREE S
B/ F]) and Jiangsu Venture Capital Co., Ltd.* CIEAIE B EFRA
@) . Mr. Pan has been a director of Nanjing Zhizhen Electronic Technology
Corp* (MREEEFHERDAERAT) (listed on The National
Equities Exchange and Quotations, stock code: 873008) since 2016, and
he was a director of Jiangsu Hoperun Software Company Limited* GL#k
TR EHFRRD B FRAE) (listed on the GEM Board of the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange, stock code: 300339) from 2017 to 2020 and a supervisor of
Jiangsu Carephar Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd.* CI#FIIEFEZEIR S B IR
‘A 8)) (listed on the The National Equities Exchange and Quotations, stock
code: 870447) from 2016 to 2019.

Mr. Pan graduated from Southeast University with a master degree.
He has more than 25 years of experience in asset management and
investment.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. CHOW Siu Hang, aged 47, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily
responsible for supervision and provision of independent advice to the
Board. Mr. Chow has extensive knowledge and expertise on capital
market transactions including initial public offerings, financial advisory
and merger and acquisitions.

Mr. Chow is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants. Mr. Chow obtained his bachelor's degree in accountancy
from the City University of Hong Kong in November 1998.

Since June 2018, Mr. Chow has been an independent non-executive
director of Ziyuanyuan Holdings Group Limited, a company listed on GEM
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 8223) which principally engages
in provision of medical equipment finance leasing services, material
and child postpartum care industry services and trading of medical
equipments and consumables business in the PRC.

Mr. LI Yougen, aged 56, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily responsible
for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Li obtained a bachelor of laws degree from Nanjing University in July
1987 and obtained a master degree in laws from Nanjing University in
April 1990. Subsequently, he obtained a PhD degree in Economic Law
from the Renmin University of China in July 2002. He has over 30 years of
experience in teaching PRC law in China.

Since February 2024, Mr. Li has been an independent director of
Sinofibers Technology Co., Ltd., a company that is listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange (stock code : 300777) which principally engages in
the development and manufacturing of carbon fiber, fabric, composite
material and related products. From May 2016 to April 2022, Mr. Li
was an independent non-executive director of Nanjing Quanxin Cable
Technology Co. Ltd., a company that is listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300447) which principally engages in the
development and production of military lighting and electric transmission
products. From 2016 to 2021, he was an independent non-executive
director of Luculent Smart Technologies Co., Ltd., a company that
principally engages in intelligence construction.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. MAO Ning, aged 68, was appointed as an independent non-executive
Director of the Company on 15 October 2019. He is primarily responsible
for the provision of independent advice to the Board.

Mr. Mao obtained his bachelor degree in engineering (automatic control
systems) from the National University of Defense Technology in January
1982 and obtained a master degree in engineering (automatic control
systems) from the National University of Defense Technology in July
1984. Subsequently, he also obtained a PhD degree in engineering from
Nanjing University in December 1988. He has over 36 years of experience
in teaching management scientific.

Since December 2021, Mr.Mao has been an independent non-executive
director of Sumec Corporation Limited, a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600710) which principally engages in trade
and services and engineering contracting. During 2020 to 2023, Mr. Mao
has been an independent non-executive director of Meter Instruments
Co., Limited, a company that is listed on the Growth Enterprise Market
of the Shenzhen Stock Exchange (stock code: 301006) which principally
engages in the production of ultrasonic water watches and electric
watches. Previously from 2015 to 2021, he served and resigned as an
independent non-executive director of Jinling Hotel Corp Ltd., CTS
International Logistics Corp Ltd. and Nanjing Qixia Development Co., Ltd.,
all of which were listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange with stock code
601007, 603128 and 600533, respectively.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. YIN Xiaoli, aged 43, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge of
the Group's Residential (Nanjing) Management Centre. Ms. Yin joined the
Group in July 2002 and was appointed as a vice president subsequently.

Ms. Yin received her bachelor's degree in information management from
the School of Government of Nanjing University in the PRC in July 2002
and has obtained her professional qualification as a corporate human
resources manager (Grade 2) from the Ministry of Human Resources
and Social Security of the PRC in July 2012. She then obtained her
qualification as a security (Grade 3) from the Jiangsu Human Resources
and Social Security Department™ of the PRC in December 2016. She has
over 21 years of experience in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Ms. FAN Xingxia, aged 44, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge
of the Group's Jingcheng business unit. Ms. Fan joined the Group in
August 2003 and was appointed as a vice president subsequently.

Ms. Fan received her diploma in administration management from the
Southwest University of Science and Technology in the PRC (which
was a long distance learning course) in July 2013. She has obtained
her professional qualification as property manager from the Ministry
of Human Resources and Social Security Department® of the PRC in
September 2011. She has over 18 years of experience in the real estate
industry in the PRC.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
EEREREEBZBEFE

Mr. JIANG Zubai, aged 38, is the Group's vice president. He is in charge of
the Group's Southeast Management Centre. Mr. Jiang joined the Group in
April 2018 and was appointed as a vice president subsequently.

Mr. Jiang received his diploma in human resources management from
the Guangxi Guilin Aerospace School* in the PRC in June 2009, and
his bachelor's degree in human resources under the Jiangxi Province
Higher Education Self-study Examination from the Jiangxi University
of Technology in the PRC in December 2074. He then obtained his
professional qualification as a corporate human resources manager
(Grade 1) from the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security of
the PRC in December 2017. He has over 13 years of experience in human
resources and in the real estate industry in the PRC.

Ms. ZHOU Guihua, aged 46, is the Group's vice president. She is in charge
of the Group's Jiangnan business unit. Ms. Zhou joined the Group in July
2019 and was appointed as the vice president subsequently.

Prior to joining the Group, Ms. Zhou worked as the general manager in
Nanjing Baishi Property Management Co., Ltd.* from May 2014 to July
2019 where she was responsible for the overall business planning and
daily management and operation.

Ms. Zhou received her master's degree in business administration from
the Southeast University in the PRC in July 2011. She obtained her
professional qualifications from the Ministry of Human Resources and
Social Security of the PRC as a corporate human resources manager
(Grade 2) in 2008, a certified property managerin 2013, and an economic
professionalin 2019. She has accumulated over 15 years of experience in
business management and real estate industry in the PRC.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tsang Qi Yin was appointed as the company secretary of the Company
(the "Company Secretary”) on 26 November 2022.

Ms. Tsang is an associate member of both The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute and the Chartered Governance Institute in the
United Kingdom. Ms. Tsang obtained a bachelor's degree in international
business from the University of South Australia in 2006.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Group is committed to maintaining high corporate governance
standards, which are essential in providing a framework for the Group
to safeguard the interests of the shareholders of the Company and to
enhance corporate value and accountability. The Company has adopted
the Corporate Governance Code (the "CG Code") contained in Appendix
C1 to the Listing Rules as its own code on corporate governance and will
continue to practice the principles of good corporate governance as set
outin the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has complied
with all applicable code provisions as set out in the CG Code, and will
continue to review and enhance its corporate governance practices, and
identify and formalise measures and policies to ensure compliance with
the CG Code.

The core of the Group's motto “Operation is the Key, Reputation Comes
First” is to gain customers' trust and maintain long-term partnership
with them. The corporate vision of the Group is "Service provider for the
community and industry”. The corporate core values of the Company are
virtue, integrity, creativity and kind-heartedness to serve our customers.
All Directors act with integrity and promote the culture of integrity. Such
culture instils and continually reinforces across the corporate values.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board closely monitor the
implementation of corporate governance practice, risk management and
internal control systems to ensure the corporate objective, values and
strategy and the Company's culture are aligned.

CHAIRMAN AND PRESIDENT

The Board's chairman throughout the year is Mr. Xie Chenguang, being
a non-executive Director. Mr. Li Chunling is the Group's president. The
day-to-day management, administration and operation of the Company
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's senior
management.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is entrusted with the overall responsibility for promoting the
success of the Company by providing effective leadership and direction
to its business, and ensuring transparency and accountability of its
operations. The Board is responsible for all decision-making in respect of
all major matters of the Company, including the approval and monitoring
of all policy matters, overall strategies and budgets, internal control
systems, risk management systems, material transactions (in particular
those which may involve conflict of interests), financial information,
change of Directors, ad hoc projects and other significant financial
and operational matters. The Board has the full support of the Group's
management to discharge its responsibilities.
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The Company's day-to-day management, administration and operation
are currently delegated to the executive Directors and the Group's senior
management. The delegated functions and work tasks are periodically
reviewed. Approval has to be obtained from the Board prior to any
significant transactions. All Directors have full and timely access to all
relevant information of the Company, with a view to ensuring that Board
procedures and all applicable rules and regulations are followed. Each
Director may seek independent advice in appropriate circumstances at
the Company's expense, upon making request to the Board.

In addition, the Board has also delegated various responsibilities to the
Board Committees. Further details of the Board Committees are set out
below in this corporate governance report.

COMPOSITION

The Nomination Committee ensures that the composition of the Board
has a balance of skills, experiences, qualifications and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company's business
and development. The current composition of the Board consists of four
(4) non-executive Directors, two (2) executive Directors and three (3)
independent non-executive Directors. The independent non-executive
Directors are responsible for exercising independent judgement on
various Board decisions. The Directors during the year ended 31
December 2023 were set out below:

Non-executive Directors

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)

HUANG Qingping

YAO Ning (appointed with effect from 24 August 2023)
PAN Xiaohu (appointed with effect from 24 August 2023)
MA Baohua (resigned with effect from 23 November 2023)
ZHU Li (resigned with effect from 23 November 2023)

Executive Directors

LI Chunling (President)
HUANG Xuemei (Vice President)

Independent non-executive Directors

CHOW Siu Hang
LI Yougen
MAO Ning

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract,
and each of the non-executive Directors (except Mr. YAO Ning and Mr.
PAN Xiaohu) and independent non-executive Directors has entered
into an appointment letter, with our Company for a term of three years
commencing from 26 August 2022, while each of Mr. YAO Ning and Mr.
PAN Xiaohu has entered into a letter of appointment with our Company for
a term of three years commencing from 24 August 2023. All Directors are
subject to the retirement and re-election in accordance with the Articles
and the Listing Rules, which may be terminated by (i) not less than
three months' notice in writing served by either the executive Director or
the Company; or (ii) not less than two months' notice in writing served
by either the non-executive Director, the independent non-executive
Director or the Company.

Pursuant to Article 108(a) of the Articles, Mr. LI Chunling, Ms. HUANG
Xuemei and Mr. XIE Chenguang will retire from the office of Director
and shall, being eligible for re-election at the forthcoming AGM, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM.

Pursuant to Article 112 of the Articles, Mr. YAO Ning and Mr. PAN Xiaohu
will retire from the office of Director and shall, being eligible for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM, offer themselves for re-election at the
AGM.

The participation of independent non-executive Directors in the Board
brings a diverse range of expertise, skills and independent judgement
on issues relating to the Group's strategies, performance, conflicts
of interests and management process to ensure that the interests
of all of the Shareholders have been duly considered. Each of the
independent non-executive Directors has confirmed in writing regarding
his independence to the Company pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules and the Board and the Nomination Committee considered that all
independent non-executive Directors are independent.

Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules requires that an issuer must appoint
independent non-executive directors representing at least one-third
of the board. Following the appointment of Mr. Yao Ning and Mr. Pan
Xiaohu as non-executive Directors on 24 August 2023, the Board had a
total of 11 Directors. As the Company had only three independent non-
executive Directors as of 24 August 2023, the number of independent
non-executive Directors fell below the requirement of having at least
one-third of the Board members being represented by independent non-
executive Directors. Following the resignation of Mr. Ma Baohua and
Mr. Zhu Li as non-executive Directors on 23 November 2023, with three
independent non-executive Directors among a total of nine Directors
on the Board, the Company has complied with the requirement under
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules of having at least one-third of the Board
represented by independent non-executive Directors. As at the date of
this annual report, the Company met the requirement of Rule 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of independent non-executive
Directors of at least one-third of the Board.

Each of Mr. Yao Ning and Mr. Pan Xiaohu has obtained the legal advice
referred to in Rule 3.09D of the Listing Rules on 14 September 2023 and
confirmed that they have understood their responsibilities as Directors of
the Company.
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There is a balance of skills and experiences in the Board, which is
appropriate for the requirements of the Company’s business. The
Directors' biographical information is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management” in this annual
report.

The Board considers the above measures could facilitate the Directors to
contribute effectively and independent views and input are available to
the Board and Board Committees.

Each of the Board members has no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other.

The list of current Directors (by category) is also disclosed in this
annual report and all corporate communications issued by the Company
pursuant to the Listing Rules from time to time. The Company also
maintains on its website (www.yinchenglife.hk) and on the Stock
Exchange's website (www.hkexnews.hk) an updated list of current
Directors (by category) identifying their roles and functions.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing different aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees have been established with defined written
terms of reference, which are posted on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (www.yinchenglife.
hk). All Board Committees should report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company's expense.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established the Audit Committee on 15 October 2019 with
written terms of reference currently available on the Stock Exchange's
website and the Company's website. The Audit Committee is delegated
with the authority from the Board to provide independent oversight of the
Group's financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
systems, and the adequacy of the external audits.

The Audit Committee currently consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chow Siu Hang and Mr. Mao Ning, and
one (1) non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Chow Siu
Hang currently serves as the chairman of the Audit Committee, who holds
the appropriate professional qualifications as required under the Listing
Rules. Pursuant to the terms of reference of the Audit Committee and the
code provision D.3.3 of the CG Code, the members of the Audit Committee
should meet at least twice a year.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Audit Committee has held two
(2) meetings which were also with the presence of the external auditor.
During the said meetings, the following major tasks were performed:
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a. reviewed and had discussion on the (i) annual consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022,
annual results announcement and the annual report; (ii) interim
condensed consolidated financial statements for the six months
ended 30 June 2023, interim results announcement and interim
report; and (iii) the related accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and the relevant audit findings;

b.  reviewed and had discussion on the risk management and Group's
internal control systems;

c. reviewed the effectiveness of the Group's internal audit function;
and

d. had discussion and recommendation on the re-appointment of the
external auditor.

The Audit Committee has recommended the re-appointment of the
external auditor, Ernst & Young.

The Board is of the view that the Audit Committee has properly
discharged its duties and responsibilities during the year ended 31
December 2023.

AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the fees paid/payable to the
auditor in respect of the services provided by the auditor to the Group
were as follows:
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governance report N/A RiEH 150,000
NOMINATION COMMITTEE RLEET
The Company established the Nomination Committee on 15 October ZAABBEMN2019FE10815H0RILIBREE
2019 with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock & » E 2 [ B3 7 8 [ 38 0] 50 B 32 BT 48 Ui R A<

Exchange's website and the Company's website. The Nomination
Committee is delegated with the authority from the Board to formulate
and implement the policy for nominating the Board's candidates for
election by the Shareholders and to assess the independent non-
executive Directors’ independence and commitment.

The Company also has the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination
Policy in place. The Nomination Policy aims at improving the
transparency around the process by setting out the criteria and factors
to be taken into account by the Nomination Committee in selecting
and recommending candidates as Directors (including non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors).
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Inidentifying and recommending suitably qualified candidates to become
members of the Board, the Nomination Committee will give adequate
consideration to the Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy.
A number of factors will be taken into account, including but not limited
to age, skills, regional and industry experience, cultural and educational
background, race, gender and other qualities. In forming its perspective
on diversity, the Nomination Committee will also take into account factors
based on the Company's own business model and specific needs from
time to time. During the year, having considered Mr. Yao Ning and Mr.
Pan Xiaohu's background and extensive experience, the Nomination
Committee considered them to be suitable to be recommended to the
Board for directorship of the Company.

The procedures for the Nomination Committee to nominate candidates to
the Board for directorship are as follows:

(a) the secretary of the Nomination Committee shall convene a
meeting, and invite nominations of candidates from the Board
members (if any), for consideration by the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Committee may also nominate candidates for its
consideration;

in the context of appointment of any proposed candidate to the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall undertake adequate due
diligence in respect of such individual and make recommendations
for the Board's consideration and approval,

(c) inthe context of re-appointment of any existing member(s) of the
Board, the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations
to the Board for its consideration and recommendation, for the
proposed candidates to stand for re-election at a general meeting;

please also refer to the "Procedures for Shareholder to Propose a
Person for Election as a Director” published on the website of the
Company from time to time; and

(e) the Board shall have the final decision on all matters.

The Board currently has one female Director and as such has achieved
gender diversity in respect of the Board. We will continue to strive
to enhance female representation over time as and when suitable
candidates are identified and achieve an appropriate balance of
gender diversity with reference to the shareholders’ expectation and
international and local recommended best practices. The Nomination
Committee shall review the diversity and composition of the Board at
least annually taking into account the Group's business model and needs
and shall monitor the implementation of the Board Diversity Policy and, if
appropriate, make recommendations on proposed changes to the Board.
We will also ensure that there is gender diversity when recruiting staff at
mid to senior level and we are committed to provide career development
opportunities for female staff so that we will have a pipeline of female
senior management and potential successors to the Board in near future.
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As at 31 December 2023, the gender ratio in the workforce (including
senior management) of the Company of female and male are 59% and
41%, which the Board considers to reflect that a gender equality principle
has been adhered to by the Group. The Board has not identified any
challenges for maintaining gender diversity in the workforce so far.

The Group is determined to and will continue to maintain gender diversity
and equality in terms of the Board and the general workforce.

The Company plans to offer all-rounded trainings to female employees
whom we consider to have the suitable experience, skills and knowledge
of our operation and business, including but not limited to, business
operation, management, accounting and finance, legal and compliance
and research and development.

The Board Diversity Policy and the Nomination Policy have been reviewed
and shall continue to be reviewed on a regular basis.

Both the Directors and the Shareholders have the right to nominate a
person(s) to be appointed as a Director. Upon assessing the merits and,
for independent non-executive Directors, their independence to the
Company, the Nomination Committee will make recommendations to the
Board.

The Nomination Committee consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely, Mr. Li Yougen and Mr. Mao Ning, and one (1)
non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Xie Chenguang
currently serves as the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, among other
things, making recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board
to complement the Company's corporate strategies.

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Nomination Committee held
two (2) meetings. During the said meetings, the Nomination Committee
has mainly performed the following duties:

. reviewed the annual confirmations of independence submitted
by the independent non-executive Directors and assessed their
independence;

. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board during

the reporting period and whether the composition of the Board
complied with the requirements of the Board Diversity Policy;

. reviewed the background of the retiring Directors and determined
whether the retiring Directors continues to meet the criteria to be
re-elected at the annual general meeting held on 1 June 2023, and
made recommendations to the Board on the re-election of retiring
Directors; and

o considered the appointments of two non-executive Directors and
made recommendation to the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established the Remuneration Committee on 15 October
2019 with written terms of reference currently available on the Stock
Exchange's website and the Company's website.

The Remuneration Committee is delegated with the authority from
the Board to establish, review, and make recommendations to the
Board on the Group's remuneration policy and practices and reviewing
and approving matters relating to the Share Option Scheme. The
Remuneration Committee ensures that all employees and Directors are
appropriately remunerated in accordance with the Group's strategy as
well as its long-term and short-term performance.

The Remuneration Committee consists of two (2) independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Yougen and Mr. Mao Ning, and one
(1) non-executive Director, namely, Mr. Xie Chenguang. Mr. Mao Ning
currently serves as the chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
primary duties of the Remuneration Committee include, among other
things, making recommendations to the Board on the Group's policy and
structure for all Directors' and senior management's remuneration and on
the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy and on the remuneration packages of individual
executive Directors and senior management. The Remuneration
Committee is also responsible for assessing the performance of the
Directors and approving the terms of their service contracts.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, allowances
and benefits in kind,performance-related bonuses, pension scheme
contributions and social welfare) payable to the Directors for the year
ended 31 December 2023 was approximately RMB3.1 million (2022:
approximately RMB2.8 million). The remuneration of the Directors is
determined with reference to the salaries paid by comparable companies,
time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors and performance
of the Group.

Pursuant to the code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the annual
remuneration of the Company's senior management (non-director and
non-chief executive) by band for the year ended 31 December 2023 is set
out below:
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HKS$1,000,001 to HKS1,500,000 1,000,001 75%1,500,0008 70 1 1

Details of the remuneration of each Director and the five individuals with
the highest emoluments in the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated financial statements,
respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Remuneration Committee
held two (2) meetings. During the said meetings, the Remuneration
Committee has (i) reviewed the Group's remuneration policy; (ii)
reviewed the remuneration package of the executive Directors and
senior management for the reporting period; and (iii) reviewed the
remuneration package of the newly appointed Directors and made
recommendation to Board.

In addition, the Remuneration Committee has considered the grant of
share options and made recommendation to the Board by way of written
resolutions.

Summary of material matters relating to the Share Option Schemes that
were reviewed and approved by the Remuneration Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below:

- Grant of 2,143,040 share options carrying rights to subscribe for a
maximum of an aggregate of 2,143,040 shares to 2 Directors and 34
employees of the Group (“Grantees”) on 16 May 2023 (the "Date of
Grant").

Having considered (i) each Grantee's experience in, length of service,
contribution and dedication to the promotion of the Group's business;
(ii) that the Grantees are Directors or employees of the Group who will
directly contribute to the overall business performance, sustainable
development and/or good corporate governance of the Group; (iii) that
the share options will be vested in tranches over a period of three years
from the Date of Grant; and (iv) the historical practice of the Company
in granting share options without imposing any performance target,
the Remuneration Committee is of the view that, notwithstanding the
absence of any performance target, the grant of share options will
align the interests of the Grantees with those of the Company and
the shareholders of the Company, motivate the Grantees to devote
themselves to the Company's continued competitiveness, operating
results and growth in the future and reinforce their commitment to the
long-term service of the Company, and is therefore consistent with the
purpose of the Share Option Scheme.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to code provision C.1.4 of the CG Code, all Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills so as to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. All Directors had received
during the year ended 31 December 2023 comprehensive, formal
and tailored training, so as to ensure that he/she has appropriate
understanding of the Group structure, the Board and Board Committee
meetings procedures, and the Group's business, management and
operations etc., and that he/she is fully aware of his/her responsibilities
and obligations under the Listing Rules and applicable regulatory
requirements.
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The table below summarises the participation of each of the Directors
in continuous professional development during the year ended 31

December 2023:

TREGLE E2023F12A31BIEFERES
2MFBEXERNBR

Reading Legal
and Regulatory

Updates and
Attending  other Reference
Training Courses Materials
RIREARR
EERMEER
Name of Director BEENS HEIEIRE Hi2E i
Non-executive Directors FEHITESE
XIE Chenguang Eil=S v 4
HUANG Qingping =BT v v
YAO Ning k= 4 v
PAN Xiaohu BELR v v
Executive Directors HITEE
LI Chunling FHEX v v
HUANG Xuemei =1 v v
Independent non-executive Directors BIZIFHITEE
CHOW Siu Hang AJKIE v 4
LI Yougen FRIR v v
MAO Ning FE v v/

Besides, the Company will keep providing information and materials
to develop and update the Directors' knowledge and skills as and
when appropriate. Such information and materials are relevant to
the Group's business, corporate governance, rules and regulations,
accounting, financial or professional skills and/or directors’ duties and
responsibilities. There are also arrangements in place for providing
continuing professional development to each Director. All Directors
are encouraged to attend relevant training courses at the Company's
expense. The Company Secretary is responsible for keeping records of
training taken by each Director.

BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEE MEETINGS

Pursuant to the code provision C.5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should
meet regularly and the Board meetings should be held at least four
times a year at approximately quarterly intervals for reviewing and
approving financial statements, operating performance, budgets, rules
and regulations, announcements and circulars issued by the Company
and considering and approving the progress of the Company's various
on-going projects, and the overall strategies and policies. Additional
meetings would be arranged if and when required.
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Annual meeting schedules of each meeting of the Board and forthe Audit HEEEATEZZEZ - RHZEZE T HM
Committee, the Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee ZE T @ZMNEETHZFIERIBNMHEES
are made available to the Directors in advance. Pursuant to the code FIEE - RiFEE AT 2 FAIEXEC.5.3
provision C.5.3 of the CG Code, at least 14 days' notice should be givenfor 15> BB E G FREE DIRAT14KREH
aregular Board meeting to give all directors an opportunity to attend. For  MUEFTEESEFESETHE > Bt EM
other Board meetings, reasonable notice is generally given. The Board Z=ZE@:H ' — R SEBEEN -EFTRE
members are provided with all agenda and adequate information for R EZBTAERMHAAZERTEERLL
their review before the meetings. The Board and the Board Committee ML EH - EEGREELETHENE
members are provided with comprehensive meeting papers and relevant T E&EAMBAPAIN—BRSEHE @BEF
materials within a reasonable period of time, usually not less than 3 days, /DI3K) > IR s¥ 22 A S 5% U K ABRA
in advance of the intended meeting date. All Directors and the Board #Hkle-FrEEEREELZETHEEAKS
Committee members are given opportunities to include matters in the I(EHBENEBIWAEZEETEREETLELTEH
agenda for regular Board and Board Committee meetings and/or their @& & ' SHE@ZE (WNEXR) F2 A ER
meetings, if required. To facilitate the decision-making process, the HBRENEIT EEREZTLEEME B
Directors and the Board Committee members are free to have access to  FRIEBEERE U B HRIEE —F ER (U
the management for enquiries and to obtain further information, when &) o
required.
The Directors and Board Committee members may participate inthe B#EREELZESCREEESTBBEFIE
meeting either in person or through electronic means of communications. N@{RRREEGH - EELREELZEERE A
The Directors and Board Committee members are free to contributeand P& &E FEHAZXRERSEERE "MEARTE
share their views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after B EREXREZF LTBEZEBEHFJEL HEHEARN
deliberation at meetings. The Directors and Board Committee members XS aistimE T P EEMNEEEHE L
who are considered to have conflict of interests or material interests in ~ F|EHNEEREESEeHEFNESFATE
the proposed transactions or issues to be discussed will not be counted SEFE AKX > T B AR RERZENEREo
in the quorum of meeting and will abstain from voting on the relevant
resolutions.
For the year ended 31 December 2023, four (4) Board meetings were  #Z2023412831 0 IFEE > BT (4) K
held, to consider and approve, among other things, the consolidated Z#EE& &%  UEERIE (EHPEE) 82
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 and interim 2022412831 H I EE LG S RRF L E
results for the six months ended 30 June 2023. The individual attendance  ZE2023&F 68308 1t/ NE B P HEES - HE
records of each Director at such Board meetings and other meetingsheld 20234128318l EE  KEENETH
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out below: FHEEe e REMNEEZNENHERLRE
AW
Attendance record of Directors at the Board meetings and other meetings
held during the year ended 31 December 2023
HENBFRANHLEEEESRMENES G ERRAMEENLELR
Audit Nomination Remuneration Chairman and
Committee Committee Committee General INED
Board Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
IRk
BUEHG
Name of Director BEiL BE5geE BHZEEEE RLZEEEE  HHZEeEs BREAE -4
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
HUANG Qingping BET 4k N/ARTER NIARER N/ARIER 7 NIAR B
XIE Chenguang #HER 4/4 22 21 22 il 11
YAQ Ning (appointed on 24 August 2023) - Tk (320234 7 N/ARTER NIARER N/ARTER N/ARTER N/ARIER
8524HEZF)
PAN Xiaohu (appointed on 24 Auqust 2023) BB (120236
824 EEE) 10 NATER NATIER NATER NATEA NATER
MA Baohua (resignedon 23 November — E1REE (120236 33 N/ARIER NIARER N/ARER 7 /AR
2023) 115236
IHU Li (resigned on 23 November 2023) - %71 (720235
1152368 313 NIATER NATRER N/AFER mn N/ARIER
Executive Directors HiTEE
LI Chunling FER L4 N/ATER NATER NATER n N/ARIER
HUANG Xuemei B8 414 NAFEA NATER N/ATER n N/ARIER
Independent non-executive Directors ~ BLHH/7EE
CHOW Siu Hang BkiE W4 0 N/A T NIATER 0 ”n
LI Yougen FRiR 4k N/ARIER Y] 22 7 171
MAO Ning ¥ L4 22 212 22 n n
SR TERBARAT
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After the meetings, draft minutes are circulated to all Directors and
Board Committee members for comments. Apart from the said meetings,
matters requiring the Board's approval may be arranged by means of
circulation of written resolutions to all Board members.

All business transacted at the Board meetings and by written resolutions
were well-documented. Minutes of the Board meetings, Board
Committee meetings and written resolutions are kept by the Company
Secretary and are available for inspection by the Directors at all times.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code. The Board reviewed the Company's
corporate governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and senior management,
the Company's policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance with the Model Code and
written employee guidelines, and the Company's compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in this corporate governance report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company has appointed Ms. Tsang Oi Yin as the Company Secretary
from an external service provider on 26 November 2022. During the
year ended 31 December 2023, the Company Secretary had taken not
less than 15 hours of relevant professional training. Her primary contact
person at the Company is Ms. Katty Cheung, the Senior Manager of
Investor Relations of the Company.

The Company Secretary, is responsible for advising the Board on
corporate governance matters and ensuring that the Board's policy and
procedures, and the applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed.
All Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that the Board's procedures and all applicable
laws are followed. Moreover, the Company Secretary is responsible
for facilitating communications among Directors as well as with
management.

All Directors are kept informed on a timely basis of major changes that
may have affected the Group's business, including those changes to
relevant rules and regulations, and are able to make further enquiries
when necessary. Sufficient explanation and information have been
provided to the Board by the management to enable the Board to make an
informed assessment of financial and other information put before it for
approval. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and services of
the Company Secretary.

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2023.
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The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair view of the Group's state
of affairs and of the results and cash flow during the reporting period.
A statement from the auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements is set out on pages 89 to 95 of this annual report. In
preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting policies and applied them
consistently, made judgements and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the financial statements on a going concern
basis.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the "Model Code") as set out in Appendix C3
to the Listing Rules and the code for dealing in securities of the Company
by the Directors as adopted by the Company (the “Securities Dealing
Code") as its own codes of conduct governing the Directors. All Directors
confirmed, after having made specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have complied with the required standard as set out in the Model Code
and the Securities Dealing Code for the year ended 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this annual report.

No incident of non-compliance was found by the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2023. Relevant employees who are likely to
be in possession of inside information of the Group are also subject to
compliance with written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the
Model Code.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges that it has the responsibility to ensure that the
Company establishes and maintains sound risk management and internal
control systems within the Group and to review the effectiveness of the
systems.

Such systems are designed to manage and mitigate risks inherent in the
Group's business to an acceptable level, but not eliminating the risk of
failure to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

The Board has entrusted the Audit Committee with the responsibility to
oversee the Group's risk management and internal control systems on an
on-going basis and to review the effectiveness of the systems annually.
The review covers all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls. Under the Group's risk management and
internal control structure, the management is responsible for the design,
implementation and maintenance of risk management and internal
control systems to ensure that, among others, (i) appropriate policies
and control procedures have been designed and established to safeguard
the Group's assets against improper use or disposal; (ii) relevant laws,
rules and regulations are adhered to and complied with; and (iii) reliable
financial and accounting records are maintained in accordance with the
relevant accounting standards and regulatory reporting requirements.

The Company has an internal audit function which aims at helping
the Company to accomplish its objectives by applying a systematic,
disciplined approach to evaluate and improve the effectiveness of the
Group's risk management and internal control systems.
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The Group's internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department's business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and strictly
adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from time to
time. Each department is also required to keep the Board informed of
material developments of the department'’s business and implementation
of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

With respect to the procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company has adopted
the Inside Information Policy which governs the disclosure of inside
information and strictly prohibit unauthorised use of inside information
and has communicated that to all relevant staff. The Board is aware of its
obligations to announce any inside information in accordance with the
Listing Rules and conducts the affairs with reference to the “Guidelines
on Disclosure of Inside Information” issued by the Securities and Futures
Commission in June 2012. In addition, only the Directors and delegated
officers can act as the Group's spokesperson and respond to external
enquiries about the Group's affairs. No incident of non-compliance of
the procedure, and internal controls in the Inside Information Policy was
noted by the Company during the year ended 31 December 2023.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Group's internal control and risk management
systems to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated
by the management in compliance with the agreed procedures and
standards. The review covered all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls, risk management functions
as well as environmental and social performance and reporting. For
details of the environmental and social performance, please refer to the
2023 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.
In particular, the Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company's accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions.
The review was made by having discussions with the Company's
management and its external internal control consultant and the
assessment conducted by the Board. The Board believes that the existing
internal control system is adequate and effective, in particular, for
financial reporting and Listing Rule's compliance.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

To safeguard the Shareholders' interests and rights, a separate resolution
is proposed for each substantially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolutions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange after each general meeting.
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Convening of Extraordinary General Meeting and Putting
Forward Proposals

Pursuant to the Articles, the Board may whenever it thinks fit call for
extraordinary general meetings. Any one or more members of the
Company holding at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of the Company’s paid up capital carrying the right of voting
at Company's general meetings (the “Eligible Shareholder(s)") shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require an extraordinary general meeting ("EGM")
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two (2) months
after the deposit of such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene a physical meeting
at only one location which will be the Principal Meeting Place (as
defined in Articles 65), the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed
to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Eligible Shareholders who wish to convene an EGM for the purpose
of making proposals or moving a resolution at the EGM must deposit
a written requisition (the "Requisition”) signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned at the principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Suite 2903, 29/F, China Resources Building,
26 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong, for the attention of the Company
Secretary.

The Requisition must state clearly the name, the contact information of
the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned, the reason(s) for convening an
EGM, the agenda proposed to be included, the details of the business(es)
proposed to be transacted in the EGM, and signed by the Eligible
Shareholder(s) concerned. The Eligible Shareholder(s) must prove
his/her/their shareholding in the Company to the satisfaction of the
Company.

The Company will check the Requisition and the identity and the
shareholding of the Eligible Shareholder will be verified by the
Company's Hong Kong share registrar. If the Requisition is found to be
proper and in order, the Company Secretary will ask the Board to convene
an EGM within 2 months and/or include the proposal or the resolution
proposed by the Eligible Shareholder at the EGM after the deposit of
the Requisition. On the contrary, if the Requisition has been verified
as not in order, the Eligible Shareholder(s) concerned will be advised
of this outcome and accordingly, the Board will not call for an EGM
and/or include the proposal or the resolution proposed by the Eligible
Shareholder at the EGM.

As regards proposing a person for election as a Director, the procedures
are available on the Company's website.
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The Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to
the Board in writing to its principal place of business in Hong Kong at
Suite 2903, 29/F, China Resources Building, 26 Harbour Road, Wanchai,
Hong Kong or such other means of contact as set out in the Company's
website from time to time.

For the avoidance of doubt, the Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the
original duly signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry
(as the case may be) to the above address, and provide the Company with
their full name, contact details and identification in order to give effect
thereto. The Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as required by
law.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company considers that effective communication with its
Shareholders is essential for enhancing investor relations and investors'
understanding of the Group's business, performance and strategies.
The Company endeavours to maintain an ongoing dialogue with its
Shareholders and in particular, through annual general meetings and
other general meetings. The chairman of the Board, the chairman of the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, and the Nomination
Committee or, in their absence, other members of the respective
committees, will make themselves available at the annual general
meetings to meet with the Shareholders and answer their enquiries.

Based on the above, the Board was of the view that the shareholders’
communication policy maintained by the Company was effective during
the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has a dividend policy in effect. The Dividend Policy sets
out the factors that the Board will take into account in deciding the
declaration of interim dividends, special dividends and final dividends.
The Dividend Policy aims at enhancing transparency of the Company and
facilitating the Shareholders and investors to make informed investment
decisions relating to the Company.

The Company does not have a fixed dividend pay-out ratio. The
declaration of dividends shall be subject to the discretion of the Board
and the approval of the Shareholders. The dividend that the Directors
may recommend or declare in respect of any particular financial year or
period will be subject to the Group's operations and earnings, capital
requirements and surplus, general financial condition, contractual
restrictions, capital requirements and surplus, general financial
condition, contractual restrictions, capital expenditure and future
development requirements, shareholders' interests and other factors
which the Directors may deem relevant at such time. Any declaration
and payment as well as the amount of the dividends will be subject to
the Company's constitutional documents and the relevant laws in the
Cayman Islands, including the approval of the Shareholders.
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Any dividends declared will be in Hong Kong dollars with respect to the
Company's shares on a per share basis, and the Company will pay such
dividends in Hong Kong dollars.

Any distributable profits that are not distributed in any given year will be
retained and available for distribution in subsequent years. To the extent
profits are distributed as dividends, such portion of profits will not be
available to be reinvested in the Group's operations.

No arrangement under which a Shareholder has waived or agreed to
waive any dividends was made by the Company.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

A copy of the second amended Memorandum and Articles of Association is
posted on the designated website of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk)
and the website of the Company (www.yinchenglife.hk).

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no change in the
Articles.

On behalf of the Board
Xie Chenguang
Chairman and non-executive Director
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The Directors are pleased to present this report and the Group's audited
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company is an investment holding company. The Shares were listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange on 6 November 2019. The
Company and its subsidiaries now comprising the Group underwent
the Reorganisation (as defined in the Prospectus) as set out in the
Prospectus. During the year ended 31 December 2023, the subsidiaries
now comprising the Group were involved in the provision of property
management services and value-added services.

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 1 to the consolidated financial statements. A review
and analysis of the Group's performance for the year ended 31 December
2023, a discussion on the Group's future business development and
prospect, and a description of the principal risks and uncertainties
that the Group faces are set out in the “"Chairman’s Statement”, the
"President’s Statement” and “Management Discussion and Analysis”
sections in this annual report. Save as disclosed in the section headed
“Directors’ Report - Subsequent Events” in this annual report, the
Company has no significant event after the end of the financial year
ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this annual report.

For details of the financial risks and the related risk management policies
and practices used by the Company, please refer to note 40 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group's results for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of this annual report. A financial and business summary of the
Group for the five years ended 31 December 2019, 2020, 2021, 2022
and 2023, respectively, have been set out on pages 8 to 10 in this annual
report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

During the year ended 31 December 2023 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Group did not perform any material acquisition or
disposal of subsidiaries and associates.
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SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

On 22 February 2024, having considered the business, financial and
cashflow position of the Group, the Board resolved the declaration
and payment of a special dividend (the "Special Dividend") at
HKS$0.124 per ordinary share of the Company. It is expected that the
Special Dividend will be paid in cash on or about Tuesday, 30 April
2024 to the shareholders whose names appear on the register of
members of the Company on Tuesday, 16 April 2024.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any material
events undertaken by the Group subsequent to 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the Group's property, plant and equipment
during the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in note 13 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

PROPERTIES

Particulars of the Group's properties held for investment purpose is set
out on pages 208 to 209 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARES ISSUED

Details of the movements during the year ended 31 December 2023 in
the Company's share capital are set out in note 30 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of Cayman lIslands which would oblige the Company to offer new
Shares on a pro-rata basis to the existing Shareholders.
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RESERVES

Details of the amounts and movements in the Group's reserves are set out
on pages 100 to 101 of this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2023, the Company's reserves available for
distribution to the Shareholders with an aggregate amount approximately
RMB353.0 million (2022: approximately RMB246.7 million).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the revenue derived from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers was less
than 30% of the Group's total revenue for the year, and accounted for
approximately 1.2% and 4.6% (2022: approximately 1.5% and 5.4%) of
the Group's total revenue for the year, respectively.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, purchases from the Group's
largest supplier and five largest suppliers accounted for approximately
23.3% and 36.8% (2022: approximately 38.5% and 55.1%) of the Group's
total purchases for the year, respectively.

At no time during the year under review, that any of the Directors, their
close associates or any Shareholder (which to the best knowledge of
the Directors who owns more than 5% of the Company's issued share
capital), has any interest in any of the above five largest customers and
suppliers of the Group for the year.

RELATIONSHIP WITH KEY STAKEHOLDERS

The Company understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with its employees, suppliers, customers and other
stakeholders to meet its immediate and long-term goals. The Company
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, there was no material and
significant dispute between the Company and its employees, suppliers,
customers and/or other stakeholders.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Details of the principal corporate governance practices as adopted by
the Company are set out in the section headed "Corporate Governance
Report” on pages 47 to 63 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

The Group is committed to operate in compliance with the applicable
environmental laws as well as protecting the environment by minimising
the negative impact of the Group's existing business activities on the
environment and complying with the applicable environmental laws and
regulations.

The Company's compliance with the relevant provisions as set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide in Appendix C2 of
the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2023 are set out in the
environmental, social and governance report which will be available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Group continues to keep itself updated over the requirement of the
relevant laws and regulations applicable to it to ensure compliance. To
the best of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief after having
made all reasonable enquiries, the Directors are not aware of any non-
compliance in any material respect with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group's business and operations for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

Details of the Company's compliance with the code provisions in the CG
Code are set out in the corporate governance report of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The Directors who held office during the year ended 31 December 2023
and up to the date of this annual report were as follows:

Non-executive Directors

XIE Chenguang (Chairman)

HUANG Qingping

YAO Ning (appointed with effect from 24 August 2023)
PAN Xiaohu (appointed with effect from 24 August 2023)
MA Baohua (resigned with effect from 23 November 2023)
ZHU Li (resigned with effect from 23 November 2023)

Executive Directors

LI Chunling
HUANG Xuemei

Independent non-executive Directors

CHOW Siu Hang
LI Yougen
MAO Ning

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EXEHRE

TEER
RRABRMNEEZLEERERFBERNE
FHRBLIEFSEMNPEERRE I —H

IRIBEER R R

AEBERNRABAERRAEEFHRIRE
Rza E%ﬁ%]ti_—ri@ﬁﬁfﬁf%}%%&}fﬁ’
it&UJEAM BRETERRMRERUKRRE

EO

KABREE2023F12831HIEEEBT £
MmIRAMRC2ANRIE - B R E ARSI
FreEl A RIREN BN SRR MIRE
i%ﬁ/ﬁiiﬁ¢ N B 48 Uk B2 B 22 T AR

BT ERRER
AEBEBRTEMBERNBEREREER
HME URBEREHR -BESFE—USESE
BT H s FR B K Fr{E » 81 E20238F12831
HEEE  EF5UAMBEETAERTEA
BETFHEBERAEIEAMBAERERREE
BERERTENEAIBER

BEAABETEEREATAMME TR
ZHBHNAFREFEE RS
BF

BE2023F 12831 HILFEREEARFHRA
HZ EMESROT

FRTES

HRIC (FE)

=5

wheE (520238524 HEEEZE)
BEEIR (H20235F 87524 HEEEZT)
SIREE (H2023F11523HEEF 1E)
K71 (B2023%F11523HEF1E)

WITES
ETER
HEE

BIFNITES
Aia
= RiR

SRINAEERIEAIRAE
2023 FEERE

67



68

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EFEHRE

In accordance with the Articles, at each annual general meeting, at least
one-third of the Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not less than one-third, shall
retire from office by rotation provided that every Director (including those
appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. In addition, any new Director appointed
by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold office only until the next
first annual general meeting of the Company after his appointment
and be subject to re-election at such meeting, whereas any Director
appointed by the Board as an addition to the existing Board shall hold
office only until the next first annual general meeting of the Company
after the appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election. Pursuant
to Article 108(a) of the Articles, three Directors, namely Mr. LI Chunling,
Ms. HUANG Xuemei and Mr. XIE Chenguang, will retire from the office
of Director and shall, being eligible for re-election at the AGM, offer
themselves for re-election at the AGM. In addition, pursuant to Article 112
of the Articles, two Directors, namely Mr. YAO Ning and Mr. PAN Xiaohu,
who were appointed by the Board as additions to the existing Board, will
retire from the office of Directors and will, being eligible for re-election at
the AGM, offer themselves for re-election at the AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Biographical details of all the Directors and the Company's senior
management are set out on pages 42 to 46 in this annual report.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received, from each independent non-executive
Director, a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers all the independent non-executive
Directors as independent.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACT

Each of the executive Directors has renewed a service contract, and each
of the non-executive Directors (except Mr. YAQ Ning and Mr. PAN Xiaohu)
and independent non-executive Directors has renewed an appointment
letter, with the Company for a term of three years commencing from 26
August 2022, which may be terminated by (i) not less than three months'
notice in writing served by either the executive Director or the Company;
or (ii) not less than two months' notice in writing served by either the
non-executive Director, the independent non-executive Director or the
Company. Mr. YAO Ning and Mr. PAN Xiaohu were appointed as non-
executive Directors with effect from 24 August 2023. Each of Mr. Yao and
Mr. Pan has entered into an appointment letter with the Company for a
term of three years commencing from 24 August 2023, which may also be
terminated by not less than two months' notice in writing served by either
Mr. Yao/Mr. Pan or the Company.
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Pursuant to the individual service contracts or, as the case may be,
appointment letters, each of the executive Directors and the non-
executive Directors is entitled to a fixed amount of emolument and
discretionary bonus to be determined by the Board. For the independent
non-executive Directors, pursuant to the then individual appointment
letters, each of them is entitled to a fixed director's fee.

All of the executive Directors' service contracts and the non-executive
Directors' and independent non-executive Directors’ letters of
appointment entered into between the Company and the respective
Director have been reviewed and ratified by the Nomination Committee.
None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the AGM has
a service contract with the Company (excluding contracts expiring
or determinable by the employer), which is not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than
statutory compensation).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had 11,270 employees (2022:
9,166 employees). The emolument policy of the Group's employees
is formulated by the Remuneration Committee based on their merit,
qualifications and competence. It is the Group's policy to compensate
each employee fairly and equitably. The Group has a system for
measuring employees' performance against agreed-upon goals with
specific performance standards. Performance discussion is carried out
on an ongoing basis and a formal evaluation is conducted at least once a
year to review employees' overall performance, achievements, and areas
in need of improvement. Salary review will be based on both the Group's
performance and individual performance and subject to the Group's
discretion.

The Group enter into labour contracts with all of its employees. The
Group offer to its employees competitive remuneration packages that
include fees, salaries, allowances and benefits in kind, bonuses and
pension scheme contribution, equity-settled and share option scheme
and social welfare.

The emoluments of the Directors are generally decided by the
Remuneration Committee and then recommended to the Board, having
regard to the Group's operating results, individual performance and
comparable market statistics. All the emoluments of Directors have been
reviewed and approved or ratified by the Remuneration Committee.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2023, no amount was paid
to the Directors or the five highest paid individuals, as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group. In addition, no compensation was paid to
the Directors or past Directors for the same period in connection with
the loss of office as a director of any member of the Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the affairs of any member of
the Group.

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and the five highest paid
employees of the Group are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 25 January 2021, the Share Option Scheme with terms complying
with Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules was conditionally approved and
adopted by the then shareholders of the Company. The purpose of the
Share Option Scheme is to incentivise and reward participants of the
Share Option Scheme who have contributed to the Group, and encourage
such participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
and its shares for the benefit of the Company and its Shareholders as
a whole. The participants (the "Participant(s)”) of the Share Option
Scheme are the directors and employees of the Group who the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute to the
Group. The Share Option Scheme was in force for a period of three years
commencing from 25 January 2021. After the expiration of the Share
Option Scheme on 24 January 2024, no further options shall be offered or
granted but the provisions of the Share Option Scheme shall remain in full
force and effect in all other respects. As at the date of this report, there
are 5,343,040 outstanding share options, representing approximately
2% of the issued shares of the Company as at the date of this report.
Details of the principal terms of the Share Option Scheme are set out in
the circular issued by the Company on 6 January 2021 and note 31 to the
consolidated financial statements of this annual report.

The number of share options available for grant under the Share Option
Scheme was 2,143,040 and 30,000 share options as of 1 January 2023
and 31 December 2023, respectively. The total number of shares of the
Company that could be issued upon exercise of (i) all outstanding share
options and (i) all share options that could be granted under the then
available scheme mandate limit as at 31 December 2023 was 5,313,040
shares and 30,000 shares respectively, which represented approximately
1.99% and 0.01% of the number of issued shares of the Company as at 31
December 2023, respectively.

The maximum number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the share options granted to each Participant under the Share Option
Scheme (including both exercised and outstanding share options) in any
12-month period shall not (when aggregated with any Shares subject
to options granted during such period under any other share option
scheme(s) of the Company other than those options granted pursuant to
specific approval by the Shareholders in a general meeting) exceed 1% of
the Shares in issue for the time being.

Options granted under the Share Option Scheme must be taken up within
28 days of the date of grant, upon payment of HKD1 per grant.
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As at 31 December 2023, there were a total of 5,313,040 outstanding
share options granted under the Share Option Scheme. Details of
movements during the year ended 31 December 2023 of share options

granted under the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

Name or category
of grantee

EEAMRSR
Bk

Date of grant "o

?}g&l‘ [=]::REU]

Exercise
period Notes (2),(3), (4)

?iﬁ%w*n*(ll NONU]

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EXEHRE

R2023FE1283 10 RIBEEREFE &EHET
H5,313,0401p M ARATERB AR FE o B ZE 20234
12831 HIEEE > RIEBREST SRR
feE > SErEEm T

Number of share options
44

Outstanding
as of
1January
2023

Granted
during the
period

HAERE

Closing price
immediately
before the
date of grant
of share
options
SRR
fElRERS

TEE  FIkTHE

Cancelled/  Outstanding

Exercised Lapsed asat

during the duringthe 31 December Exercise

period period 2023 price

i 120235

B,/ 128318
ESd

HREBTR LESE

Directors
#E

Li Chunling
FER

uang Xuemei

i
YS!

it T

18 May 2021
2021458188

14 April 2022
202248148

16 May 2023
2023%5816H

18 May 2021
202145818H

14 April 2022
2022848148

16 May 2023
2023558168

5years from the date

of grant
M T B a5
14 April 2023 -

13 April 2027
023F4B1LEE

2027448138
14 April 2024 -

13 April 2027
2024FLBVLEE

2027448138
14 April 2025 -

13 April 2027
2025F4B14BE

2027448138
16 May 2024 -

15 May 2028
2024F5816H

22028458150
16 May 2025 -

15 May 2028
202545816H

22028458150
16 May 2026 -

15 May 2028
2026F5816H

22028458158
5years from the date

of grant
AR T B RSt 5E
14 April 2023 -

13 April 2027
023F4A148F

2027448138
14 April 2024 -

13 April 2027
2024F4B14BE

2027448138
14 April 2025 -

13 April 2027
2025648148 F

2027448138
16 May 2024 -

15May 2028
2024558168

£2028%5815H
16 May 2025 -

15May 2028
202585A16H

£2028%5815H
16 May 2026 -

15May 2028
2026%5R16H

22028558150

320,000

100,000

100,000

100,000

160,000

46,000

46,000

48,000

120,000

120,000

120,000

61,000

61,000

62,040

320,000 4722 4.690

100,000 3.300 3.300

100,000 3.300 3.300

100,000 3.300 3.300

120,000 1.920 1.920

120,000 1.920 1.920

120,000 1.920 1.920

160,000 4722 4,690

- - 46,000 3.300 3.300

- - 46,000 3.300 3.300

- - 48,000 3.300 3.300

- - 61,000 1.920 1.920

- - 61,000 1.920 1.920

- - 62,040 1.920 1.920

Sub-total
it

920,000

544,040

1,464,040
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Number of share options
fBRiEEE
Closing price
immediately
Outstanding Cancelled/  Outstanding before the
as of Granted Exercised Lapsed asat date of grant
Name or category Exercise 1January during the during the during the 31 December Exercise of share
of grantee Date of grant "o period Metes 2.6)6) 2023 period period period 2023 price options
HE2023E il 1420235 SRR
ABALS ) 1818 ) Big/ 128318 ) BREL D
AR R B A= fIfEgrae-o-® AT HAERE HRETE ES HRITHE e AMESHE
Other employees and officers
HitEERSHRAR
14 grantees in aggregate 18 May 2021 5years from the date 1,120,000 - - - 1,120,000 4.722 4.690
ARUBERA 2021458188 of grant
HE A SiEsts &
18 grantees in aggregate 14 April 2022 14 April 2023 - 374,000 - - (10,000) 364,000 3.300 3.300
BRIBLEEA 202248148 13 April 2027
20234814 E
2027848138
14 April 2024 - 374,000 - - (10,000) 364,000 3.300 3.300
13 April 2027
2024F4R14BE
2027848138
14 April 2025 - 412,000 - - (10,000) 402,000 3.300 3.300
13 April 2027
202564A14BE
202748138
34 grantees in aggregate 16 May 2023 16 May 2024 - - 533,000 - - 533,000 1.920 1.920
BHMBEEN 2023558160 15May 2028
202458168
£2028558158
16 May 2025 - - 533,000 - - 533,000 1.920 1.920
15May 2028
202558168
£202855815H
16 May 2026 - - 533,000 - - 533,000 1.920 1.920
15 May 2028
2026558168
£2028F58158
SJupJ;total 2,280,000 1,599,000 - (30,000) 3,849,000
INF
Igtert 3,200,000 2,143,040 - (30,000) 5,313,040
Notes: MEE

(1) The share options were accepted by participants in a period after the date of (1)

grant.

(2)  There is no vesting period of share options for the share options granted on 18 (2)

BRRECESEENR N AR ABER-

1202165 818 A HBY AR R B A

122022454814 B IR HBY BB AR T B9 53 B K A R

510,00017 B B2023F 48 14H £2027

FLA1BHERBKRATITE;

510,00017 BE IR HE 12024 FE4 814 E2027

FLRVAERBRAITITE;

May 2021.
(3)  The vesting and validity period of the share options granted on 14 April 2022 are (3)

as follows: T

(a) 510,000 share options are vested and exercisable from 14 April 2023 to 13 (a)
April 2027;

(b) 510,000 share options are vested and exercisable from 14 April 2024 to 13 (b)
April 2027;

(c) 550,000 share options are vested and exercisable from 14 April 2025 to 13 (c)
April 2027;
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(4)  The vesting and validity period of the share options granted on 16 May 2023 are
as follows:

(a) 714,000 Options are vested and exercisable from 16 May 2024 to 15 May
2028.

(b) 714,000 Options are vested and exercisable from 16 May 2025 to 15 May
2028.

(c) 715,040 Options are vested and exercisable from 16 May 2026 to 15 May
2028.

The fair value of the share options granted during the year ended 31
December 2023 was RMB1,624,000, and was estimated as at the date of
grant using a binomal model with the terms and conditions upon which
the options were granted taken into account. For further details, please
refer to note 31 to the consolidated financial statements of this annual
report.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a total of 2,143,040 share
options were granted to the Directors and other employees and officers
of the Company (collectively, the "Grantees"). The exercise price of an
option granted under the Share Option Scheme shall be determined by
the Board in its absolute discretion but in any event shall not be less than
the higher of: (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange daily quotation sheets on the date of grant of options; (b) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of options; and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

There is no performance targets attached to the share options granted
to the Grantees. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to
incentivise and reward participants who have contributed to the Group
and to encourage participants to work towards enhancing the value
of the Company and its Shares for the benefit of the Company and its
shareholders as a whole.

Having considered (i) each Grantee's experience in, length of service,
contribution and dedication to the promotion of the Group's business;
(ii) that the Grantees are Directors or employees of the Group who will
directly contribute to the overall business performance, sustainable
development and/or good corporate governance of the Group; (iii) that
the share options will be vested in tranches over a period of three years
from the Date of Grant; and (iv) the historical practice of the Company
in granting share options without imposing any performance target,
the Remuneration Committee is of the view that, notwithstanding the
absence of any performance target, the grant of share options will
align the interests of the Grantees with those of the Company and
the shareholders of the Company, motivate the Grantees to devote
themselves to the Company's continued competitiveness, operating
results and growth in the future and reinforce their commitment to the
long-term service of the Company, and is therefore consistent with the
purpose of the Share Option Scheme.
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However, there is a clawback mechanism attached to the share options
granted to the Grantees. If a Grantee ceases to be a participant of the
Share Option Scheme by reason of the termination of his/her employment
or directorship on the grounds of serious misconduct, or has been
in breach of a material term of the relevant employment contract or
engagement contract, or appear either to be unable to pay or to have no
reasonable prospect of being able to pay his/her debts, or has committed
any act of bankruptcy, or has been served a petition for bankruptcy,
or has made any arrangements or compromise with his/her creditors
generally, or has been convicted of any criminal offence involving his/her
integrity or honesty or on any other grounds on which an employer would
be entitled to terminate his/her employment or directorship summarily
or at common law, the share options will lapse automatically and not be
exercisable (to the extent not already exercised) on or after the date of
termination of his/her employment or directorship. To the extent that
the Grantee has exercised the share options in whole or in part, but the
Shares have not been allotted to him/her, the Grantee shall be deemed
not to have so exercised such share options and the Company shall return
to the Grantee the amount of the exercise price for the Shares received by
the Company in respect of the purported exercise of such share options.

If a Grantee ceases to be a participant of the Share Option Scheme for any
reason other than his/her death or termination of his/her employment
or directorship on one or more of the grounds specified in the paragraph
above (excluding the transfer of employment from one company to
another company within the Group), the share options shall lapse (to the
extent not already exercised) on the date of cessation or termination of
his/her employment or directorship (which date shall be the Grantee's
last actual working day with the Group whether salary is paid in lieu of
notice or not) and shall on that day cease to be exercisable.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, a total of 30,000 share options
were lapsed.

Save for the above, there was no share options granted under the Share
Option Scheme were exercised, lapsed or cancelled during the year
ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company's subsidiaries, or their respective associates
had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely to compete
either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Company and its
subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DEED OF NON-COMPETITION

Mr. Huang Qingping, Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Wutong
Holding Limited (collectively, the “Controlling Shareholders"), have
confirmed to the Company of their compliance with the non-competition
undertakings provided to the Company under a deed of non-competition
entered into among the Controlling Shareholders and the Company
dated 21 October 2019 during the year ended 31 December 2023. Details
of such deed of non-competition are set out in the section headed
“Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the Prospectus.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the status
of compliance and confirmed that all the undertakings under such
deed of non-competition have been complied with by the Controlling
Shareholders during the year ended 31 December 2023.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

Other than the Directors’ service contracts and letters of appointment,
no contract concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the Company’s business were entered into or
existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTEREST IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE FOR PROVISION OF
SERVICES

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transactions”
and “Continuing Connected Transactions"” in this report and in note 37 to
the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report, there
was no contract of significance for the provision of services to the Group
by any Controlling Shareholder or substantial Shareholder or any of the
subsidiaries or companies controlled by any Controlling Shareholder or
substantial Shareholder, which subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS' MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed “Connected Transaction”
and "Continuing Connected Transactions"” in this report and in note 37 to
the audited consolidated financial statements in this annual report, there
was no transaction, arrangement, or contract of significance in relation
to the Group's business to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries,
its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies was a party and in which
any Director or any entities connected with a Director, the Controlling
Shareholders, the substantial Shareholders had a material interest,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year ended 31 December 2023.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2023, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the Company's chief executive in the Shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of SFQ) which were (a) required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part
XV of the SFO; (b) recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to
section 352 of the SFO (including interests and short positions in which
they are taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO);
or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the required standard dealings by directors of listed issuer as
referred to in the Model Code were as follows:

Interests in the Shares or Underlying Shares of the Company

22 B IR 17 L AE AR 17 B e it

EENEARS RAREHANEKX

W=

BRARESTHERZ I A FERERZ ) SE&
R A RIS BAZIR S M SRR 3 7F IR E
EIN RELE2023F1283 1B ILFEELLHE
RERNEMERD BECFHESHEEES
TRERE - TEREARENTE REAAQ
SR EE AN E AT BB AS I EEE
BRABFEINEMAEREH X7 28
REAGNTERINEEEEAER

EERTBTHABRAEAD R
Bl el G R kR
T /S 7K

R2023F12B31H B AR AT EEITH
AERERABKREE LR (E&ERFBH AP
E1&BIEXVER) R () RIEZHRPER
BIEEXVER S5 7 585> 2B B AN & 45 A B K Bt 32 Fr
MR RXRE ;(b)IREEHERBEKAS
IEBFEFEZELMANER KA (8
ERBESMPERAIZERBEXKRERE
ERRABBEBE 2R RRA) ; H()BRIEE
EFUERLIMETAZTSETIZNNST
EREMABSITHERABD MMz D&
HKEWT

Approximate

Number percentage of
of Shares/ shareholding
underlying interest in the

Name of Director Nature of interest Shares held MNote! Company
. L FR¥sRR{n 1R RN E] e
xSy EEME Giabr (=R BABE DL
Mr. Huang Qingping Interest in controlled corporation (et 81,033,152 (L) 30.33%
BET L T K B
Mr. Xie Chenguang Interest in controlled corporation (Nee? 9,493,398 (L) 3.55%
il W e 2R B R ()
Mr. Li Chunling Beneficial owner 1,428,000 (L) 0.53%
EEP LA grlue A (Note 4) (Ffi£4)
Interest in controlled corporation (Note®) 5,343,040 (L) 2.00%
RYEEEE R Y
Ms. Huang Xuemei Beneficial owner 514,040 (L) 0.19%
=T+ BRuEE A (Note 6) (Fifze)
Interest in controlled corporation (Ne¢”) 1,495,760 (L) 0.56%
B A )
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Notes:
1. The letter """ denotes a long position in the Shares held.
2. Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Huang

Holding Limited and Silver Wutong Holding Limited, respectively. As such, Mr.
Huang Qingping is deemed under the SFO to be interested in the Shares held by
Silver Huang Holding Limited and Silver Wutong Holding Limited.

3. Mr. Xie Chenguang is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xie Holding
Limited. As such, Mr. Xie Chenguang is deemed under the SFO to be interested in
the Shares held by Silver Xie Holding Limited.

4. Mr. Li Chunling had 980,000 share options under the Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2023, details of which are set out in the section headed "Share
Option Scheme" in this Directors' Report.

5. Mr. Li Chunling is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Chunling
Holding Limited. As such, Mr. Li Chunling is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Silver Chunling Holding Limited.

6. Ms. Huang Xuemei had 484,040 share options under the Share Option Scheme as
at 31 December 2023, details of which are set out in the section headed "Share
Option Scheme" in this Directors’ Report.

7. Ms. Huang Xuemei is the sole director and sole shareholder of Silver Xuemei
Holding Limited. As such, Ms. Huang Xuemei is deemed under the SFO to be
interested in the Shares held by Silver Xuemei Holding Limited.

Save as disclosed above and to the best knowledge of the Directors,
as at 31 December 2023, none of the Directors or the Company's chief
executive nor their associates had an interest or short position in any
shares or underlying shares and/or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO)
which would have to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests
or short positions in which they are taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or that was required to be recorded in the register
kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, or which are
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, pursuant
to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

Save as otherwise disclosed in this annual report, at no time during
the year under review was the Company, its subsidiaries, its fellow
Subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any arrangement
which would enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN SHARES
AND UNDERLYING SHARES

So far as is known to any Director or the Company's chief executive, as
at 31 December 2023, the following persons (other than the Directors or
the Company'’s chief executive whose interests are disclosed under the
paragraph headed "Directors’ and Chief Executive's Interests and Short
Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures of the Company
and its Associated Corporations” above) had an interest or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

E KRR IR KRR RS PR

BEAEERAATETETHAEMA P
2023F12831H U TFALT (REXTEER

ETHAERNEAAD REBEEBRM
RN REEESNEGERXE —BRIKE
MNESHAATEEBTHAEEFERIN
D EABRE R (D P A BN A AT IRIEE
H R EAEEHIE33618 B BN B LM #E

[
mEKE -

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

Number of interest in the

Name of Substantial Shareholder Nature of Interest Shares held ®Mote" Company
FR¥sRZ (R /N[
FTERRYR BIE gl gy Wy BA B2
Silver Huang Holding Limited (Nete?) Beneficial owner 77,137,472 (L) 28.87%
Silver Huang Holding Limited ®#2) Bom#EA A
IS EREERERBRAT Interest in controlled corporation 74,749,130 (L) 27.98%
Jiangsu Ruihua Investment Holding Group = #/AE#m
Company Ltd.*
Hongkong Ruihua Investment Beneficial owner 74,749,130 (L) 27.98%
Management Limited

BEAMERLEERFRAE BE@EAA
Mr. Zhang Jianbin (Note3) Interest in controlled corporation 74,749,130 (L) 27.98%
SRIENR S 4 ) REEE#ER
Silver Zhu Holding Limited MNete4) Beneficial owner 18,880,000 (L) 7.07%
Silver Zhu Holding Limited ®&® EREAA
Mr. Zhu Linnan (Note4) Interest in controlled corporation 18,880,000 (L) 7.07%
RARIR S 4 (a0 REEE#ER
First Beijing Investment Limited Beneficial owner 22,686,000 (L) 8.49%
F—IERKEBRAE BmEAA
Notes: MIEE
1, The letter "L" denotes a long position in the Shares held. 1, FLFEPRRIRR D BV EF & o
2. Mr. Huang Qingping is the sole director and the sole shareholder of each of Silver 2. =BT E#Silver Huang Holding LimitedHy R

Huang Holding Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the
Shares held by Silver Huang Holding Limited under the SFO.
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3. Mr. Zhang Jianbin holds 98.82% equity interest in Jiangsu Ruihua Investment
Holding Group Company Ltd.* which in turn holds the entire issued share capital
of Hongkong Ruihua Investment Management Limited. Mr. Zhang Jianbin is
therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by Hongkong Ruihua
Investment Management Limited under the SFO.

4. Mr. Zhu Linnan is the sole director and the sole shareholder of Silver Zhu Holding
Limited and he is therefore deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Silver Zhu Holding Limited under the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, the Directors were not
aware of any other person who had or deemed to have an interest or short
position in the Shares and underlying Shares which was disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO
and recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles and subject to the applicable laws, the Directors
shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the Company's
assets from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages
and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of their executors
or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason of any act
done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty or
supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts, except such (if any)
as they shall incur or sustain through their own fraud or dishonesty. Such
provision shall be in force from the Listing Date.

COMPETING INTEREST

Save as disclosed in the paragraphs headed "Interests of Controlling
Shareholders and their Close Associates in Other Businesses” in the
section headed "Relationship with Controlling Shareholders” in the
Prospectus, during the year ended 31 December 2023, none of the
Directors or the Controlling Shareholders or their close associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is interested in any business which competes
or may compete, either directly orindirectly, with the Company's business
nor any conflict of interests which has or may have with the Company for
the year ended 31 December 2023.

BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had interest-bearing borrowings of
RMB64.8 million, as compared with RMB118.5 million as at 31 December
2022. The Group's borrowings are mainly denominated in RMB.

The details are set out in “Management Discussion and Analysis -
Borrowings" in this annual report.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'S SECURITIES AND
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under section headed "Share Option Scheme” in this
Directors' Report, at no time during the year end 31 December 2023 was
the Company, any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of its
fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the Directors
or the Company's chief executive or their respective associates (as
defined under the Listing Rules) which has any right to subscribe for the
Company's securities or any of its associated corporations as defined
in the SFO or to acquire benefits by means of acquisition of shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate. No equity-
linked agreement was entered into by the Company during the year or
subsisted at the end of the year.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company'’s listed securities during the year ended
31 December 2023.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior
to the issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained sufficient
prescribed public float of not less than 25% of the issued Shares as
required under the Listing Rules from the period from the Listing Date
and up to the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual
report.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three Board Committees, namely, the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee, for overseeing different aspects of the Company's affairs.
All Board Committees have been established with defined written terms
of reference, which have been posted on the Stock Exchange's website
(www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company's website (www.yinchenglife.hk).

All Board Committees should report to the Board on their decisions
or recommendations made. All Board Committees are provided with
sufficient resources to perform their duties and, upon reasonable
request, are able to seek independent professional advice in appropriate
circumstance, at the Company's expense.
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ISSUE OF SHARES AND USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE
GLOBAL OFFERING

In connection with the Listing, on 6 November 2019, 66,680,000 new
ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.1 each were issued at a price of
HK$2.18 per Share and 199,990,000 new Shares were issued pursuant
to the Capitalisation Issue (as defined in the Prospectus). The total net
proceeds raised from the Global Offering (including the issuance of
Shares pursuant to the partial exercise of the Over-allotment Option),
after deducting the underwriting fees and commissions and other
expenses in connection with the Global Offering, was approximately
HKS131.4 million.

Details of the use of proceeds by the Group are set out in "Management
Discussion and Analysis - Use of Proceeds from the Listing” in this annual
report.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Yincheng International is owned as to approximately 37.26% by Mr.
Huang Qingping (being one of the Controlling Shareholders and a non-
executive Director) as at 31 December 2023. Yincheng International
is thus an associate of Mr. Huang Qingping and therefore a connected
person of the Company.

Yincheng Real Estate is owned as to approximately 53.11% by Mr. Huang
Qingping (being one of the Controlling Shareholders and a non-executive
Director) as at 31 December 2023. Yincheng Real Estate is thus an
associate of Mr. Huang Qingping and therefore a connected person of the
Company.

Save as disclosed below and in note 37 to the consolidated financial
statements, no transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance
to which the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director or an entity connected
with a Director had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group had entered into the following transactions during the years
ended 31 December 2021, 2022 and 2023 which constitute continuing
connected transactions under the Listing Rules and had on the dates
indicated in the table below entered into written agreements with the
relevant party to govern such continuing connected transactions:

FHEMER S
BE20214F 20224 2023412831 H L4
B AEECTIUTRS  HiRELHR
AR AR ER 7 WH T &RA=ERA
BERALSI L EERRUAEEZSRHERME
R

Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2023
HE023512A310
B iELE i PAIE] BEMER Rz BB FELR LEEZRREE
1. The PRC Trademark 1June 2019 (1) Yicheng Property Yincheng Real Estate agreed to grant - From 1June 2019 to N/A. Onroyalty-free basis. N/A. Onroyalty-free basis.
Licensing Agreement 20196818 Services; and Yincheng Property Services a 26 July 2023 TER -RRNFTRERE.  TER RENNTRE
HEHEERI AR (2)  Yincheng Real Estate non-transferable licence tousea  B2019F6A1HE HEo
(1) REMERS Rk registered trademarkin the PRC 2023%E7R268
() BhnE REHERSRTRANERE
TEERET A R E R
HER
2. The Deed of HongKong 26 June 2019 (1) The Company; and Yincheng Real Estate agreed to From26June2019to  N/A. Onroyalty-free basis. N/A. On royalty-free basis.
TrademarkLicensing 2019568268 (2)  Yincheng Real Estate irrevocably grant the Group a expiryof trademark ~ FBR-RENRFEEELE. FTER RENETEE
EABRERTILE (1) 285k non-transferrable and non- registration HEo
() ShE exclusive licence to use a 801968260 E
registered trademark in BREmERES
Hong Kong
REHERSTAIHER
FEERUAIEIRFER
B A A BRREMER
3 2022 Master Community 11 November 2021 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group agreed to provide repair ~ From 1January2022to Wil not exceed RMB11.3 million, ~ Approximately RMB0.3
Repair and Maintenance 20215118118 and on behalf of its and maintenance services to 31 December 2024 RMB12.2 millionand RMBT1.5  million
Services Agreement subsidiaries); and properties previously developed ~ 2022F181HZE2024F  millionforeachof thethree ~ #IARB03EET
WNEHBEERFER (2)  Yincheng Real Estate by the Yincheng Real Estate Group 128318 years ending 31 December
HiahE (foritselfand on behalf  which have been subject to wear 2024, respectively
of its subsidiaries) and tear throughout the years HE0UENENBLZEEE
() 28 REAGRA AEEFERHRMMEEELH ZERDRTEBBARY
RENBELRE) ; & HRNIZEAERNERMR N38ET AR¥I2158
() BubE BEASR  RERRERE TRAREI1SEET
ARANBAR)
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Agreement

i

Date of agreement

A

Parties to agreement

[ PAIE]

De

DIRECTORS' REPORT

scription of continuing

connected transactions Term Annual cap

8

BRMERR 2t BB FELR

EFERS

Transaction amount for
the year ended

31 December 2023
#ZE2023F12831H
LEEZRAEE

2022 First Master
Property Management
Agreement

NNFEE—HNEEES
i

11 November 2021
01511BNH

1

the Company (foritself
and on behalf of its
subsidiaries); and
Yincheng Real Estate
(for itself and on behalf
of its subsidiaries)
RAE (BEASRA
REMBAR) ; &
REHE BEAFR
RRENELD)

The Group shall provide the following  From 1January2022to  Will not exceed RMB24.8 million,

i

(ii)

(ii

property services to the Yincheng 31 December 2024 RMB26.8 million and RMB26.8
Real Estate Group: 022F1818E2024E  million for each of the three
property management 12A318 years ending 31 December
services, including but not 2024, respectively
HEWMWENRIAL=AEE
LERDATEBBARE
and security management PR EEVRYNGE I EES
services; TRARBWIEET

professional services,

limited to cleaning, gardening,
waste disposal, parking, traffic

including but not limited
to facility installation,
maintenance and renovation
services; and

) value-added services,
including but not limited to
community value-added
services, consultation services
forunsold property units,
and other referral and agency

services.

FEERARIEEBREUT

(i)

N
NEEERY QREETRR
AR EE EMEE FE.
RERZZEERY,

(i) B2 QEEFRIRE

(i

TR RERENES &

) BERE SEETRIHE
IREMRT REMEEHE
HRBFURAMEN RAE
MR#5e

Approximately RMB15.9
million

HARBIIEET

SR A SERRIS AR AR
2023FEERS
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EFERS
Transaction amount for
Description of continuing the year ended
No. Agreement Date of agreement  Parties to agreement connected transactions Term Annual cap 31 December 2023
HE2023%128310
B B3 ELEE [EFAIEY FRMERS 2 KR FELMR LEEZRAEH
5 2022 Second Master 11 November2021 (1) the Company (foritself ~ The Group shall provide the following ~ From T January2022to  Will not exceed RMB126.9 Approximately RMB10.8
Property Management 021E11B1H and on behalf of its property services to the 31 December 2024 million, RMB151.8 million and million
Agreement subsidiaries); and Yincheng International Group:  2022F181HE2024%  RMB148.5 million for each HARKEI08EET
WEE_HNEEE (2)  Vincheng International (i) property management 128318 of the three years ending 31
fgE (foritself and on behalf services, including but not December 2024, respectively
of its subsidiaries) limited to cleaning, gardening, HEWUENANHL=AFE
(1) A7 REEFREA waste disposal, parking, traffic BERDIFERBARS
REMBAR) & and security management 126988 ARH151.88
(2) REER BEESK services; BRRARBIBSEET
REEMBAR) (i) professional services,

including but not limited
to facility installation,
maintenance and renovation
services; and

(iii)  value-added services,
including but not limited to
community value-added
services, consultation services
for unsold property units,
and other referral and agency

services.
FERRHBHERERRENT

LN

() WEEERY SEETRR
N EE NS =N
DERZEEERE

(i) BXRH QEEFRIRE
TR REREHNRE R

(i) BERE AEETRIHE
EERE REMFEMHE
ARBUREMBNRAE
%o
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Compliance with the Listing Rules:

1.

The PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group
on a royalty-free basis, the transaction under the PRC Trademark
Licensing Agreement falls within the de minimus threshold
provided under Rule 14A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement and independent
shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

The Deed of Hong Kong Trademark Licensing

As the right to use the licenced trademarks is granted to the Group
on a royalty-free basis, the transaction under the Deed of Hong
Kong Trademark Licensing falls within the de minimus threshold
provided under Rule T4A.76 of the Listing Rules and will be exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and
independent shareholders' approval requirements under Chapter
14A of the Listing Rules.

2022 Master Community Repair and Maintenance Services
Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) calculated
with reference to the highest proposed annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master Community
Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement exceed 0.1% but are
less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Master
Community Repair and Maintenance Services Agreement is subject
to the reporting, announcement and annual review requirements
but exempt from circular (including independent financial advice)
and Independent Shareholders’ approval requirements pursuant to
Rules 14A.76(2) of the Listing Rules.

2022 First Master Property Management Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s) calculated
with reference to the highest proposed annual cap for the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 First Master Property
Management Agreement exceed 0.1% but are all less than 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 First Master Property
Management Agreement is subject to the reporting, announcement
and annual review requirements but exempt from the circular
(including independent financial advice) and Independent
Shareholders' approval requirements pursuant to Rule 14A.76(2) of
the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EXEHRE

B EHRA

PEHFRERAFAISRE

AR AR ERESR RIS
REEERTAEE hEBRER
HAUEREBETHXZRELETHRA
T4A THFRENRBREARZRZZ
EAREST EHARR S 14AEIE T FR
B FEER QS RBILRRMER
o

EABRERAFIZE

7S 5T P) A AR BY i A I 19 1R R Y 15 BF
REEERTAEE FEBRER
HAUZBETHRZRELEHRA
T4A THFERENRBREARARZRZZ
REARET EMRRIFE1LABIE TR
B FEER AT BREBIURR
HEEFRRE ©

2022 F T B AEIE R (R AR TS 4R thh sk

HARBE02NEHEBHEERFEEIRT
B EETRETR IR ESZE
ELrRAEN—ERZEBEAE DL
KiBBO1%ERIBHIEIN5%  HWIBE
EHREIE14AT76(2)1% 52022811 &
HERREREEHRZEENRETH
REABETRHFE AERFEEZRBR
T HERRETER (BEBILURE
BER) REBIREHIERTE

2022F E—IPMEEIBE S

HR2E20202F8 5 —MYEEEEH
ZETRETRZNESEZREE £
REABEN-—EBNZEERADLEEXB
#B0.1%E2 I 5%  BIRE LT
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5. 2022 Second Master Property Management Agreement

As one or more of the applicable percentage ratio(s)
calculated with reference to the highest proposed annual cap
for the transactions contemplated under the 2022 Second
Master Property Management Agreement exceed 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the 2022 Second Master
Property Management Agreement is subject to the reporting,
announcement, circular, independent financial advice, Independent
Shareholders' approval and annual review requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

For further details of the abovementioned continuing connected
transactions, please refer to the section headed "Continuing Connected
Transactions” in the Prospectus and the Company’s announcement dated
11 November 2021.

The continuing connected transactions (except for the granting of
trademark licence under the PRC Trademark Licensing Agreement and
the Deed of Hong Kong Trademark Licensing) as mentioned above
also constitute related party transactions of the Company under the
IFRS(s), details of which are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report. Save for the transactions
disclosed above, the other related party transactions as set out in Note
37 to the consolidated financial statements do not constitute connected
transactions or continuing connected transaction which require
announcement, annual review and independent shareholders’ approval
under the Listing Rules.

Pursuant to Rule T4A.55 of the Listing Rules, all the independent
non-executive Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected
transactions and confirmed that they have been entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) onnormal commercial terms or better; and

(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company's auditor was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on
Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) "Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with
reference to Practice Note 740 (Revised) "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor
has issued unqualified letter containing the findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed above by the
Group in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditor's letter on the continuing connected transactions of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2023 has been provided to the Company.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company's securities.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2023 have been audited by Ernst & Young, the auditor of the Company,
who will retire at the conclusion of the AGM and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
Ernst & Young as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

AGM AND CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The AGM will be held on Tuesday, 18 June 2024, the notice of which will be
published as soon as practicable in accordance with the Articles and the
Listing Rules.

The register of members of the Company will be closed during the
period from Thursday, 13 June 2024 to Tuesday, 18 June 2024, both days
inclusive and during which period no share transfer will be effected, for
the purpose of ascertaining the Shareholders' entitlement to attend and
vote at the AGM. In order to be eligible to attend and vote at the AGM, all
transfer documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must
be lodged for registration with the Company's branch share registrar,
Boardroom Share Registrars (HK) Limited at Room 2103B, 21/F, 148
Electric Road, North Point, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. (Hong
Kong time) on Wednesday, 12 June 2024.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this annual report.

By order of the Board
Xie Chenguang
Chairman
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ACTIVE COMMUNICATION TO INCREASE MARKET
RECOGNITION

The Company attached great importance to communications with its
shareholders, investors, financial institutions, the media and the public
in order to establish a more efficient communication channel between
the Company and the capital market. The Company believes that
effective investor relations will help reduce financial costs and improve
the liquidity of its shares, leading to a more solid shareholder base. The
Company therefore undertakes to maintain high transparency and to
release the financial and operation conditions and the latest news to
the market promptly and accurately in compliance with the principle
of having "accurate, timely, and transparent” information disclosure.
The Company strives to ensure that the market would have a deep
understanding of the Company and maintain high corporate transparency
in order to strengthen the investors’ understanding and confidence in the
Group, thereby creating the maximum value for the Shareholders and
other stakeholders.

In 2023, the Company's investor relations department worked towards
the Group's business development, and maintained close communication
with the capital market and the public by holding investor presentations,
media conference, investor reverse roadshows, and publishing press
releases and articles on the Group's WeChat official account.

The investor relations department will continue to enhance the quality
of communication with investors and maintain corporate transparency
through various channels such as the publication of annual report
and interim report, press release, and announcement, as well as the
Company's website.

To ensure easy access to the Company’s updated information, all of
our published information including announcements, interim and
annual reports and press releases, are posted on the Company's
website www.yinchenglife.hk in a timely manner. Interested parties can
also make enquiries by contacting the investor relations department
(email: ir@yincheng.hk).

SHARES PERFORMANCE IN 2023

As at 30 December 2023, the Company had a total of 267,152,000 Shares
and the closing price of the Shares was HK$1.99. Based on the closing
price as at 29 December 2023, the market capitalisation of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$531.6 million.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

T AZBENERS

Ernst & Young Tk gt EHEFR Tel E3E: +852 2846 9888
E i 27/F, One Taikoo Place ~ HAMIFEUFHEEI7I9X  Fax HH: +852 2868 4432
2 979 King’s Road Kh—EE2718 ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Yincheng Life
Service CO., Ltd. (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries (the "Group”)
set out on pages 96 to 207, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended 31 December 2023,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material
accounting policy information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants ("HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how
our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.

IR EERBARIBDZERKRER
(RHESHEAMEILLIERAE])

=
BMEEZEIE207HPTH RN & E R
BRAB(TERE) REWBRAR LU T4E
TEEH) WREMBRE ZEFHMBERE
BER2023F 12831 BNGREHHR T ERK
BE2023F12B31HLFEMNGEHRERE
theEERER GFEREEIRNGARE
MEBR > UREEHUHREWSE BREEX
BEHRER

HMRA 2SRV BERREBERES
EREEE (HE St ERIEEE)) B
BB PR B 7R &5 220 (TRIPR A 53R 5 2 A1)
BEEMR &M SE£E1R20235F12831
HGEH BRI RBEZALEEFENEGS
BHRERGERERE TEEBEER
AEBINIEERCZ ARE -

ERNEE

HMERES B g (TEE G5t
NE]) BENEEBETELN (BBETE
Bl ETEZ HMEZEENTRENE
EEEARS ZEMLEZFESHBIRE
FRIEREE) — B IEE— SR o RIEE B
G MR EEMNEE 578 ZFE (T5F
Bl HEMBLY BEE > wEB{TT
PR EMEBEREST - HMAERE HMATER
NEZRFEREMNBEMARMANERIE
H S o

N T

RREEZER

HMRBZFEISRBERMANEZAE B
HEPBGEMBERRNBEZRSEENS
B WEFHEEARMEZERGSMBR
KERHAERMZERRETREN - HMA
EHLSFFEREHEBHER - HAH T
KRFEENEZTPEI AR IZERH IR U2

EI=3=
B=e

SR ERTIE B R AT
2023 FEERE

89



90

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly,
our audit included the performance of procedures designed to respond to
our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including
the procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the
basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial

statements.

Key audit matter

MREERER

FEEZEE @

BPEBITERE (RN ERF T
EAELEE ) — PR EE > BFEA
IWEEBEMEAZEET - EIL > HANBIZT
FEERTARERSMBRERERERM
ERETE MR 2 BZREF - HPIITE
RRFPZER REEH TREEMRAITZ
BE REAMERGEMBREERER
ERREHETEE

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BANERNARERAREZER

Recoverability of trade receivables and due from related
companies

Vidl e Uil L N =T € =TTl 43

At 31 December 2023, the gross balances of trade
receivables and due from related companies were
RMB442,734,000 and RMB221,917,000 respectively,
of which the provision for impairment amounted to
RMB48,002,000 and RMB55,178,000, respectively.

$R2023512831H » B 57 FE W B FE W R B A B R 1B Y
URLEER D B B AR EE442,734,00070 & A RH£221,917,000
o EFRERE DRI A AKKLS,002,000c X AR
55,178,0007% °

Management assessed the expected credit losses on
receivables based on assumptions about risk of default
expected credit loss rates. The Group uses judgements in
determining the calculation model, making assumptions and
selecting the inputs for the impairment calculation, based on
the Group's history, ageing profile of the receivables, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at
the end of the reporting period.

EEERBEAMENREEREEBERNRRTEE
Wk IEBY RS B RsE - N E E st BRI FH R E R
FREZBR s ERENEABER  ~EEIREAEE
JE P50k ~ FEWGRIRRREC B ~ IRA TR UK IR & HAZRAY
A (L 5T F ] i o

Relevant disclosures are included in notes 3, 23 and 37 to the
consolidated financial statements.

TR BR B AR G B TSR MY 5E3 ~ 2337 °
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We obtained an understanding of how management
assessed the expected credit losses on receivables,
and evaluated the design effectiveness in relation to
impairment assessments;

A THREEBNA T ERERIEEREEHE W
BERRAEN GBI EZANEERIBIRST R

We assessed the credit loss provision methodology
adopted by management, and the estimated credit
loss rates by considering historical cash collection
performance and movements of the ageing of receivables,
the market conditions and forward-looking factors;

HMBEBETEBTREMERFERERRIANKRES S
B mIGIK R RAEERA R EEEERMNEEEIR
BREDERMGSHEEBEX ;

We tested, on a sampling basis, the accuracy of ageing
analysis of receivables prepared by management, and
checked the mathematical accuracy of the calculation of
the provision for loss allowance; and

FFIFe RS2 R S B IR E 4R R BV IR IR IR ER &Y D AT BY
EREN WIRE S BEREENHBERT &

We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer engaged
by management;

RPENEEERZENBYAEREXRMLEMNE
B BENREEE



KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key audit matter

HEEZER
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FREZEE @
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BRANERZNAEERREEZER

Recoverability of trade receivables and due from related
companies (continued)

FEMW R R B B B 1 B 7 B B9 BT B 14 (HB)

Impairment of goodwill

BERE

The Group recorded goodwill of RMB27,411,000 as at 31
December 2023 arising from the acquisition of business.

EEER2023F12831HiEEEmE AR27,411,0007T
TDELEBWEER-

In accordance with IAS 36, the Group is required to
perform an impairment test for goodwill at least annually
or whenever there is an indication that the cash-
generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated
may be impaired. The process of impairment testing for
goodwill is complex and involves significant judgements
and estimates in relation to the cash flow forecast,
growth rate and discount rate applied, which are based
on assumptions such as expected future market and
economic conditions.

REERESERE36S EEEARIEFHER
BRERENEEREELEBAUZEMErR ERMERET
AmERENH BEREANBREREE WIKBRER
TRERA ERRLMIRKREHZ B Rt
HUBIIFBAAR R T IS ARG B R 2 R /B %

We involved internal valuation specialists to assess
the appropriateness of the model and certain inputs
used to calculate the credit loss allowance adopted by
management by considering the nature and characteristics
of the amounts due from related companies;

HABRBEEER2 UG BEEBEWEABRAR
MIBNME RER SHMEEEBRANEEHERES
BRARETHATBEELEE ;

We assessed the adequacy of the Group's disclosures
in the consolidated financial statements in connection
with the impairment of receivables and due from related
companies.

IS 2 5 AR & B 75 3R 2k P L LKURR T8 e FE LK
BARFIRBENNERS D

We obtained an understanding of how management
assessed the goodwill impairment, and evaluated
the design effectiveness in relation to impairment
assessments;

HZATHREEBNMAFEHERE LHERRRET
BB PO R IEHIBYRR ST AN 5

We evaluated the assumptions used for impairment testing
for goodwill and tested the accuracy by taking into account
the relevant historical evidence supporting underlying
assumptions and comparing with orders on hand,
contracts signed, operating data and external market
research;

AT EARBEEREASANRR LEBFRZER
FRZRNEMETRBEUAKRIERFEIE - BEEEL
EEEN RIS ORI R
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Key audit matter

HEEZER

FAEELFEIE @)
How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNEZNAERERREZSER

Impairment of goodwill (continued)
B A R 1E (48)

The significant accounting judgements and estimates and
disclosures for goodwill impairment testing are set out in
notes 3 and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BERENRZERGFHE R G URBEEH NGRS
PSR MIEE3 K60
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We evaluated the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the independent qualified professional valuer and
obtained an understanding of the valuation processes
and significant assumptions from the management of the
Group and the valuer; and

HPFHEBILGEREEGEMBEN - FEENRE
B T TRAEEEEERGEMNGEREREXR
e 5 &

We also involved our internal valuation specialists to
assist us in reviewing the methodology and certain inputs
(such as the discount rate and growth rate) adopted on
the evaluation of goodwill impairment. We considered the
adequacy of disclosures for goodwill impairment testing in
the consolidated financial statements.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information.
The other information comprises the information included in the Annual
Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
otherinformation, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
reportin this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B RHEERS
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
‘I ZHENR S

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a
body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards
or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group's internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability
to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our
auditor's report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the
public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor's report is Lawrence K. W. Lau.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2024
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
roEmAHEMEEN@R

Year ended 31 December 2023
HE2023F12831HIEFE

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5E AR®TT ARETT
REVENUE Wr3d 5 1,973,200 1,712,934
Cost of sales HEMA (1,665,151) (1,453,580)
GROSS PROFIT EF 308,049 259,354
Otherincome and gains H A K W e 5 20,258 16,643
Selling and distribution expenses HE kDR (5,274) (4,804)
Administrative expenses TR (95,478) (93,650)
Loss on disposal of an investment HELEYENEE
property 6 (1,844) -
Fair value (losses)/gains on investment KREYENRTFE (B8
properties Ve & 14 (415) 206
Impairment losses on financial assets, net & RAE & R ER183 %8 6 (58,326) (17,214)
Finance costs PR A 7 (5,692) (7,279)
Other expenses Hhpasz (2,089) (1,843)
Share of profits and losses of: FEMERF) R 518
Associates BENT 18 175 (1,257)
Joint ventures HEhE 19 751 627
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BRAR AT 6 160,115 150,783
Income tax expense PRISHIFISZ 10 (36,559) (38,180)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FRiEF 123,556 112,603
Profit attributable to: TH B IERE -
Owners of the parent ISYNCTEZZE DN 116,819 106,734
Non-controlling interests JEIERR 6,737 5,869
123,556 112,603
EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE B AR EE#1FE AR
TO ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF EREF
THE PARENT 12
Basic (RMB) BEX (AR 0.44 0.40
Diluted (RMB) wE AR® 0.44 0.40

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
freEmREMEERER

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBEFTT
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Hith2mEma
Other comprehensive income that will REREER T BB DT
not be reclassified to profit or loss in BB M2 E N m -
subsequent periods:
Income tax relating to fair value gain on HENHEREHREME
disposal of a revaluated investment AT ER R B R
property during the year PSR 288 -
Exchange differences on translation of MEBINEFZERELE
foreign operations 10 1,540
Net other comprehensive income KRBT EEMDEE
that will not be reclassified to profit or BN EMEE P EE
loss in subsequent periods 298 1,540
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREMEE IS
FORTHE YEAR 298 1,540
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FRZEKEBER
FORTHE YEAR 123,854 114,143
Total comprehensive income THANLEEE B AAREE
attributable to:
Owners of the parent ISYNSTEZZ= N 117,117 108,274
Non-controlling interests El22) 6,737 5,869
123,854 114,143
SR TERBARAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RERMBATR

31 December 2023
2023F12831H

2023 2022
20234 20224F
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5E AR®TT ARHEFIT
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BB R 13 93,299 89,570
Investment properties KEME 14 131,039 50,794
Right-of-use assets EREESE 15 2,935 7,762
Goodwill EES 16 27,411 27,411
Intangible assets WmLEE 17 15,069 18,732
Investments in associates REERENKRE 18 6,871 5,649
Investments in joint ventures REELENKRE 19 3,885 3,584
Deferred tax assets RIEIRIAE E 20 30,976 14,720
Pledged deposits EEIRER 25 5,196 1,876
Total non-current assets IERENEERE 316,681 220,098
CURRENT ASSETS ME}EE
Inventories 78 22 9,761 10,558
Trade receivables B 5 EINFIE 23 394,732 342,083
Due from related companies FEWLRR B A BIFIE 37 166,739 200,964
Prepayments, deposits and other FENmIE e REM
receivables FEW R IE 24 112,651 100,473
Financial assets at fair value through BATEST ABRR
profit or loss (“FVTPL") ETHMEE 21 26,004 76,434
Pledged deposits EEIRER 25 2,716 2,101
Restricted cash ZRHIIRE 25 639 -
Cash and cash equivalents RENMREEEY 25 433,444 292,058
Total current assets BB EAEE 1,146,686 1,024,671
CURRENT LIABILITIES wRBAE
Trade payables B2 EIFIE 26 108,534 75,404
Other payables, deposits received HMEMRIE - BEBiEE R
and accruals fEsTE 27 291,574 287,983
Contract liabilities BHEE 28 392,218 338,194
Due to related companies FEATRREE A BIFRIE 37 7,950 13,146
Interest-bearing bank and HERITERREMMER
other borrowings 29 64,569 112,066
Lease liabilities HEa’d 15 17,798 7,822
Tax payable FE(IIRIE 35,830 20,682
Total current liabilities BB EAERE 918,473 855,297
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEFE 228,213 169,374
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEEBERREBAG
LIABILITIES 544,894 389,472

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

EAMBRRR
2023 2022
2023%F 20224
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
g ARETT ARBF T
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ERBEE
Interest-bearing bank and s EIRITIER R EMER
other borrowings 29 245 6,480
Lease liabilities HEar 15 41,012 8,987
Deferred tax liabilities RERIBEE 20 7,103 9,029
Total non-current liabilities IEmEN B B4R 48,360 24,496
NET ASSETS BEFE 496,534 364,976
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of BATHA ABGED
the parent
Share capital [RZN 30 2,387 2,387
Reserves B 32 440,645 322,300
443,032 324,687
Non-controlling interests JEFEpE e e 53,502 40,289
TOTAL EQUITY Rt 496,534 364,976
Mr. Li Chunling Ms. Huang Xuemei
FERRE =HEBRL
Director Director
EE EFE
SR TERBARAT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
Ay g il

Year ended 31 December 2023

HZE2023F 12831 HIEFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BATER AR
Investment Statutory Exchange Share Non-
Share Merger Share  revaluation surplus  fluctuation option Retained controlling Total
capital reserve®  premium* reserve* reserve* reserve* reserve* profits* Total interests equity
K&  iEEE  EREY
Bx  afiEk  ROEE  EfEE it fife* BRERE* RZE 4 FEREE AR
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TR ABKTRT ABBTR ARETm ARETR ARETR ARMTn ARETn ABBTR ABBTR ABETRH
(note30)  (note32) (note32) (note32) (note31)
(Ha0)  (Mas2) (W) (H3t32) (Hz£31)
At1 January 2023 ROBEIRIE 2,387 (13,286) 47,630 4,034 39,693 (6,736) 4,281 246,678 324,687 40,269 364,976
Profit for the year R - 0 0 - - - - 116,819 116,819 6,731 123,556
Other comprehensive income forthe year A2 ENE
Income tax relating tofairvalue gainon ~ EERHELSEERENE
disposal of a revaluated investment NATERGERER
property during the year Fsh 2 2 = 268 = = = = 28 - 268
Foreign currency translation-differences  SMEREEE @ = o © o 10 o - 10 - 10
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ EAZENEAE 2 - - 268 - 10 - 116,819 1, 6,731 123,854
Appropriations tostatutory surplus reserve BREEATREERE @ = = © 11,682 - - (11,682) - - -
Transfer investment property revaluation  HEYERBHRENE
reserve upon disposal of properties EftGE = = c (1,153) = = = 1,153 = = =
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 34) WiiE B AT (H534) = - - - - - - - - 2,39 23%
Disposal of  subsidiary (note 35) HE-RHBAT (H35) - - - - - - - - - 120 1,204
Capital contribution from non-controlling ~ JEERRETE
shareholders @ o o o o o o o o 3,505 3,505
Dividends paid to non-controlling interests i~ B AR RIE
ofa subsidiary HIRE @ = = © © o © = = (637) (637)
Fquity-settled share-based payment ~ LUEREENRNA
e - - - - - g 1228 - 1228 - 1228
Asat 31 December 2023 0035128318 2,387 (13,286) 47,630 3,169 51,375 (6,726) 5,515 352,968 443,032 53,502 496,534
*

These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of RMB440,645,000  * ZERBEREENGEEVBERAREZANEGES
(2022: RMB322,300,000) in the consolidated statement of financial position. B ARMELL0,645,00070 (20224 @ AR
322,300,0007T) ©
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
fraEmEEHR

Attributable to owners of the parent

BARRE AL
[nvestment Statutory Exchange Share Non-
Share Merger Share  revaluation surplus fluctuation option Retained controlling Total
capital reserve®  premium* reserve® reserve® reserve* reserve® profits® Total interests equity
REEf

Bx  GfEE ROER B TERREG ERRDEE RREER R B ERES  REEE
RMBODD  RMBOO  RMBODD  RMBODD  RMBODD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBOOD  RMBODD  RMBOWO
AEBTR  ARETR ARETR ARRTR ARMTR ARRTn ARRTR ARETR ARRTR  ARRTR ARETR

(note30) (note32) (note32) (note 32) (note 31)
(H#30)  (Ha32)  (E0) (&432) (H5831)
At T January 2022 RUNFIA1R 2387 (13.286) 74,969 4,034 28,746 (8276) 3317 150,891 22,78 30,154 272,93
Profitfor the year ERER - - - - - - - 106,734 106,734 5,869 112,603
Other comprehensive income forthe year ~ FAE 2 ENE
Foreign currency translation differences  SMEHBEZE - - - - - 1540 - - 1,540 - 1,540
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ ERZENERE - - - - - 1540 - 106,734 108,274 5,869 114,163
Appropriations tostatutory surplus reserve BEZAEREERE - - - - 10,947 - - (10.947) - - -
Acquisiton of a subsidiary (note 34) WENBAT (1) - - - - - - - - - 1,402 1,402
Capital contribution from non-controlling  JEERRETE
shareholders - - - - - - - - - 2,864 2,864
Equity-settled share-based payment ~ WEREELRAA
ERBAT - - - - - - 970 - 970 - 970
Final 2021 dividend declared BERIERERE - - (273%9) - - - - - (27339) - (273%9)
Asat31 December 202 HaENENE PR Y Y VAN 1 NN 7 RS /AN Y17 VY AV S "
R SERIE AR AT
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

:\\7r\ IE%/HLE%

Year ended 31 December 2023
HZE2023F 12831 HIEFEE

2023 2022
2023 20224
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5 ARETT AREFTT
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETBHFRRREME
ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax FRAR AR A 160,115 150,783
Adjustments for: M THIEIBEH AR
Depreciation of items of property, ME -BEERREBEEITE
plant and equipment 6&13 34,502 23,059
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEEINE 6&15 4,827 4,527
Amortisation of intangible assets W EESH 68&17 4,190 3,672
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEME -BERKEES
property, plant and equipment () 548 (177) 152
Impairment losses on financial assets, TREEREREFE
net 6 58,326 17,214
Finance costs MR A 7 5,692 7,279
Equity-settled share-based expense MUERGEEURN %
EEREX 6 1,228 970
Loss on disposal of an investment HEREYELRSE
property 6 1,844 -
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—FERB AR WS 35 (2,618) -
Expense on acquisition of a subsidiary WHE—RERE AT 495 -
Investment income KERA 5 (977) (435)
Share of profits and losses of associates FE(EHE A B R K E518 18 (175) 1,257
Share of profits and losses of joint FEIL S E RN K8
ventures 18 (751) (627)
Interest income FE WA 5 (1,489) (1,246)
Fair value gains on financial assets BERANEBES ABREN
at FVTPL TREENAABENRE 5 (4) (141)
Fair value gains on investment KEMEN R AEERT
properties 14 415 (206)
265,443 206,258
Decrease/(Increase) in inventories FEERL ) 815 (7,011)
Increase in pledged deposits BEIRIRFERUE (3,935) (2,633)
Increase in trade receivables B 5 FEURRIEIE I (62,172) (120,889)
Increase in prepayments, deposits and FANRIA 7 R HoAth
other receivables FEUR & A8 0 (11,195) (21,133)
Increase in amounts due from FE W B Bg: 75 R IE G A0
related parties (43,875) (57,828)
Increase in trade and bills payables B2 ARIE R & RGN 35,320 27,623
Increase in other payables, deposits H A =IE B &
received and accruals fEsH &AM 12,314 20,682
Increase in contract liabilities SHE/EEMN 53,864 42,359
Decrease in amounts due to FE (T BB A B sRIERL D
related companies (5,196) (3,975)
Cash generated from operations REMGRE 241,383 83,453
Interest received BUF]E 1,489 1,246
Interest paid [SANEIES) (3,818) (6,500)
Tax paid [SANEzN= (39,593) (39,637)
Net cash flows generated from RE TIPSR RE T
operating activities 199,461 38,562
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FERERER
2023 2022
20234 20224
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000

PysE ARBFT ARBTTT

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING REFBMIRERE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of items of property, BEYE HMEKRXREEER

plant and equipment 13 (38,543) (49,050)
Purchases of intangible assets EEELEE 17 (527) (5)
Purchase in investment properties BEREY = (4,997) (5,764)
Disposal of investment properties HEREYE 5,596 -
Dividends income from a joint venture REGERENREIA 1,127 -
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEE I B A E 34 (2,584) 5,941
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—FEHEAS 111 .
Advances to related companies ELEE NCIESE N (218,000) (370,000)
Recovery of advances to related Y [5] 1m0 A Bk~ BI RV ERRR

companies 212,258 322,950
Purchases of financial assets at FVTPL BERANBES AT

TREE (557,028) (636,848)
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BREZEANEES ABRNE
MEE 607,462 560,555

Investments in joint ventures and REERERGERTRE

associates (1,724) (1,637)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE - -BEREE

plantand equipment FrigsIa 342 136

Net cash flows generated from/(used in) R &E;EHFRE, FrA)

investing activities HEMEFEE 3,493 (173,722)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING METBRFREAE

ACTIVITIES
Dividends paid BORE (9,191) (14,483)
Capital contribution by the non- JEEREREE

controlling shareholders 3,505 2,864
Principal portion of lease payments HMEMRHNEEE 2 15 (2,149) (7,829)
Proceeds from interest-bearing bank FERITERREMERE

and other borrowings EQrE] 89,000 130,000
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BIEFT BRITER R EMER

and other borrowings (142,733) (221,465)
Net cash flows used in financing RMEEBFIAREREREE

activities (61,568) (110,913)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

RERENER

2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
g AR¥FT ABET T
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH HeRBEESEEYEM
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS GR) $%8 141,386 (246,073)
Cash and cash equivalents at REVNRERIBEEEY
beginning of year 292,058 538,131
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RERRERIAEEEY
AT END OF YEAR 433,444 292,058
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH RERREEB/BYEG DN
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
Cash and bank balances IRE R IRITHERR 25 441,995 296,035
Less: Restricted cash B SRSIRE 639 -
Pledged deposits [SEFERCE 7,912 3,977
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS EAEMBRRARKERERE
STATED IN THE CONSOLIDATED FrEFRERIREEEY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AND STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 25 433,444 292,058
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION

The Company is an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands. The registered office address of the Company is at Sertus
Chambers, Governors Square, Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay
Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman KY1-1104, the Cayman
Islands.

The Company is an investment holding company. During the year
ended 31 December 2023, the subsidiaries now comprising the
Group were involved in the provision of property management
services and value-added services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the
ultimate holding company of the Company is YINCHENG LIFE
SERVICE CO., LTD., whichis incorporated in the Cayman Islands.

Information about subsidiaries
Particulars of the Company'’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

RA TR M5t

31 December 2023
20235128318

REKREERER

KRB Rm—BREASEEEMAL
NERRAB - R ABINEMMEE
it Z&Sertus Chambers, Governors
Square, Suite #5-204, 23 Lime Tree Bay
Avenue, P.O. Box 2547, Grand Cayman
KY1-1104, the Cayman Islands ©

AABDB—EREZER AT - #E2023
F12ANBLFE  AEEBETHER
Bt R MY EEERT RILERT -

EERR ARBANERAT RRRE
RABBBHMEZRFZERAR B
et EEMMILAIAT -

BRI B ASNER
AABEEMBABRFBEUT

Nominal  Percentage of
value of equity interest
Place and date of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries establishment and place of operations share capital  the Company Principal activities
SEMBLIL, PRSIt R EREEG
MEAE B EAA R S 3t B EMRAEE REESLE FEERH
Directly held:
BERE:
Yincheng Property Service British Virgin Islands/11 April 2019 USD50,000 100% Investment holding
Holding Limited** REETREE2019F4811H 50,000%7% REER
Indirectly held:
MiEEA:
ERBERBERAT Hong Kong of China/ 30 April 2019 HKS1 100%  Investment holding
hEEE, 201948300 1787t REER
BRI LSRR SHERAT People's Republic of China (“PRC")/ UsD1,000,000 100%  Investment holding
(TRIm AR )* Chinese Mainland/ 14 May 2019 1,000,000% 7T REER
hE NRAME (TRED)
FEIPH, 201958148
BRI ERB AR AR PRC/Chinese Mainland/26 December 1997 RMB100,000,000 100% Property management
D, ThE P, 19978128268 N MEERE
100,000,0007
EREEZERBERBEABRAR™  PRC/Chinese Mainland/20 March 2013 RMB11,000,000 100% Housekeeping services
=S B R, 2013538208 ARE BHRE
11,000,0007T
R SERIE AR AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PATSERARMTEE

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Subsidiaries

MEAE

Place and date of incorporation/

establishment and place of operations

FEMAIL B tRE R
SEC S E

REREEER @)

BRAMBABNER (8

Nominal
value of
registered
share capital

sRAEE

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Company
EATIELS
RERSLE

Principal activities

TEEH

Indirectly held: (continued)
MiERsE (@
ERIEBEEBRAR
ERRERRBRAR
BRIBRYEEEFRAT
BRAREMECTRBRAT

AREEERIEERAT

[

4% (35 MERBBRAT

BREAEERIREBRAR

HARRABRREBRAT

MRECEZYFEEFRAT

BRBE R RS BRAT

TLERIRINR ot E TR IRB A R AT

TR SRIIR IR E RFB B R AT+

PRC/Chinese Mainland/10 January 2012

fhE,/ERM, 20124618108

PRC/Chinese Mainland/8 November 2000

fhE /B R, 20004611888

PRC/Chinese Mainland/25 December 2012

thE,/RE R, 201249128258

PRC/Chinese Mainland/15 August 2016

fhE,/ER M, 2016E88 158

PRC/Chinese Mainland/28 May 2018
FERERH, 201865528

PRC/Chinese Mainland/23 May 2007
FE RERH, 2007455238

PRC/Chinese Mainland/6 December 2019

fhE,/RER 2019412868

PRC/Chinese Mainland/10 March 2020
hEl,/SRER 2020838108

PRC/Chinese Mainland/15 January 2009

thE /R R, 2009418158

PRC/Chinese Mainland/19 February 2020

fhE /R R, 202028 198

PRC/Chinese Mainland/11 January 2021

thE /R R, 2021418118

PRC/Chinese Mainland/27 January 2021

thE,/RER 20214618278

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.

Annual Report 2023

RMB1,000,000
ARH1,000,0007

RMB11,000,000
ABH#£11,000,0007T

RMB500,000
AE#500,0007T

RMB11,000,000
ABH#11,000,0007T

RMB8,000,000
AR 18,000,0007

RMB3,229,600
NR163,229,6007

RMB10,000,000
AEH£10,000,0007T

RMB5,000,000
A RH65,000,0007

RMB12,000,000
ABH£12,000,0007T

RMB5,000,000
A RH65,000,0007

RMB10,000,000
AEH£10,000,0007T

RMB500,000
AE#500,0007T

100%

100%

10%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

51%

51%

51%

51%

Fitness services

i2=diles

Elevator maintenance
BiniEE

Property management

MEER

Landscaping services

A BERT

Engineering services

TR

Property management

MEER

Engineering services

TR

Catering services

BIRT

Property management

MEER

Decoration services
KBRS

Property management

MEER

Property management

MEER



1. CORPORATE AND GROUP INFORMATION (continued) 1.

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

AEREBEE @

BRAMBABNER (8

Nominal  Percentage of
value of equity interest
Place and date of incorporation/ registered attributable to
Subsidiaries establishment and place of operations share capital the Company Principal activities
SEMARIL PRI B R EATIENS
MEAR B EAL R & S sth B FEMMRAEE REBRDL FEEH
Indirectly held: (continued)
REEE (@
BRETEFEENEEE PRC/Chinese Mainland/10 April 1997 RMB500,000 100% Property management
BREEAE L ThE P, 19976 4A 108 AR500,0007% MEERE
ESRSYEEERRRAT PRC/Chinese Mainland/5 May 2023 RMB1,800,000 60%  Property management
Rl 20238585 H AR1,800,0007% MEEE
ERIERZEYERBARAE™  PRC/Chinese Mainland/3 September 2021 RMB5,000,000 100% Property management
Rl Pt 20219 A 3H AER5,000,0007% MEBE
BRERREREARAG PRC/Chinese Mainland/28 December 2021 RMB10,500,000 100%  Cleaning services
FE, RE R, 20214125288 AR 10,500,0007% BB
ERAAARMYERBARAE ™ PRC/Chinese Mainland/7 July 2020 RMB20,000,000 60%  Property management
Rl PYt, 20207 A 7H AR 520,000,000 MEBE
BRINEILBEARAR PRC/Chinese Mainland/25 August 2023 RMB1,200,000 60% Elevator maintenance

thEE /Bl 2023E88 258

ARH1,200,0007

* FASALIN is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise under PRC *
law.
**  These companies which registered under PRC law are wholly-owned xR

subsidiaries of the Company.

These companies which are registered under the PRC law are subsidiaries i

of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Company and, accordingly, are
accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of the Company's control over

them.

R A RE R EE R E MBI IS

B

ZERBPEEZREMOLD /A AT

W2ERBAR -

ZERBEAREERFEMO AR HEAE
BHIERENBEARNNEAR  FAltAR
BINZERB R ERIRMARY &M

|Z=UNSI

R ETERIBARAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
("IFRSs") (which include all International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards ("IASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB") and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They have been
prepared under the historical cost convention, except for
investment properties and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss which have been measured at fair
value. These financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB") and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively
referred to as the "Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2023. A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity),
directly or indirectly, controlled by the Company. Control is
achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the
ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current
ability to direct the relevant activities of the investee).

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting
rights results in control. When the Company has, directly or
indirectly, less than a majority of the voting or similar rights
of an investee, the Group considers all relevant facts and
circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an
investee, including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group's voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group
and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance. All intra-
group assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control described above.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a
loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously recognised
in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or
loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as
would be required if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The Group has adopted the following new and revised IFRSs
for the first time for the current year's financial statements.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to IAS 1
and IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies

Amendmentsto IAS8  Definition of Accounting Estimates

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform - Pillar
Two Model Rules

Amendments to IAS 12
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PATSERARMTEE

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that
are applicable to the Group are described below:

(a)

Amendments to IAS 1 require entities to disclose their
material accounting policy information rather than
their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together
with other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements. Amendments to IFRS Practice
Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements provide
non-mandatory guidance on how to apply the concept
of materiality to accounting policy disclosures. The
Group has disclosed the material accounting policy
information in note 2 to the financial statements.
The amendments did not have any impact on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items
in the Group's financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between
changes in accounting estimates and changes in
accounting policies. Accounting estimates are defined
as monetary amounts in financial statements that are
subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments
also clarify how entities use measurement techniques
and inputs to develop accounting estimates. Since
the Group's approach and policy align with the
amendments, the amendments had no impact on the
Group's financial statements.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies and disclosures
(continued)

The nature and the impact of the new and revised IFRSs that
are applicable to the Group are described below: (continued)

(c)

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction narrow
the scope of the initial recognition exception in IAS 12
so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences,
such as leases and decommissioning obligations.
Therefore, entities are required to recognise a deferred
tax asset (provided that sufficient taxable profit is
available) and a deferred tax liability for temporary
differences arising from these transactions.

Upon the application of the amendments, the Group
has determined the temporary differences arising from
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities separately,
which have been reflected in the reconciliation
disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.
However, they did not have any material impact on
the overall deferred tax balances presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position as the
related deferred tax balances qualified for offsetting
under IAS 12.

Amendments to IAS 12 International Tax Reform - Pillar
Two Model Rules introduce a mandatory temporary
exception from the recognition and disclosure of
deferred taxes arising from the implementation of the
Pillar Two model rules published by the Organisation
for Economic Co-operation and Development. The
amendments also introduce disclosure requirements
for the affected entities to help users of the financial
statements better understand the entities' exposure
to Pillar Two income taxes, including the disclosure of
current tax related to Pillar Two income taxes separately
in the periods when Pillar Two legislation is effective
and the disclosure of known or reasonably estimable
information of their exposure to Pillar Two income
taxes in periods in which the legislation is enacted or
substantively enacted but not yet in effect. The Group
has applied the amendments retrospectively. Since
the Group did not fall within the scope of the Pillar
Two model rules, the amendments did not have any
significant impact to the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.3 Issued but not yet effective international financial

reporting standards

The Group has not applied the following revised IFRSs, that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group intends to apply these revised IFRSs, if
applicable, when they become effective.

Amendments to
IFRS 10
and IAS 28

Amendments to
IFRS 16
Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Amendments to IAS 21

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture?®

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current
(the "2020 Amendments")’

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the "2022
Amendments”)’

Supplier Finance Arrangements’

Lack of Exchangeability?

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025
J No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for
adoption

Furtherinformation about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing
with the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture. The amendments require a
full recognition of a gain or loss resulting from a downstream
transaction when the sale or contribution of assets
constitutes a business. For a transaction involving assets that
do not constitute a business, a gain or loss resulting from
the transaction is recognised in the investor's profit or loss
only to the extent of the unrelated investor's interest in that
associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of
amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB.
However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IFRS 16 specify the requirements that a
seller-lessee uses in measuring the lease liability arising in
a sale and leaseback transaction to ensure the seller-lessee
does not recognise any amount of the gain or loss that relates
to the right of use it retains. The amendments are effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024 and shall
be applied retrospectively to sale and leaseback transactions
entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16
(i.e., 1 January 2019). Earlier application is permitted. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact
on the Group's financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (continued)

The 2020 Amendments clarify the requirements for
classifying liabilities as current or non-current, including
what is meant by a right to defer settlement and that a
right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period.
Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement.
The amendments also clarify that a liability can be settled
in its own equity instruments, and that only if a conversion
option in a convertible liability is itself accounted for as an
equity instrument would the terms of a liability not impact
its classification. The 2022 Amendments further clarify
that, among covenants of a liability arising from a loan
arrangement, only those with which an entity must comply
on or before the reporting date affect the classification of
that liability as current or non-current. Additional disclosures
are required for non-current liabilities that are subject to the
entity complying with future covenants within 12 months
after the reporting period. The amendments shall be applied
retrospectively with early application permitted. An entity
that applies the 2020 Amendments early is required to apply
simultaneously the 2022 Amendments, and vice versa. The
Group is currently assessing the impact of the amendments
and whether existing loan agreements may require revision.
Based on a preliminary assessment, the amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 clarify the characteristics
of supplier finance arrangements and require additional
disclosure of such arrangements. The disclosure
requirements in the amendments are intended to assist
users of financial statements in understanding the effects
of supplier finance arrangements on an entity's liabilities,
cash flows and exposure to liquidity risk. Earlier application
of the amendments is permitted. The amendments provide
certain transition reliefs regarding comparative information,
quantitative information as at the beginning of the annual
reporting period and interim disclosures. The amendments
are not expected to have any significant impact on the Group's
financial statements.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective international financial
reporting standards (continued)

Amendments to IAS 21 specify how an entity shall assess
whether a currency is exchangeable into another currency
and how it shall estimate a spot exchange rate at a
measurement date when exchangeability is lacking. The
amendments require disclosures of information that enable
users of financial statements to understand the impact of
a currency not being exchangeable. Earlier application is
permitted. When applying the amendments, an entity cannot
restate comparative information. Any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments shall be recognised as an
adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits or to the
cumulative amount of translation differences accumulated
in a separate component of equity, where appropriate, at the
date of initial application. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group's financial
statements.

Material accounting policies
Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the sum
of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred by
the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For
each business combination, the Group elects whether to
measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree that
are present ownership interests and entitle their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets in the event of liquidation
at fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree's
identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred.

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and
a substantive process that together significantly contribute to
the ability to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial
assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification
and designation in accordance with the contractual terms,
economic circumstances and pertinent conditions as at the
acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded
derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition
date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability is
measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised
in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that is classified
as equity is not remeasured and subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of
the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount
recognised for non-controlling interests and any fair value of
the Group's previously held equity interests in the acquiree
over the identifiable net assets acquired and liabilities
assumed. If the sum of this consideration and other items
is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss
asa gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for
impairment annually or more frequently if events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be
impaired. The Group performs its annual impairment test of
goodwill as at 31 December. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-
generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that are
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group
are assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit
(or group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation
within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with
the operation disposed of is included in the carrying amount
of the operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these circumstances
is measured based on the relative value of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Investments in associates and joint ventures

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term
interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity voting
rights and over which it has significant influence. Significant
influence is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or
joint control over those policies.

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights
to the net assets of the joint venture. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The Group's investments in associates and joint ventures are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at
the Group's share of net assets under the equity method of
accounting, less any impairment losses. Adjustments are
made to bring into line any dissimilar accounting policies that
may exist. The Group's share of the post-acquisition results
and other comprehensive income of associates and joint
ventures is included in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income. In addition, when
there has been a change recognised directly in the equity
of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises its
share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses
resulting from transactions between the Group and its
associates or joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group's investments in the associates or joint ventures,
except where unrealised losses provide evidence of an
impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising from
the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included
as part of the Group's investments in associates or joint
ventures.

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate or joint
control over the joint venture, the Group measures and
recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any
difference between the carrying amount of the associate or
joint venture upon loss of significant influence or joint control
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

When an investment in an associate or a joint venture is
classified as held for sale, it is accounted for in accordance
with IFRS 5 Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties and financial
assets at fair value at the end of each reporting period.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The
fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability, or in
the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous
market for the asset or liability. The principal or the most
advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into
account a market participant's ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
assetinits highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant
observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable
inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets foridentical assets or liabilities

Level?2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the lowest
level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole) at the end of the reporting period.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories, contract assets, deferred tax assets, financial
assets, investment properties and non-current assets/
a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset's recoverable
amount is the higher of the asset's or cash-generating unit's
value in use and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, a portion
of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g., a
headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-
generating unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and
consistent basis or, otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-
generating units.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment loss
is charged to profit or loss in the period in which it arises in
those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may
have decreased. If such an indication exists, the recoverable
amount is estimated. A previously recognised impairment
loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed only if there
has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined
(net of any depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment
loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. A reversal
of such an impairment loss is credited to profit or loss in the
period in which it arises (only if there are revalued assets
in the financial statements), unless the asset is carried
at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal of the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the
relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the partyisa person ora close member of that person's
family and that person:

(i) has controlorjoint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group oran
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a) (i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to Group or to the parent of the Group.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any impairment losses. When an item of property, plant
and equipment is classified as held for sale or when it is
part of a disposal group classified as held for sale, it is not
depreciated and is accounted for in accordance with IFRS
5. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to profit or loss in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where the
recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure for a major
inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the asset as
a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful
lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write
off the cost of each item of property, plant and equipment to
its residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Buildings 4.75%

QOffice equipment, electronic 9.5%-32.33%
and other devices

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease

terms and 10%-20%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.

An item of property, plant and equipment including any
significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in profit or loss in the year/period the
asset is derecognised is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

Construction in progress is stated at cost less any impairment
losses, and is not depreciated. It is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment when
completed and ready for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings
(including right-of-use assets) held to earn rental income
and/or for capital appreciation. Such properties are measured
initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the
reporting period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in the year
in which they arise.

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in profit or loss in the
year of the retirement or disposal.

If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-
occupied property becomes an investment property, the
Group accounts for such property in accordance with the
policy stated under "Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” for owned property, and any difference at that
date between the carrying amount and the fair value of the
property is accounted for as a revaluation in accordance with
the policy stated under "Property, plant and equipment and
depreciation” above.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at the
date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are subsequently amortised over the useful
economic life and assessed for impairment whenever there
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an
intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least
at each financial year end.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is
amortised on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful
life of 5 years.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Customer relationships

Purchased customer relationships are stated at cost less any
impairment losses and are amortised on the straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives of 8 years.

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract
is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified
asset fora period of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-
use assets are measured at cost, less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Buildings 1to 9 years
If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group
by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the
exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is calculated
using the estimated useful life of the asset.

When a right-of-use asset meets the definition of
investment property, it is included in investment
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is
initially measured at cost, and subsequently measured
at fair value, in accordance with the Group's policy for
"investment properties”.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease payments
to be made over the lease term. The lease payments
include fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable,
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a
rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the
exercise price of a purchase option reasonably certain
to be exercised by the Group and payments of penalties
for termination of a lease, if the lease term reflects the
Group exercising the option to terminate. The variable
lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognised as an expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments,
the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date because the interest rate
implicit in the lease is not readily determinable. After
the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition,
the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured
if there is a modification, a change in the lease term,
a change in lease payments (e.g., a change to future
lease payments resulting from a change in an index
or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to
purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of venues and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date and
do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets
to leases of office equipment and printers that are
considered to be of low value.

Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessaor, it classifies at lease
inception (or when there is a lease modification) each of its
leases as either an operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset
are classified as operating leases. When a contract contains
lease and non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the contract to each component on
a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental income
is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease
terms and is included in revenue in profit or loss due to its
operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating
and arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same basis as rental income. Contingent rents are
recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
incidental to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee
are accounted for as finance leases.

Investments and other financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, at fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset's contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's business model for managing
them. With the exception of trade receivables that do not
contain a significant financing component or for which the
Group has applied the practical expedient, the Group initially
measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case
of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs. Trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component or for which the Group
has applied the practical expedient are measured at the
transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in accordance
with the policies set out for "Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured
at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive
income, it needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest ("SPPI") on the principal
amount outstanding. Financial assets with cash flows that
are not SPPI are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group's business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows, while
financial assets classified and measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income are held within a business
model with the objective of both holding to collect contractual
cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are not held
within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace are recognised on the trade
date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on
their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest rate (EIR) method and
are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised, modified or
impaired.

The Group's financial assets at amortised cost includes
trade receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, and amounts due from
related companies.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive income
when they meet the definition of equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The
classification is determined on an instrument-by-instrument
basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled
to profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income in
profit or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably, except when the Group
benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost
of the financial asset, in which case such gains are recorded in
other comprehensive income. Equity investments designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income are not
subject to impairment assessment.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried
in financial position at fair value with net changes in fair value
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected to
classify at fair value through other comprehensive income.
Dividends on the equity investments are also recognised as
other income in profit or loss when the right of payment has
been established.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group's consolidated
statement of financial position) when:

. the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

o the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a "pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a passthrough
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred
asset to the extent of the Group's continuing involvement. In
that case, the Group also recognises an associated liability.
The transferred asset and the associated liability are
measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations
that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
("ECLs") for all debt instruments not held at fair value through
profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract
and all the cash flows that the Group expects to receive,
discounted at an approximation of the original effective
interest rate. The expected cash flows will include cash flows
from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements
that are integral to the contractual terms.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for
which there has not been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses
that result from default events that are possible within the
next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those credit exposures
for which there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, a loss allowance is required for credit
losses expected over the remaining life of the exposure,
irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly
since initial recognition. When making the assessment,
the Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the date of
initial recognition and considers reasonable and supportable
information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers there has been a significant increase in
credit risk when contractual payments are more than 30 days
past due.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the outstanding
contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset
is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of
recovering the contractual cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement of
ECLs except for trade receivables and contract assets which
apply the simplified approach as detailed below.

Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs.

Stage1 -

Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial assets
and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.

Stage?2 -

Stage3 - Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal

to lifetime ECLs.

Simplified approach

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group does not
track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at the end of the reporting
period. The Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the
economic environment.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and in the case of financial liabilities not at fair value through
profit or loss, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group's financial liabilities include trade payables,
financial liabilities included in other payables, deposits
received and accruals, amounts due to related companies and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (trade and other
payables, and borrowings)

After initial recognition, trade and other payables, and
interest-bearing borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well
as through the effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the effective interest rate. The effective
interest rate amortisation is included in finance costs in profit
or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

Afinancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the
terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such
an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of
the original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and
the difference between the respective carrying amounts is
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the statement of financial position
if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on
a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories, comprise goods and consumables which are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is
determined on the first-in, first-out basis, and in the case
of work in progress and finished goods, comprises direct
materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of financial
position comprise cash on hand and at banks , and short-
term highly liquid deposits with a maturity of generally
within three months that are readily convertible into known
amounts of cash, subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value and held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash
commitments.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at
banks, and short-term deposits as defined above, less bank
overdrafts which are repayable on demand and form an
integral part of the Group's cash management .

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be
made of the amount of the obligation.

When the Group expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate
asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain.
The expense relating to a provision is presented in profit or
loss net of any reimbursement.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage of
time is included in finance costs in profit or loss.
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period, taking into consideration interpretations and practices
prevailing in the countries in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

. when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss and does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

. where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss and does not give rise to equal
taxable and deductible temporary differences; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed
at the end of the reporting period and are recognised to the
extent that it has become probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply to the period when the asset
is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if
and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets and current tax liabilities and the deferred
tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same
taxable entity or different taxable entities which intend either
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis, or
to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously,
in each future period in which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When the
grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as income on
a systematic basis over the periods that the costs, for which it
isintended to compensate, are expensed.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when
control of goods or services is transferred to the customers
at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the
Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring the
goods or services to the customer. The variable consideration
is estimated at contract inception and constrained until
it is highly probable that a significant revenue reversal
in the amount of cumulative revenue recognised will not
occur when the associated uncertainty with the variable
consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the customer with a significant benefit of financing
the transfer of goods or services to the customer for more
than one year, revenue is measured at the present value of
the amount receivable, discounted using the discount rate
that would be reflected in a separate financing transaction
between the Group and the customer at contract inception.
When the contract contains a financing component which
provides the Group a significant financial benefit for more
than one year, revenue recognised under the contract
includes the interest expense accreted on the contract liability
under the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the transfer
of the promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a significant
financing component, using the practical expedient in [FRS
15.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(a) Provision of property management services
Revenue from the provision of property management
services is recognised over the scheduled period
on a straight-line basis because the customer
simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the Group.

(b)  Provision of value-added services

The value-added services includes decoration and
construction service, fitness service, sales assistance
services, catering service and other value-added
services. Revenue from decoration and construction
service, fitness service, engineering service quality
monitoring services, landscaping services are
recognised over the scheduled period of time because
the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group. Revenue from the
catering service and other value-added services is
recognised when the relevant services are rendered
and the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group.

Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis
over the lease terms. Variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as income in the
accounting period in which they are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the
effective interest method by applying the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the
expected life of the financial instrument to the net carrying
amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders' right
to receive payment has been established, it is probable that
the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow
to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured
reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received
or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer
before the Group transfers the related goods or services.
Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue when the Group
performs under the contract (i.e., transfers control of the
related goods or services to the customer).
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Contract costs (continued)

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories,
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs
incurred to fulfil a contract with a customer are capitalised as
an assetif all of the following criteria are met:

(a) The costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify.

(b)  The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity
that will be used in satisfying (or in continuing to
satisfy) performance obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the
transfer to the customer of the goods or services to which the
asset relates. Other contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Share-based payments

The Group operates share option schemes. Employees
(including directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees render
services as consideration in exchange for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions").

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. The fair value is determined by an external
valuer using a binomial model, further details of which are
given in note 31 to the financial statements.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the performance
and/or service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects the
extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Group's
best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group's best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and lead
to an immediate expensing of an award unless there are also
service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market or
non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting condition is
satisfied, provided that all other performance and/or service
conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as
a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified, if the original terms of the award are met. In
addition, an expense is recognised for any modification that
increases the total fair value of the share-based payments,
or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification. Where an equity-settled award
is cancelled, it is treated as if it had vested on the date of
cancellation, and any expense not yet recognised for the
award is recognised immediately.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

Other employee benefits

The employees of the Group's subsidiaries which operate
in Chinese Mainland are required to participate in a
central pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. These subsidiaries are required to contribute
a certain percentage of their payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the central pension scheme. The non-PRC employees
are covered by other defined contribution pension plans
sponsored by the respective local governments.
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2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, i.e. assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the
cost of those assets. The capitalisation of such borrowing
costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready for their
intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are expensed
in the period in which they are incurred. Borrowing costs
consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in
connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed
final dividends are disclosed in the notes to the financial
statements. Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed
and declared, because the Company’'s memorandum and
articles of association grant the directors the authority to
declare interim dividends. Consequently, interim dividends
are recognised immediately as a liability when they are
proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in RMB, which is
the Company's functional currency because the Group's
principal operations are carried out in Chinese Mainland.
Foreign currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the functional currency rates
of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical
cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value was measured. The gain or loss arising on translation
of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation difference on the
item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

2.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

GETBUR @
2.4 BREEER @)

EEND®S

EEARBE -BERNEESH
BREE MRFEERBDPJER
HETERRNHENE E) BIER
A —RERIERREFEEND
DA —EBEERHAHETE
BRmEE  AARERRES
BRETER -PIAEHMMBEMAE
BN ELERB S - ERA A S
RERMEBRESELNNER
HAp 7 o

k2

RPAKRENRKRERG LERER]
EREREDSEE RIKKARE
RUBREMERE -BARER
BRNEABERABREETE
ERNERDHKRE  KFEFE
H I Sk PR S o AL FRHEIAR
ERRHEEIREEINERAS

& o

s

AR AEEEEEBRPEAM
BT WM BRERUAEKRATNI
FEEBARBEZ - RAEBEET
BERZFESHNIINERZ T LR
BRESBEXZBNNEERER
EXMER AR

DUONESHENEREERARR
BEMBRINESRNERER
ME - HEENMEERERE
EREREN B m R o

DUSNES 75 BB AL T 4% FE 2 pl A A BR
IFEREERERRZ BVE
RIPE - LUOMNED B TR AR
BESENIFERBERERAER
AEBEEEMNEXRE - MEZL
ARBEFENIFEBEEEE
P E N ERREARIEEE AR
BEZFHNWENBEE NS
LR (BIA R BEE W@ NEER
Hith 2 U m st i8 m P s B IR
BRERERTDHREMER
Wak s iR P RESD) ©

SR ERTIE B R AT
2023 FEERE

139



140

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

2.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
2.4 Material accounting policies (continued)
Foreign currencies (continued)

The resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve, except to the extent that the differences
are attributable to non-controlling interests. On disposal of
a foreign operation, the cumulative amount in the reserve
relating to that particular foreign operation is recognised in
profit or loss.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities
affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group's accounting policies,
management has made the following judgement, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Property lease classification - Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based
on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements,
such as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic
life of the commercial property and the present value of the
minimum lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair
value of the commercial property, that it retains substantially all
the significant risks and rewards incidental to ownership of these
properties which are leased out and accounts for the contracts as
operating leases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-
occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property, and has developed criteria in making that
judgement. Investment property is a property held to earn rentals
or for capital appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers
whether a property generates cash flows largely independently of
the other assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a
portion that is held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and
another portion that is held for use in the production or supply
of goods or services or for administrative purposes. If these
portions could be sold separately or leased out separately under
a finance lease, the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions could not be sold separately, the property is an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property basis
to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources
of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that
have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are disclosed below:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on financial assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for receivables.
For receivables from third parties, the calculation of ECLs was
based on the Group's historical ageing profile of the receivables
and an adjustment of forward-looking information including
general economic conditions. The provision rates are based on days
past due for groupings of various customer segments that have
similar loss patterns. For receivables from related companies, the
calculation of ECLs was based on the credit risk characteristics of
the counterparty, referring to the yield to maturity of its defaulted
public traded bonds, or the credit rating of comparable companies
and relative probability of default. In addition, an assessment
of forward-looking information, including general economic
conditions was considered.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed
default rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a
significant estimate. The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes
in circumstances and forecast economic conditions. The Group's
historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic
conditions may also not be representative of a customer's actual
default in the future. The information about the ECLs on the Group's
trade receivables is disclosed in note 23 and note 33 to the financial
statements.

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in a
lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing rate (“IBR")
to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the
Group would have to pay to borrow over a similar term, and with a
similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar
value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment.
The IBR therefore reflects what the Group “would have to
pay", which requires estimation when no observable rates are
available (such as for subsidiaries that do not enter into financing
transactions) or when it needs to be adjusted to reflect the terms
and conditions of the lease (for example, when leases are not in
the subsidiary’s functional currency). The Group estimates the
IBR using observable inputs (such as market interest rates) when
available and is required to make certain entity-specific estimates
(such as the subsidiary's stand-alone credit rating).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Share-based compensation

The fair value of share options granted by the Group is estimated
using valuation techniques of the binomial model. The use
of valuation model requires management to make certain
assumptions with respect to selected model inputs. Management
estimates expected volatility based on the historical volatility of
the stock of comparable companies. Expiration date is the basis for
determining the expected life of an option. The risk-free interest
rate is based on treasury yield curve rates with a remaining term
which approximates to the expected life assumed at the date of
grant. Changes in these input variables would affect the amount of
expense associated with share-based compensation.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an estimate
of the expected future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amount of goodwill
at 31 December 2023 was RMB27,411,000 (2022: RMB27,411,000).
Further details are given in note 16.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimate of fair value of investment properties

Investment properties carried at fair value were revalued at each
reporting date based on the appraised market value provided by
independent professional valuers. Such valuations were based on
certain assumptions, which are subject to uncertainty and might
materially differ from the actual results. In making the estimation,
the Group considers information from current prices in an active
market for similar properties and uses assumptions that are mainly
based on market conditions existing at the end of each reporting
period.

The principal assumptions for the Group's estimation of the
fair value include those related to estimated rental values with
reference to the current market rents for similar properties in
the same location and condition, appropriate capitalisation rates
and expected profit margin. The carrying amount of investment
properties at 31 December 2023 was RMB131,039,000 (2022:
RMB50,794,000). Further details, including the key assumptions
used for fair value measurement and a sensitivity analysis, are
given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will
be available against which the deductible temporary differences,
and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses
can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Further details
are included in note 20 to the financial statements.
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OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group's
business which includes property management service income
and value-added service income by project locations for the
purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and
performance assessment. As all the locations have similar
economic characteristics and are similar in the nature of property
management services, the nature of the aforementioned business
processes, the type or class of customer for the aforementioned
business and the methods used to distribute the property
management services and value-added services, all locations were
aggregated as one reportable operating segment.

Geographical information

No further geographical information is presented as the Group's
revenue from the external customers is derived solely from its
operation in Chinese Mainland and no non-current assets of the
Group are located outside Chinese Mainland.

Information about major customers

No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under
common control accounted for 10% or more of the Group's revenue
for the reporting period.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS

An analysis of revenue is as follows:
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2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT AREET T
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEF SAIW 1,965,085 1,708,966
Revenue from other sources K EHE MR am
Gross rental income from investment REREMERKESHEN
property operating leases: KA EUA
Other lease payments, including HMBEEMNR SFEEEMR
fixed payments 8,115 3,968
1,973,200 1,712,934
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5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(a) Disaggregated revenue information:

5. Uim HAUA R @)
RERF MM
(a) i SERK

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®FT
Types of goods or services P e S AR S AR A
Property management services MEEER 1,536,723 1,368,638
Value-added services BERTS 428,362 340,328
Total revenue from contracts with REREPGHNWNZIEER
customers 1,965,085 1,708,966
Timing of revenue recognition it 2 e 220 Y R
Recognised over time M —ER BT 1,758,937 1,608,447
Recognised at a point in time R — R RLHE S 206,148 100,519
Total revenue from contracts with KBRS HNWNGIEER
customers 1,965,085 1,708,966

The following table shows the amounts of revenue
recognised in the current reporting period that were included
in the contract liabilities at the beginning of the reporting

TREATRARSHBAESA
RIBSHIDBIAGHEBZIR
W URFBERETMZ

period and recognised from performance obligations

satisfied in previous periods:

BHEEREZWmTEE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT ARETFIT
Revenue recognised that was RIBSHIIASHEERN
included in contract liabilities at (R
the beginning of the reporting
period:
Property management services MEEERS 312,669 280,708
Value-added services BERTS 25,525 13,628
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5.

REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

(b)

Performance obligations

Information about the Group's performance obligations is
summarised below:

Property management services

The Group recognises revenue in the amount that equals to
the right to invoice which corresponds directly with the value
to the customer of the Group's performance to date over time.
The Group bills the amount for services provided over time
and payment is due upon the issuance of a demand note by
the Group.

Value-added services

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time or over time,
when (or as) the Group satisfies performance obligations by
transferring the promised goods or services to its customers.
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2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREFIT
Other income and gains H AU A R Yz
Government grants B #EEh 13,451 13,609
Gain on disposal of a HE—FEWEARW G
subsidiary 2,618 -
Interest income FEUA 1,489 1,246
Investment income BEWA 977 435
Fair value gains on financial BAREBEFAB®Z
assets at fair value through EMEEZ ANEENR
profit or loss 4 141
Others Hith 1,719 1,212
20,258 16,643
R SERIE AR AT

2023FEERS



148

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. PBRIEATEF
The Group's profit before tax is arrived at after charging: REBENGRRADREF T EABFRUTE
BEERER:
2023 2022
20235 20224
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000
B EE ARETT ARHETFTT
Cost of services provided B MR A 1,120,131 961,619
Depreciation of items of property M -BERREEBEERE
plant and equipment 13 34,502 23,059
Amortisation of intangible assets W E RS 17 4,190 3,672
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {EFAEEENITE 15 4,827 4,527
Auditors' remuneration I GIIE 2,000 2,580
Employee benefit expense BERAMEX (BFEESFK
(Including directors' and chief REITEASHHM) :
executive's remuneration):
Wages and salaries TEMFHE 554,705 457,056
Equity-settled share-based Mg EEURMNAERRS
expense 1,228 970
Pension scheme contributions BEEFEIMHARLEERN
and social welfare 95,715 79,720
651,648 537,746
Lease payments not included in the Rt AMHEABGBHE
measurement of lease liabilities GEN=RNEN 15 8,786 6,396
Impairment of financial assets, net TREEREPHE 58,326 17,214
Changes in fair value of investment BEMERNEEES
properties (415) 206
Loss on disposal of an investment HE—BEREYERE
property 1,844 _
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of HEYE -BERKEES
property, plant and equipment B (e B8 (177) 152
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HE—RERE AT 35 (2,618) -
FINANCE COSTS 1. BB
An analysis of finance costs is as follows: MR A DI T
2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
b ARETT AREFIT
Interest on bank and other RIT R HMERF S
borrowings 3,818 6,500
Interests on lease liabilities HEaEMNE 15/(b) 1,874 779
5,692 7,279
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION

Directors'and chief executive's remuneration for the year, disclosed
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation,
is as follows:
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EERESITHRASEHMH

Rz EHRAFALBRAIF383(1)
(@)~ (b)~ () R (DF AT (REES
MERIER) RO B2 IRENEEE
EFEh&eTHASHMOT

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHF T

Fees W 737 692
Other emoluments: Hinil & -
Salaries, allowances and benefits in e R R EYER
kind 1,246 1245
Performance related bonuses* FRIFHMPTEAT 600 542
Equity-settled share-based expense MR EEURMN A
B 324 196
Pension scheme contributions and BEDFEHI K
social welfare HtEEFH 148 169
3,055 2,844

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus
payments which are determined as a percentage of the profit after tax of
the Group.

During the year, certain directors were granted shares and share
options, in respect of their services to the Group under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value amount of such
shares and options, which has been recognised in profit or loss
during the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive's remuneration disclosures.

* ERBETITESARERTEALNR
TEANREAERFERRENNE—A
DEEEE -

FRETEERRENLTERZRE
MIREARRE N ERES B ERRMD
RERE BERE—DHBHRINMBR
RKMF3 - ENEFERmTHEINE
RO RBERENANBESES A
EXFRBENEZERESITHRAERH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFEERR Mz

8. DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EEKMESTHRAEFHMN®@®
REMUNERATION (continued)
Certain of the directors received remuneration from the ETEENNREEZTAREMRAE
subsidiaries now comprise the Group for their appointment as B AENEEBZERBRE
directors of these subsidiaries. The remuneration of each of these UK ER 3 B o T SCEB 3R I B A B BA F5 ER
directors as recorded in the financial statements of the subsidiaries KA ZEESTSENEHM

is set out below:
Year ended 31 December 2023 HF2023F128310 L EE

Salaries,
allowances  Performance Equity-settled Pension
and benefits related  share-based scheme Total
in kind bonuses expense contributions remuneration

EE Migmass

MR ®EHE UROHAER  EE=HE
ik BET 1EAL i3k Hi a5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE¥TRT ARETT ARETR ARBTR ARETRT ARETR

Executive directors: HITEE:
- Mr. Li Chunling —ZEBEE - 824 300 218 9% 1,436
- Ms. Huang Xuemei —-EEiEZT = 422 300 106 54 882
Non-executive directors: FRTES!
- Mr. Huang Qing Ping —®BTEE 80 = = = - 80
- Mr. Xie Chen Guang —HENEE 80 = = = = 80
- Mr. Ma Bao Hua* —BRERE 73 - - - - 73
- Mr. Zhu Li* —RPRE 13 = = = = 13
- Mr. Yao Ning** —fE e 21 = = = = 21
- Mr. Pan Xiaohu** —BER e 21 - - - - 21
Independent directors: BUEE:
- Mr. Mao Ning —FERE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Li You Gen —FRR%E 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Chow Siu Hang —BAKERE 217 - - - - 217
1317 1,246 600 324 148 3,055
150 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
REMUNERATION (continued)

Year ended 31 December 2022

Salaries,

allowances

and benefits

Fees in kind

e

R

e BER
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEREFTT  ARETR

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

8. EFRRSITHASHMN @

HE2022612831HLEFE

Performance  Equity-settled Pension
related  share-based scheme Total
bonuses expense  contributions  remuneration

MEmEs

REEHE URONAER  BEEHE
e i) R et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR

Executive directors: RWTES:
- Mr.Li Chunling N - 824 % 101 84 1,291
- Ms. Huang Xuemei -&BEELT - i 260 95 85 861
Non-executive directors: FHiTES:
- Mr. Ma Bao Hua* —BRELL 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Zhu Li* —RNRES 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Huang Qing Ping —-HEFRE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Xie Chen Guang —BENEE 80 - - - - 80
Independent directors: BUEE:
- Mr. Mao Ning —FERE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Li You Gen —FRIRESE 80 - - - - 80
- Mr. Chow Siu Hang —BAKERE 212 - - - - 212
692 1,245 542 196 169 2,844

Mr. Ma Bao Hua and Mr. Zhu Li resigned as non-executive directors in
November 2023.

** Mr. Yao Ning and Mr. Pan Xiaohu were appointed as new non-executive

directors in August 2023.

Mr. Li Chunling is the chief executive officer and an executive
director of the Company. There was no arrangement under which
a director or the chief executive waived or agreed to waive any
remuneration during the year.

o ERELRERKRIFLENR2023F11AR
EIFAITES-

o pkE A R R 020238 B R
ERAEFNTES-

FEREER/ERTITEAEENR

TEF - RNERN BEESFARSTH
AEREHXFAEREEAHMBOZHE-

SR A SERRIS AR AR 151
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

The five highest paid employees during the year included two
directors (2022: two directors). Details of those directors’
remuneration are set out in note 8 above. Details of the
remuneration for the year of the remaining three (2022: three)
highest paid employees who are neither a director nor chief
executive of the Company are as follows:

9.

LamEiHmMES

FROoLRsSFHESEEMBES
(20225 : MBEE) - EFHMFE
N EXHWEB WA ATEE KT
ETBRAENREHEENHF =4
(2022%F : =%0) BV AFENEEIBUO0T ¢

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARHF T
Salaries, allowances and benefits inkind ¥ ~ 2B R EYEF] 1,242 1,359
Performance-related bonuses KIFHTEAL 499 461
Equity-settled share-based expense Mgz B UMD A ERR
iz 182 178
Pension scheme contributions and social ~ BEZ&stEIER LT EEF]
welfare 210 207
2,133 2,205

The number of non-director highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

MM F NI BENIFFESENRSH
MESHEWNT :

Number of employees
EEAH
2022
20224
Nil to HK$500,000 £ 500,000 7T 1
HK$500,001 to HK$1,000,000 500,001787c% 1,000,000 7T 1
HK$1,000,001 to HKS$1,500,000 1,000,001 751,500,000 7T 1 1
3 3

During the year, certain directors were granted shares and share
options, in respect of their services to the Group, under the share
option scheme of the Company, further details of which are set out
in note 31 to the financial statements. The fair value amount of such
shares and options, which has been recognised in profit or loss
during the current year is included in the above directors’ and chief
executive's remuneration disclosures.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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10.

INCOME TAX

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits
arising in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members
of the Group are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules
and regulations of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands,
the Group's subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The Group's
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong was not liable for income tax
as it did not have any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the
year ended 31 December 2023.

PRC corporate income tax has been provided at the rate of 25%
on the taxable profits of the Group's PRC subsidiaries for the year.
Some subsidiaries are qualified as small low-profit enterprises and
thus the first RMB1,000,000 (2022: RMB1,000,000) of assessable
profits of these subsidiaries are taxed at 5% (2022: 2.5%) and the
remaining assessable profits are taxed at 5% (2022: 5%) for the
year.

10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

FRisin

AEBBRAERREATETMR
KREFERB IHBELEIREZ
EERZEHENRFILERBEEHMMAT
BHR - BERHEHENAEBELHEEDN
R EER  AEBNRHEEEREE
BB ERMA KB AT B BM
TIPSR e REBPN EAEMAIL
B AB B EBMFTER  RAZA
S8 E2023F12HA31HILEEEL ER
EREETMERBRIEF

Hh R 1 2 P 1S AR 7D 32 25 52 B A9 R BB
BABNERERREN LU ZE25%
HREE - ETHBASWREA/NE
BAEEE AMZENBARRZE
MEZRREF FPE AR®1,000,0005T
(20224 : AR#1,000,0007s) J53%5%
(20224€F : 2.5%) MK > Mz T
FESR 35 F B #25% (20224 © 5%) AYFR

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT AREFT
Current tax; BPRAFRIE -

PRC corporate income tax RE (PRSI 54,453 43,663
Deferred tax IRIERRIE (17,894) (5,483)
Total tax charge for the year FRMRIEST H4EER 36,559 38,180

SRR ERRIEBIRAR
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10.

11.

INCOME TAX (continued)

10.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company
and the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax
expense at the effective income tax rate for each reporting yearis as

FRiF% (@

REREFE > xRF) REKER DM E
ANEEMAERZREZEERK
S HI BRI Al E A B A Y PR S AR B 57 22
RERMEREIAENMERNATH

follows: BRUE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBFT
Profit before tax PRI AT & A 160,115 150,783
At the statutory income tax rate (25%) ARSI ZE T (25%) 40,029 37,697
Lower tax rate for specific companies 75 1 RA RS E A B 1B MR AV ER
enacted by local authorities (ATES (3,464) (1,497)
Adjustments in respect of current tax of BB BIBNEARIBIEH A
previous periods ® 276 (209)
Profits and losses attributable to joint BEPERBME N EHET
ventures and associates K518 (218) 135
Expenses not deductible for tax GIEE 5 856 500
Tax losses utilised from previous periods BT HARI BN AR TS ESIE (515) -
Deductible temporary differences not BEFERERN NG F
recognised in previous years =% 36 41
Withholding taxes on distributable profits ~ FFEIHMIE AR Al B kEMTE
of the subsidiaries in the PRC n (942) -
Tax losses not recognised REESDINIER1E 501 1,513
Tax charge at the Group's effective rate BAEREBRRIAENIRE
=4 36,559 38,180
DIVIDENDS 11. KRR
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARBF T

Special - HK$0.124
(2022: Nil) Per ordinary shares

AR E —SREER0.12478 7T

(20224 : #m)

30,020 -

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).
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12. EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO

12.

ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic earnings per share amount is based
on the profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of

267,152,000 (2022: 267,152,000).

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per share
amounts presented for the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022:Nil) in respect of a dilution as the impact of the share option
outstanding had an anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per

share amount presented.

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share are based

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

BAREBEEDFAEARGLER

Bf

EREABAZZSEILERS AT
BREDZFEAEBGER N RZSER
INHETE80267,152,00008 (20224 :
267,152,00008) st & o

HRERITEBRESHRE27HNER
HEARBASEAE B ENE Rt
A EWE E2023F1283181EF
ErFE7NEREARNSIEELAE
(20224 : 4E) o

—

BREARBERANFAEDLER !

on:
2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFTT
Earnings gl
Profit attributable to ordinary equity BARstEEREARMNE A
holders of the parent used in the basic B & B M A ARG ET
earnings per share calculation 116,819 106,734
Number of shares
b eE|
2022
20224
Shares [o4%)
Weighted average number of ordinary ARt EESRERBANERN
shares in issue during the year used in BEITEBRMET I
the basic earnings per share calculation 267,152,000 267,152,000
R SERIE AR AT

2023FEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. V% -BERSE
Office
equipment,
electronic
and other Leasehold
Buildings devices  improvements
MAZRE B
FHRER
gF Hithfs2s HERE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT AR¥ETT
31 December 2023 20231283185
At 1 January 2023; 720231818 ¢
Cost s 23,838 82,376 45,077 151,291
Accumulated depreciation and REtMERAE
impairment (1,315) (37,257) (23,149) (61,721)
Net carrying amount REFE 22,523 45,119 21,928 89,570

At 1 January 2023, net of accumulated 720231818 R Es

depreciation and impairment NERHAE 22,523 45,119 21,928 89,570

Additions FE 801 17,083 20,659 38,543

Disposals HE = (342) = (342)

Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT = (11) = (11)

Acquisition of subsidiaries KB AE - 1] - A

Depreciation provided during the year ~ FERITEREE 6 (1,142) (18,930) (14,430) (34,502)
At 31 December 2023, net of 120235128310 MR

accumulated depreciation and MERRE

impairment 22,182 42,960 28,157 93,299
At31 December 2023: 2023128315 ¢

Cost A 2,639 100,820 64,48 189,907

Accumulated depreciation and REtERAE

impairment (2,457) (57,860) (36,291) (96,608)
Net carrying amount REFE 22,182 42,960 28,157 93,299
156 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.

Annual Report 2023
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AT ERRIIEE
13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued) 13. % -BERSZE @
Office
equipment,
electronic
and other Leasehold  Construction
Buildings devices  improvements inprogress Total
WAERE
EYEER
&7 HitfEE BERE fRIRE w5t
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

o3 ARETT  ARETT AR®Tn ARETR ARETH

31 December 2022 20224128318
At 1 January 2022: R20261818
Cost M 2,304 53,816 27,249 32460 115829
Accumulated depreciation and REHTERAE
impairment (315) (26,212) (14,104) - (40,631)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,989 27,604 13,145 32,460 75,198

At1January 2022, netofaccumulated 1202251818 Bk Est

depreciation and impairment WERAE 1,989 27,604 13,145 32,460 75,198
Additions AE - 30,295 17,828 927 49,050
Disposals HE - (288) - - (288)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEEME AR - 522 - - 522
Construction n progress transferred TEENEBLERT
to buildings 33,387 - - (33,387) -
Transfer to investment properties BEELEYE (11,853) - - - (11,853)
Depreciation provided FRTERE
during the year 6 (1,000) (13,014) (9,045) - (23,059)
At 31 December 2022, net of R202F128318 1B R
accumulated depreciation and TERRE
impairment 2523 15119 21928 - 89570
At31 December 2022: 12020128318
Cost Rk 23838 82376 15077 - 151,291
Accumulated depreciation and REHNERAE
impairment (1,315) (37,257) (23,149) - (61,721)
Net carrying amount REFE 22,523 45,119 21928 - 89,570
At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's buildings with a 12023128310 AEBREZFES
net carrying amount of approximately RMB21,542,000 (2022: ANE#821,542,00070 (20226 : AR
22,523,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities 22,523,0007T) WA TFEFEETF 5
granted to the Group. At 31 December 2023, certain of the Group's AEEERN—ARBITHERMEE R
office equipment, electronic and other devices with a net carrying R2023F12831H A EEKREFES
amount of approximately RMB8,540,000 (2022: RMB17,311,000) ANER18,540,0007T (20224F 1 AR
were pledged to secure other borrowings granted to the Group 17,311,00070) HEFTWAERE B
(note 29). FREREMERCIEF BEAEEE

RO HEAMEREHER (FaE29) °

SR A SERRIS AR AR
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 14. EME
2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
= ARBTT ARBETTT
Carrying amount at 1 January RIATBZEREE 50,794 32,971
Additions RE 88,140 5,764
Disposals HE (7,480) -
Transfer from owner-occupied KEEMEER
properties = 11,853
Net (loss)/gain from a fair value ARBERAENF (EBEH)
adjustment W b (415) 206
Carrying amount at 31 December R12B31HZEREE 131,039 50,794

The Group's investment properties consist of commercial
properties, residential properties and car park spaces located
in Chinese Mainland, and were revalued on 31 December 2023
based on valuations performed by Asia-Pacific Consulting and
Appraisal Limited, independent professionally qualified valuers.
The Group's chief financial officer and property manager decide,
after approval from the directors of the Company, to appoint which
external valuer to be responsible for the external valuations of the
Group's properties. Selection criteria include market knowledge,
reputation, independence and whether professional standards
are maintained. The Group's chief financial officer and property
manager have discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed
forannual financial reporting.

The investment properties are leased to third parties under
operating leases, further summary details of which are included in
note 15 to the financial statements.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's owned investment properties
and car park space with an aggregate carrying amount of
RMB40,008,000 (2022: Nil) without ownership certificates, in which
property certificate were under progress of filing.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group's investment properties
with an aggregate carrying amount of RMB25,367,000 (2022:
RMB34,752,000) were pledged to secure general banking facilities
granted to the Group (note 29).
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14.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

M IRRMIEE
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE @
Fair value hierarchy RRBEESR
The following table illustrates the fair value measurement TERMAPRERKEWEL AEBES
hierarchy of the Group's investment properties: BE&K:

Recurring fair value measurement for

REMERAEEE

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using

1?2023512H31 B RAAEBENE

Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) ((9)) (1K)

DN EX

A% NIk

WA BARE
E=H) BEB=®) #&5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AER®TT AR¥TR ARBTR ARETR

Commercial properties [EEZY/ES - - 87,364 87,364
Residential properties and car park FEYERISEN

spaces = = 43,675 43,675

- - 131,039 131,039

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using

R2022F 1283 BRAREEHNE

Quoted prices Significant Significant

in active observable  unobservable

markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total

N BX BX

BT IS GIf k= RE[ERR

wE AR WA IS
&E—H (€t ) E=) Kt
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT ARETRT ARETT ARETR

Recurring fair value measurement for

REMAREENE

Commercial properties [SEXYES - - 38,289 38,289
Residential properties FEYE - - 12,505 12,505
- - 50,794 50,794
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements RER FE—REAE"R2EAEEAD
between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3 BEFENER  TREARFHHE=
(2022: Nil). 4R (20224 1 48) ©
R SERIE AR AT
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14.

160

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Reconciliation of fair value measurements categorised within Level
3 of the fair value hierarchy:

14.

KREWME @

NREERER @)
DENRRAABEFREAZT=ZHRNLA
BEFENHEK:

Residential

properties

Commercial and car park

properties spaces

[SEZY/ES FEME

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETTT ARETT

Carrying amount 1 January 2022 20221 B1EEREE 20,466 12,505

Transfer from an owner-occupied property 7% 5 B R 11,853 -

Additions RE 5,763 -
Fair value changes recognised in RiBm N AN EEEE

profit or loss 207 -
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 and 7220225128 31H X%

1 January 2023 2023F1B1HMEREE 38,289 12,505
Additions hE 49,191 38,949
Disposals HE - (7,480)
Fair value changes recognised in RIEFEIN AN BEEE)

profit or loss (116) (299)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 2023F12831HMEREE 87,364 43,675
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14.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the key
inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

14. REYE @)

AREERR @

TXBRENDEEEEBOGEERN
REZBAEHRE :

Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs Range or weighted average

fHEIR EXFABRRBAE

HELMETIIH
2023 2022

2023F 20224

Commercial properties Income capitalisation method Estimated rental value RMB31~219 RMB52~223
i N _(persg.m. and per month) _ B
EESYES WABRIES % st EE BYAKRER) ARBNENIT ARES2ZE2237T

Capitalisation rate

BEAfEX

Commercial properties Comparison method Estimated unit price RMB16,604 RMB23,716
- A(B:MBFEers?.m.) \ ~202,000 ~208,100
EESYES EEBUE S EUER BYARARE)  ARMIGULE AR T16E
202,0007% 208,1007T
Residential properties Income capitalisation method Estimated rental value RMB48~61 RMB48
‘ . . (persg.m. and per month) ‘ _ o
[ERY/ES WABRIE fhsrREE (BTAKKRER) ARHBLBESTT ARH48TT

Capitalisation rate

EZ.N[ES
Residential properties Comparison method Estimated unit price (RMB per sq.m.) _NA RMB30,200
FEME EEBOE L BAER BIARARE BB ARK30.2007
Car park spaces Comparison method Market unit price (RMB per lot) RMB34,299 NA
~119,213
R EEBUE L BAERE BTARARE) AE%%%%’ZZ‘E TER
21370

The fair value of commercial properties and residential properties
are determined by the income capitalisation method by considering
the net rental income of the properties derived from the existing
leases and/or achievable in the existing market with due allowance
for the reversionary income potential of the leases, which have
been then capitalised to determine the fair value at an appropriate
capitalisation rate. Where appropriate, reference has also been
made to the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market.

HAEMNEREEWERABEUERA
BAREHZEE HPhERRAHEEE
£/ HERETH LIBRNY
FHEEWA TR TBEEEEEERNA
BB RBREEARL A
ENELATCXEEARBE -BR2E
HEET ISP HERNEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATSERRMISE
14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 14. REWE @
Fair value hierarchy (continued) RREERBR @
A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value HEAEAENBEEEMD Ogl) BEH
would result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of BEMENREBERBZIGM R o
the investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the B-BEARCENEZIEMN (R K&
capitalisation rate in isolation would result in a significant decrease REEMEN I AEERE /KL (F
(increase) in the fair value of the investment properties. m) e
The fair value of the residential properties, commercial properties ETEVE BEVEREEUNAIAE
and car park spaces are determined by using the comparison B ERLEBAETE WA SZ RS
method, and with reference to sales transactions as available in SRENHEERZ  BEEMINTE
the relevant market, comparable properties in close proximity have EEmE TRUERNEERERER
been selected and adjustments have been made to account for the HNEEFEHFRE-
difference in factors such as location and property size.
The higher the estimated unit price, the higher the fair value of the L EUBEERE REVMENAAE
investment properties is. BRlE-o
15. LEASES 15. #§
The Group as a lessee TEBEREHEA
The Group has leased certain fitness buildings for its operations. AEBEHEEETREEBF -HERH
The lease terms are normally two years to ten years. —MAMEETFo
The Group leases certain commercial properties located in Chinese AEERFE=FHEEURPEAMB
Mainland from third party on fixed periods covering ten years, of ETEmEYE BEHEBEATE HA
which held for rental yields and not occupied by the Group are FEBFAENERMEE WA EREA
recognised as investment properties (Note 14). MY EwERAREYE (f5E14) o
(a) Right-of-use assets (a) FREEE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and RER AEBEFHAEREERE
the movements during the year are as follows: BEREHUT
2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
MEE ARBFT
Carryingamountat 1 January  F1E1HZEREIE 5,054
Additions RE 7,235
Depreciation charge MEER 6 (4,527)
Carrying amount at R12B31HZREE
31 December 2,935 7,762
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

15. #HE @)

TEBFESEEAN @
(b) HERME

RER HEERREHREE

during the year are as follows: wmr
2023 2022
20235 20224
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5F AR®TT ARETFT
Carryingamountat 1 January  F1B1HZEREE 16,809 16,624
New leases MBS 42,276 7,235
Accretion of interest FRESF] 2
recognised during the year 7 1,874 779
Payments SANEEE (2,149) (7,829)
Carrying amount at R12B31HZEREE
31 December 58,810 16,809
Analysed into: DA -
Current portion BPEAEL 17,798 7,822
Non-current portion JEBNERER 41,012 8,987

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 39
to the financial statements.

The Group has applied the practical expedient to all eligible
rent concessions granted by the lessors for leases of certain
plantand equipment during the year.

HEESENEIAA RN ER
RIFFEIOWEE ©

AEERFADHHBEARHA
FREEERESRREBERE
B ABEETRE k&

SR A SERRIS AR AR
2023FEERS
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15. LEASES (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to

leases are as follows:

15. #HE @

FEEEREBA @

(c) MIBERIBmFETRITRIERT N
T

2023 2022
20234 20224
Note RMB'000 RMB'000
B 5% AREETT AREF T
Interests on lease liabilities HESEHNE 1,874 779
Depreciation charge of FRAREENERS
right-of-use assets 4,827 4,527
Expense relating to short-term S ERBEEEE
leases and low-value assets BRNMEXZ GTAHE
(included in cost of sales) B A) 6 8,786 6,396
Total amount recognised in P8 m s R R IRAEER
profit or loss 15,487 11,702
The Group as a lessor FEBREAHEA

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting
of commercial properties and residential properties in Chinese
Mainland under operating lease arrangements. The terms of the
leases generally require the tenants to pay guarantee deposits
and provide for periodic rent adjustments according to the then
prevailing market conditions. Rental income recognised by the
Group during the year was RMB8,115,000 (2022: RMB3,968,000),
details of which are included in note 5 to the financial statements.

At 31 December 2023, the undiscounted lease payments receivable
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating

leases with its tenants are as follows:

RBEEEEE R FEBRPERAM
HERBEYERETEYFAEMRNR
B (faE14) FHERRBEES

BAXMERES LIRBERNTS
BREHRRAEBEES FEBNFERHER
RIFEE U A AR8,115,000 7T (2022
F . AR3,968,00070) » He¥ 155t ARt

BIRARMIEES

72023412831 B » IR BB S RO
SHATE TR > A 5 Y S SR H R AR IR

RAENRNOT ¢

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB'000 RMB'000

AREETT AREFIT

Within one year R—%FR 11,322 4,324
After one year but within two years N—FBEMERN 10,860 3,965
After two years but within three years KRFEER=FA 9,905 3,322
After three years but within four years R=FBROFER 8,666 2,955
After four years but within five years RUEBRBERN 7,420 2,994
After five years REF® 13,144 5,471
61,317 23,031
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFEERR Mz
16. GOODWILL 16. BHE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETFT ARET T

Carrying amount at 1 January P1B1BEMNEREE 27,411
Cost D% = -
Accumulated impairment KEtBE = -

Net carrying amount at 31 December 12831 BEREDEE 27,411 27,411

Impairment testing of goodwill SRRy

Goodwill acquired through business combinations is allocated EHEHZSMHERNE E R A EA

to the following two cash-generating units ("CGUs") for the AMEsPEEU TMEREGEEEN

impairment testing. (MREEEEB) o

The recoverable amounts of these CGUs have been determined ZEREEFBUNTTWEIETEETLIR

based on a value-in-used calculation using cash flow projections BEEERENSFHMBESE  FH

based on financial budgets covering a five-year period prepared by REneRANTHEEFEEE
management.

Annual
revenue Terminal Discount
Principal business Goodwill growthrate growthrate rate

Wi a

FEXRH FHRRE KEERE ARIRE

2023

2023

ERECER Property management 26,179 3~10% 2.4% 18.5%
MEEER

B& 22 SR Property management 1,232 2~15% 2.4% 13.0%
MIEEIE

2022

20224

MRECIER Property management 26,179 5~10% 2.5% 18.9%
MIZEEIE

Be L M Property management 1,232 2~15% 2.5% 13.0%
MEEER

SR A SERRIS AR AR
2023FEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

16. GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)

Assumptions were used in the value-in-use calculations of the
above- mentioned CGUs. The following describes each key
assumption on which management had based its cash flow
projections to undertake impairment testing of goodwill:

Discount rate - The discount rate used is before tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant unit.

Annual revenue growth rate - The predicted revenue growth rate of
the CGUs for the five years subsequent to the date of assessment is
one of the assumptions used in the value-in-use calculations.

Terminal growth rate - The terminal growth rate was estimated to
be 2.4% which has taken into consideration the prevailing industry
practice.

The management of the Group believes that any reasonably
possible change in the key assumptions of the value-in-use
calculation would not cause the carrying amount to exceed the
recoverable amount of the CGUs.

As at 31 December 2023, the management of the Group determined
that no impairment of goodwill should be recognised above CGUs.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023

16.

HE @

B 2rEERE @

stE LR EEBUNEREER
EERRRK - PN EEERETH
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

INTANGIBLE ASSETS 17. BREE
Customer
Software  relationships Total
s ERR% “at
Notes RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
i ARBTT ARBTT AR®BTT
31 December 2023 2023F12831H
Costat 1January 2023, netof  7R2023F1 A1 HBIR A »
accumulated amortisation MR RSHEH 62 18,670 18,732
Additions RE 527 = 527
Amortisation provided during ~ EREEH B
the year 6 (576) (3,614) (4,190)
At 31 December 2023 122023812831 13 15,056 15,069
At31 December 2023: 120235128318 ¢
Cost B A 896 28,908 29,804
Accumulated amortisation RHE Y (883) (13,852) (14,735)
Net carrying amount SRERE 13 15,056 15,069
31 December 2022 2022F12831H
At 1 January 2022: R20221818 ¢
Cost (%N 364 28,908 29,272
Accumulated amortisation Rt (248) (6,625) (6,873)
Net carrying amount RREFE 116 22,283 22,399
Costat 1January 2022, netof 2022181 HBYRZ »
accumulated amortisation MBc Rt 116 22,283 22,399
Additions wE 5 - 5
Amortisation provided during G EHEE B
the year 6 (59) (3,613) (3,672)
At31 December 2022 $20226E128318 62 18,670 18,732
At 31 December 2022 and at 12022812831 K
1 January 2023 R2023F1818 ¢
Cost A 369 28,908 29277
Accumulated amortisation RETE (307) (10,238) (10,545)
Net carrying amount REEE 62 18,670 18,732
SEHEERBARLT 447
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RAESERR MG

18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18. REIEATNKRE

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFIT

Share of net assets Bl EEFE 6,871 5,649

AEFRABKERNENEZEUERER
FEAT RIRAS BRI B B IR R MY 5E3 64K BB o

() HEEBEATNFEMT

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with associates
are disclosed in note 36 to the financial statements.

(a) Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:

Place and year of

registration

st thEE R 1D

Percentage of

ownership

Registered interest
capital attributable
RMB'000 to the Group

HEMEE REMEN
ARBTT BAEEZEDL

Principal activities

FTEEH

IHERZRERBEBERAE Nanjing, PRC 2019 10,000 34%  Security services
HERER RERES
20194

R IR ER S R B R AT Nanjing, PRC 2021 5,000 40%  Life services
HEER LR
20214

EREENERBERETLAE Nanjing, PRC 2021 500 30%  Property services
HEER CESE
20214

ARIRRIL AMERBERAE Nanjing, PRC 2021 2,000 35%  Property services
HE R W) AR TS
20214

RN EELERBERAR Taizhou, PRC 2021 10,200 49%  Property services
Bl MERTS
20214

BRERIRM CTE) £EREBRAR Wuxi, PRC 2022 10,000 49%  Property services
HE Y AR TS
20224

RN T ERBER AT Nanjing, PRC 2010 500 51%  Property services
HERER W) AR TS
20104

AREIEREYEEIRERAR Nanjing, PRC 2022 5,000 40%  Property services
HERER W) AR TS
20224

BHESBEERBEERAR Wuxi, PRC 2023 5,000 49%  Property services
HE R W) AR TS
2023

TR AR E R RBE R AT Nanjing, PRC 2023 1,000 40%  Life services
;tg gﬁr\ LIRS
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18.

19.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

(a) Particulars of the Group's associates are as follows:
(continued)

The Group's shareholdings in the associates comprise equity
shares held through wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company.

(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's associates that are not
individually material:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

18. MEEZEATINIRE @
(a) AEBEBHESATHEBINT :
)
FEBRBEATNRECIES
BHRAATEENBATFE >
REZSRR1H o

(b) TRMRPAKEE L IEEREE
gﬂ_’ﬂﬁ%%@ﬁ B BRI

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEBETFT

Share of the associates’ profits/ FREGEBE QTR (B8

(losses) for the year 175 (1,257)
Share of the associates’ total FEGEE AR 2ENA (518)

comprehensive income/(loss) “a%R 175 (1,257)
Aggregate carrying amount of KEBRPRBERABN

the Group's investments in the KEREEMREE

assaociates 6,871 5,649

INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

19. REEEXNKRE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AR®BFT

Share of net assets PMEEEFE

3,885 3,584

The Group's trade receivable and payable balances with joint
ventures are disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements.

AEERGELENE ZRBRIEK
P RIS BRI Y S SR AR MY 53 T4 BB o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TS ERRMIEE
19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued) 19. REZEEENRE @
(a) Particulars of the Group's joint ventures are as (a) AXEBEMNSESEEFBUNT
follows:
Percentage of
ownership
Registered interest
Place and year of capital attributable  Principal
Name of company registration RMB'000 to the Group activities
SRR I Y B3 EEESR
YAGIEL R R EAR ARBTT HEREZESL FEER
BN RR IR ERBERAT Suzhou, PRC 12,880 49%  Property services
2020
FHEDER MR
20205
MR RI IR X ERFBE R AT Nanjing, PRC 5,000 51%  Property services
2020
HEIRER YRR
20204
ERIEMIEREERBERAE Nanjing, PRC 10,000 30%  Life services
2021
HEIRER HER
20214
BREEBLERABIRAS Nanjing, PRC 2,000 40%  Life services
2022
HEIRER H£IER
20226
HMRERENEARBERAR Nanjing, PRC 1,000 50%  Life services
2023
HEIRER £IERS
20234
The Group's shareholdings in all the joint ventures comprise KEERFESERENRER
equity shares held through wholly-owned subsidiary of the REBHARBEENBRBE
Company. BrEmRGm-e
Above companies are accounted for as joint ventures of the FHRABIUANERESEREA
Group because neither the Group nor the counterparty has ROTTHRAEEREFHHER
the right to variable returns from its involvement with these BAZEZENFANEEME#
companies. Both the shareholders do not have the ability to ZEEHTEMOFR e ME LB
affect the returns through their power over these companies. REBENBBENZEATN

B EER-
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19. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES (continued)

(b) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial
information of the Group's joint ventures that are not
individually material:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

19. REELENKE @

(b) FRMMAEMAEDEE
MEURBADEEHB5H

Share of the joint ventures' profits DMEEERENFERN G
for the year
Share of the joint ventures' total

comprehensive income

DEEEREEEWEABEE

Aggregate carrying amount of the KEBREEREN
Group's investments in the joint KEZEERSE

ventures

2023 2022
202345 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ABEF T
751 627

751 627
3,885 3,584

20. DEFERRED TAX

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year
are as follows:

Deferred tax assets

20. EFEFIIE
FREEREEEREEEHUNT :

EERERE

Fair value
Impairment Accrued change of
Lease of financial employee investment
liabilities assets benefits properties Total
EHEE BEME
AIEEER HE  KfESEEHN 2[REEEH st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE#TFTT NS T AEETT NG S NS
At1 January 2022 #20226E1818 1,008 7,104 2,577 - 10,689
Deferred tax (credited) /charged to FRRER GIA) /108
profit or loss during the year BT (670) 3,916 1,039 - 4,285
At31 December 2022 and 1 January 2022128318 %
2023 2023E1818 338 11,020 3,616 - 14974
Deferred tax charged /(credited) to FRRERNR/ GEA) B
profit or loss during the year RRERIE 3,659 14,394 (175) 688 18,566
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 3,997 25,414 3,441 688 33,540
SR TERBARAT 171
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

20.

DEFERRED TAX (continued)
Deferred tax liabilities

20. EIEFIH (@)
RIERIEE R

Right-of-
Fair value Fair value use assets
change of adjustments including
Revaluation investment arisingfrom  recognised as
of investment Withholding properties acquisition investment
properties taxes and FVTPL a subsidiary properties
REEMER
BAREE WEMEBAE
5t Atz f8 FREEM
EfRENR AnEEEY ALEERE EREEE st
RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000
ANEEFT NS AEBTT AEEFT
At 1 January 2022 R02%F1818 1,345 2,743 133 5,643 617 10,481
Deferred tax charged /(credited) ~ FA BRI/ GtA) §
to profit or loss during the BERIR
year - - 45 (903) (340) (1,198)
At31 December 2022 and 1#202%12B318 K
1 January 2023 20231818 1,345 2,143 178 4,740 217 9,283
Deferred tax charged /(credited)  ERPFERMNR/ GIA) 8
to profit or loss during BERE
the year - (942) (177) (903) 2,694 672
Deferred tax credited to other SAEMRERGENELRE
comprehensive income (288) - - - - (288)
At 31 December 2023 12023F125318 1,057 1,801 1 3,837 297 9,667
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20. DEFERRED TAX (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and
liabilities have been offset in the statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

LL*ﬁIE (nﬁ

BIERTES & ()
MEYNENMES A TREFMSREE
REEERMBRRETIERE - Kt

Bk B OV A EBIEIEFT SN &R
BT :

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial
position

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial
position

IEIEFR TR E B P ER

EERIRE FFER

AR B BB R FESDRY

PR & RS IR T R BEER AY

2023 2022
20234 20224F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHF T
30,976 14,720
7,103 9,029

The Group is liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed
by those subsidiaries established in Chinese Mainland in respect
of earnings generated from 1 January 2008. The applicable rate is
10% for the Group.

As at 31 December 2023, deferred tax amounting to RMB1,801,000
(2022: RMB2,743,000) has been recognised for withholding taxes.
These subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the foreseeable
future.

The Group had unutilised tax losses arising in the PRC of
approximately RMB26,460,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:
RMB29,372,000), that will expire in one to five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the entities in which the losses
arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of
these losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been loss-
making for some time and it is not considered probable that taxable
profits will be available against which the tax losses can be utilised.

AEBEEHB2008F1B1HEELEN
E A > wLBS R B P ER ST R BE B A B PR
IRERREBEMANR AEBRERR
EA10% o

FR2023F128310 » REB PR B IL
B B AT BN TEIN IR R ELQ R
MEMTENRERFEIERIE AR
1,801,0007T (20224 : AR#2, 743,000
7o) ©

R2023%F12831H  xEBELSH
FEMNABEREBEAAS AR
#26,460,0005T (20226 @ AR
29, 372 00075) I TETESEREIHE 5]
fé%ﬁﬁﬁ%&?ﬂ%iiéﬂaﬁ’];EEEE;EEW%
BREN BN EGEFBERFE—R
BREEENWEAT  BEEATA A
DI FEERF % A1) B2 0] Eh A U FR 18 F5 38 4
W B Z S B ERREIERIEE
Eo

SR A SERRIS AR AR
2023FEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

21.

22.

23.

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS

1. BRAREBESABGNEMEE

Other unlisted investments, at fair value

HthIF EHRE  BAREE

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARHF T
26,004 76,434

The above unlisted investments were wealth management
products issued by banks in Chinese Mainland. They were
mandatorily classified as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as their contractual cash flows are not solely payments of
principal and interest.

LHIEEHRE S PEAMIBITET
WEFER AEGHNRTAEBLIFE
PmENAEERAE B EMIFLEHRE
BB DERBRAABES ABRRD
TREE-

INVENTORIES 22. 78

2023 2022
2023%F 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHEEF T
Goods and consumables SR EOHER 7,828 5,722
Contract costs BHIRA 1,933 4,836
9,761 10,558

TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. B EKRIE
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AREFIT
Trade receivables B ZEWIE 442,734 376,286
Impairment HE (48,002) (34,203)
394,732 342,083

Trade receivables arise from the provision of property management
services and value-added services. Property management service
income from properties managed under a lump sum basis is
received in accordance with the terms of the relevant property
management service agreements and due for payment by the
residents upon the issuance of demand notes by the Group. Service
income for the provision of repair and maintenance and other
equipment upgrade services is received in accordance with the
terms of the relevant contract agreements, normally within 60 days
from the issuance of payment requests. Other value-added service
income is due for payment upon the issuance of demand notes.
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23.

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the
Group's trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Trade
receivables are non-interest-bearing.

An aging analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the date of revenue recognition and net
of loss allowance, is as follows:

23.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

B 7 UL IE (@)

7 [ 75 SR 2R A 8 UORR TB M R R AR
RE- RS RAEREEEETHE
B o BRI PRIt i A R B B B 5 FE LU
MBEEAERRAERER BT ES
EERNEERR -85 BWRIEL &
R

PEER S HASK - IR R W B 50 B B R H B
BEBEENE S BUGRIERRE DT
mr:

2023 2022

20234 20224F

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT AREFTT

Within 1 year 1% R 366,089 317,150
Over 1 year and within 2 years TFEU EE2FER 19,716 19,095
Over 2 years and within 3 years 2L F1B3FR 8,927 5,838
394,732 342,083

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

BREFREREEZEFAENESHU
o

2023 2022

20235 20224

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBETT AERETT

At beginning of the year REH) 34,203 22,014
Impairment losses AERE 13,799 12,189
At end of the year RERXR 48,002 34,203

An impairment analysis was performed at each reporting date,
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses. The
provision rates were based on the aging of trade receivables for
groupings of various customer segments with similar loss patterns.
The calculation reflected the probability-weighted outcome, the
time value of money and reasonable and supportable information
that was available at the reporting date about past events, current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions. Generally,
trade receivables were written off if they are not considered
recoverable by the Group and are not subject to enforcement
activity.

REBREAREREEERETRE
DT UStERBEERE -BHEXE
REBHREUSERANZEEF 28
HENEZBUGFIERNREEE - AR
STERREISEMMBER S HEREE
RBESAPREABEEMH BEHR TR
KRB R RTARABPAESERA X
FEE e —RME > & 5 EURIER
7 55 B R 4 S A U [a] B K fE s 3
70 Bl g RS -

SR A SERRIS AR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BTSRRI EE
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. B5EWFRIE (@)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure on UTHEIAEEERBEEEBSHEN
the Group's trade receivables using a provision matrix: B RWRENEERRER
As at 31 December 2023 120235128318
(T Over
Within 1yearand 2years and Over
lyear  within2years  within 3 years 3years
BiBE BBt
RER Rit2ER RI3ER 3EYE
Expected credit loss rate BHEEREX 4£.01% 29.80% 50.31% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) REEE ARETT 381,378 28,084 17,965 15,307 442,734
Expected credit losses (RMB000) BRESHE ARETD 15,289 8,368 9,038 15,307 48,002
As at 31 December 2022 7220224128318
Qver Over
Within 1yearand 2yearsand QOver
Tyear  within2years  within3years 3years Total
BiBE BiBE
R1ER R ER RIER 3EHE st
Expected credit loss rate BEREEHEX 4£.22% 30.53% 49 47% 100.00%
Gross carrying amount (RMB'000) RERE \NRETR) 331,113 27,486 11,554 6,133 376,286
Expected credit losses (RMB'000) BHEERE ARETD) 13,963 8,391 5716 6,133 34,203
24. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 24, FEIRIE-RERHEMEWRIE
RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT AEEETFT

Prepayments on behalf of customers to REERARAEEMERS

utility suppliers F AN RIE 587 1,730
Other prepayments HMIENIE 8,204 5,452
Deposits R8T 48,265 45,986
Advance to employees B8 TER 11,656 11,056
Prepaid other tax TR EAMIRIE 3,569 1,765
Other receivables Hih U IE 41,399 35,238
Impairment allowance BEEE (1,029) (754)

112,651 100,473
Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and have no HMEWRIE A RIDE - T st B REE
fixed terms of repayment. TEIRFRER
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24,

25.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Expected credit losses are estimated by applying a loss rate
approach with reference to the historical loss record of the Group.
The loss rate is adjusted to reflect the current conditions and
forecasts of future economic conditions, as appropriate. The loss
rate applied as at 31 December 2023 was 1% (2022: 1%).

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, RESTRICTED CASH
AND PLEDGED DEPOSITS

24,

25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

i‘(g)ﬁ’xlﬁ RE R HMEWRRIE

BHEEERANEERABEBERLEE
R2RAEBENBEBIBLEHEM G
JE5 18 R4S 58 B LU R BR 3R O e R 2R AE K
MRBYTRR (WEA) °102023%F128
31 E)I  FERRIEREER 1% (20224 ¢
1%) °

REMBESEY ZRERE
R BIERER

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AREETT AR®ETF T
Cash and bank balances RE MIRTTHER 441,995 296,035
Less: e
Restricted cash SIRGIIRE (639) -
Pledged deposits-current BARIRER— R & (2,716) (2,101)
Pledged deposits-non-current BIRIRFER—IERH (5,196) (1,876)
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 433 444 292,058
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TT ARETT
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY
Denominated in RMB MAREHE 433,341 289,197
Denominated in HKS MAETTEHE 103 2,861
433,444 292,058

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank balances of
the Group denominated in Renminbi amounted to RMB433,341,000
(2022: RMB289,197,000).The RMB is not freely convertible into
other currencies, however, under Chinese Mainland's Foreign
Exchange Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement,
and Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group
is permitted to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks
authorised to conduct foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximate to their fair values.

RI|ERFR UARBSHEZ AERR
ERIBITHGR A ARMEL33,341,0007T
(20224 : AR #289,197,00070) o~
TEHERBRAEMER  WAEPER
Hh B S BE B IR AR B Ko 45 0B - E B R AT BB
EERE AEE OB BEHEETI
%%%E@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%)\wﬁ%mﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁé

FHRRIRTHNREERES HRTERT
HF RSB - RITERFRNEERY
Bmri R mNRT - ReERRE
FEYVEREEREAANBEES

SR A SERRIS AR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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26. TRADE PAYABLES 26.

An ageing analysis of the trade payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

=R )i IR E S|

RESHR ~EEERERAHNE
FENFIRRE DTN -

2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARK¥TFIT ARMF T

Within 1 year 3 105,951 72,793
Over 1 year 1M E 2,583 2,611
108,534 75,404

The trade payables are interest-free and are normally settled on

EERARBEATFR —REFRA

terms of 60 to 90 days. 60ZF90H
27. OTHER PAYABLES, DEPOSITS RECEIVED AND 27. HMMEGRRIE EWiRE R Est
ACCRUALS EH
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHEFTT
Payroll and welfare payable TERENSEF 96,754 95,221
Receipts on behalf of community residents LA B EEARTE EL U
for utilities 91,353 85,411
Deposits received [Sllvesa 38,775 36,439
Receipts on behalf of community residents Rt AR E R W
for common areas 31,585 26,183
Other tax payables HMELIRIE 15,346 14,034
Dividends payable to shareholders FEATRG R AG B 3,665 12,855
Payables to a non-controlling shareholder  FE{f—RSF /B A B IEIZERR
of a subsidiary feERFRIE 1,470 5,900
Others Hith 12,626 11,940
291,574 287,983

Other payables are unsecured and repayable on demand. The
fair values of other payables at the end of the reporting period
approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts.
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28.

29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFSERERMIsE
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 28. &R
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBETT AR®TFT
Contract liabilities EHEERE 392,218 338,194

The Group receives payments from customers based on billing
schedules as established in the property management contracts.
Payments are usually received in advance of the performance
under the contracts which are mainly for property management
services.

The expected timing of recognition of revenue at the end of the
reporting period is as follows:

FERBRYEHESNANRING
iSILESNEIS H&HRT‘_TTA o B B IR
B (EERYMEEERT) RRFAL
W B 0

DU A0 98 o A SR B 3B Ut A T B
B -

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHF T

Within one year RSN 389,178 334,362
More than one year 83814 3,040 3,832
392,218 338,194
INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 29. FHRRITREMMERR
BORROWINGS
2023 2022
2023F 20224
Effective Effective
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity RMB'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000
BIRFIZE BIRAE
(%) 3HA AR®TT (%) IEE AR®TT
Current Eﬂﬁﬁ
Bank loans - secured BITER-BERF 3.60-4.35 2,024 59,000 4.35 2,023 105,000
Other borrowings - secured Eﬂﬂfaﬂ BER 6.08-7.67 2,024 5569  6.08-7.67 2,023 7,066
Non-current JEEMHR
Otherborrowings - secured ~ E g —BER 6.08 2,025 245  6.08-7.67 2,024-2,025 6,480
SR A SERRIS AR AR

2023FEERS
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29.

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER
BORROWINGS (continued)

st BIRTT R HMIERR @)

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT AREBFT
Analysed into: PaLiIP= I
Bank loans and other borrowings FETERITE MR E M MERN
repayable

Within one year 1R 64,569 112,066
In the second year F2EN 245 6,235
In the third to fifth years, inclusive FIESFERN (BEEEME) = 245
64,814 118,546

The Group's bank and other borrowings are secured by:

Vi

A guarantee provided by IRIEMEEBERDERAT, a
company controlled by Mr. Huang Qing Ping, and Mr. Shen
Chun Lei, a shareholder of a subsidiary.

the pledge of the Group's buildings, which had a net carrying
value at the end of the reporting period of approximately
RMB21,542,000;

the pledge of the Group's investment properties , which had
an aggerate carrying amount at the end of the reporting
period of approximately RMB25,367,000;

the pledge of the Group's office equipment, electronic and
other devices which had a net carrying value at the end of the
reporting period of approximately RMB8,540,000;

the pledge of the Group's right of receipt of property
management fee and charging fee on new energy vehicle
stations managed by the Group in future; and

mortgages over 100% equity interests of =%, a
subsidiary of the Group at the end of the reporting period.

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to
their carrying amounts largely due to the fact that most of such
borrowings were short-term, and made between the Group and
independent third-party financial institutions based on prevailing
market interest rates.
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UAREBNEF RBREHRES
BREFENARME21,542,0007T)
EE]

UHEEBNREME (KBRS
HABEEREREBENAR
25,367,0007T) {EEHF ;

iv. RUAEENHAERFE -BTF
HRas R E e (Eﬁ‘%&i,ﬁﬂﬂi%ﬁ
RE#ELAAKES,540,0007T)
EER ;

v. HUEEBEARREEREEEER
R BE TR B 7E BB Uik UK B BY HE A
EE#R ; &

vi. NEBZEEE FERRRSHAR
M8 AE)) 100%A% 1218 o
AABEERE ST ST RIRITREM
BRNAANBEAHKREERE T2
AR ZEENEEA BN E R LS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BAFSERERMIsE
30. SHARE CAPITAL 30. i&#&
2023 2022
20235 20224
HK$'000 HKS'000
FHET TFET
Authorised: EE
2,000,000,000 (2022: 2,000,000,000) 2,000,000,0008% (20224 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 2,000,000,0008%) & mEE
0.01BTHEER 20,000 20,000
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR¥TT ARBET T
Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE
267,152,000 (2022: 267,152,000) 267,152,0008% (20224 :
ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each 267,152,0008%) SR mEE
0.01 BT EBR 2,387 2,387
SHARE OPTION SCHEME 31. BEAGHESTE

31

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “"Scheme”)
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who have contributed to the Group and to encourage
participants to work towards enhancing the value of the Company.
Eligible participants of the Scheme include the Company's directors
and other employees of the Group. There is no general requirement
on the minimum period for which granted option must be held or
the performance targets which must be achieved before granted
option can be exercised, under the terms of the Scheme. The
Scheme became effective on 6 January 2021 and, unless otherwise
cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 3 years from that
date.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued pursuant to
the exercise of all share options which may be granted under the
Scheme and any other share option schemes in aggregate, not
exceeding 2% (equivalent to 5,343,040 shares) of the total number
of shares in issue upon the adoption. The maximum number of
shares issuable under share options to each eligible participant
in the Scheme within any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the
shares of the Company in issue for the time being. Any further grant
of share options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders'
approvalin a general meeting.

ENBEE—EEKRESE (Tt
2 BEERANEREFLERZS
B8 A TR SR AR > I EE
Z2EANTNFRARADEE - ZTE
MEBRIB2BATOEARATESER
AEBNEMEE BMEARMNEEH
BRETFITENBREERHER
BHREHPABNEERETRIEEE
Z—RI[VTE - ZstEIR2021F1868 &%
Mo BRIERBITHEE T ERT > TR B
ZHERES3ER K o

R4 5T 8 Ko A 0] Ho A0 BB A A 51 &) 7J
FERMZFrE R EEIT T Al BESE
TzeReRNEE > GHTFBBRMN
HRFEZETRMOMBEN2% BER
5,343,040/ B2 {7) ° BRI 218 B #AfE
BEBRETDZAINETERS
BATHTHRMDLERERERE %
TARRBRDEN1% o E A — TR H
BHZELROEREANKRRAE L
ESRERH -

SR A SERRIS AR AR
2023FEERS
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31

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

Share options granted to any director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or any of their respective associates
under the Scheme or any other share option schemes of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries are subject to approval in
advance by the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder or an
independent non-executive director of the Company, or to any of
their associates, in excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in
issue at any time or with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company's shares at the date of grant) in excess of HKS$5
million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders'
approvalin advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted within 28 days
from the date of offer, upon payment of a nominal consideration
of HKS$1 in total by the grantee. The exercise period of the share
options granted is determinable by the directors, and commences
after grant date and ends on a date which is not later than five years
from the date of offer of the share options or the expiry date of the
Scheme, if earlier.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the board of
directors of the Company, but may not be less than the higher of
(i) the closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets issued by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant which
must be a business day; and (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (iii) the nominal value of the shares.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends or to
vote at shareholders' meetings.

The following share options were outstanding under the Scheme
during the year:

31.

RERRHESTE @

RIFESt IS A 2 B S H AR E A F
WEREMERESS  AEMES
ARBRBITHAEHEEZRRARK
EEAZHBARDEMOBRE BA
EEIUFRTESFRAE LI >
REMI2ERRERAREEERR
HBUIFATESTHAAREFEMHE
AR ERERBEREBB QD IE
B 23T RN BI0.1%EABE (R4
REROIFEHAHANERSE) B8
SEBB MIANSRRINKRRRE
EESHAER FRFE

REBRENZEQA N EL R MES
28EAFARASINRERNEEGHRIE
TTRERM - PIIRHBERERITEA
HEFEEE WRRHBMEMAG
RIEANERERERL B BHES 5 F /Y
EJ,HJ:HZ}Z ZEEEHE (UREERE)

BRENTEERAADESTEE
HERSERUTRENRSE ()&
RHBREESE CEARER) RBXH
SRKERMBHROUHE ; K(i)
g Jur EI,HEETJEEL{%%EE?H?“}EE
5 HREXRFTRHORND FEHWRHE ;
(i) P EE

BRELAREFRHAARIRKS
REARE LIRZEAEF -

YOS

%T%EW%%‘JET%}’%?‘T@EZ%H&

2023 2022
2023 20226

Weighted Weighted
average Number average Number
exercise price OLTIINES  exercise price of options

IEE METs
118 BREYE T8 s e

HKS$ HKS
per share ‘000 per share '000
SRET T sEET F3
At 1 January M1B1H 4.026 3,200 4722 1,600
Granted during the year FRFEE 1.902 2,143 3.330 1,600
Lapsed during the period LiIANES 3.330 30 3330 -
At31 December ®12831H 3.181 5313 4.026 3,200

No share options were exercised during 2023 (2022: Nil). /;20/%?& 1B fm R P AT 0 (2022
D) o
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31 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share options

outstanding as at the end of the year are as follows:

31 December 2023 Number of options
202351283 1A BRIEHE

‘000
T

1,600
510
510
550
714
714

715

5,313

31 December 2022 Number of options

Exercise price
TEE

HKS per share
sRET
4.722

3.330

3.330

3.330

1.920

1.920

1.920

Exercise price

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

RERRHESTE @

TXEIFRERITERBERENIT
EERATE

Exercise period

1T1EHA

2021/7/2~2026/5/18

2021 7H2B E2026%5818H
2023/4/14~2027/4/13

2023F 43148 E2027F 4813
2024/4/14~2027/4/13
2024FE4B14B E2027F 48130
2025/4/14~2027/4/13
2025548140 E2027F4813H
2024/5/16~2028/5/15
2024758168 E2028F5815H
2025/5/16~2028/5/15

202558 16HE2028F5815H
2026/5/16~2028/5/15
2026558160 E2028F5815H

Exercise period

202212831 HEERREHE TfEE 1TEER
‘000 HKS per share
T BRABT
1,600 4.722 2021/7/2~2026/5/18
202178 2HZE2026F5818H
520 3.330 2023/4/14~2027/4/13
2023F4B 140 E2027F4813H
520 3.330 2024/4/14~2027/4/13
2024F 4B 1482027548131
560 3.330 2025/4/14~2027/4/13
202548 14BE2027F4813H
3,200

The fair value of the share options granted during the year was
RMB1,624,000 (RMB0.758 each) (2022: RMB1,646,000). The
Group recognised a share option expense of RMB1,228,000 (2022:

RMB538,000) during the year ended 31 December 2023.

FREZERENA2ABEAAR
#1,624,0007T (B AR #0.7587T)
(20226 : AR¥E1,646,0007T) ° 1A &
F2023F 1283 1HIEFERRDHERE
B ARME1,228,0007T (20224 © AR
#538,0007T) ©
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31

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (continued)

The fair value of equity-settled share options granted during the
year was estimated as at the date of grant, using a binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions upon which the
options were granted. The following table lists the inputs to the
model used:

31.

RslgtEst 8 @)
FRARHUREEENEREZ AR
BEDREHARRA ZBIEEMG
B W5t K Fr iR BB RRAE Z AR TR R AR F ©
RSP R A B B

2022
20224

Dividend yield (%) % B 7 28 (%)

Expected volatility (%) TAHAR 18 (%)
Risk-free interest rate (%) R R (%)

Expected life of options (year) FERC HETEHAEAR (FF)
Weighted average share price

(HKS per share)

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of comparable listed
companies in the same industry.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 5,343,040
share options outstanding under the share option scheme. The
exercise in full of the outstanding share options would, under the
present capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
5,343,040 additional ordinary shares of the Company, an additional
share capital of HK$53,430 and a share premium of approximately
HKS$16,964,000 (before issue expenses).

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the Company
had 5,343,040 share options outstanding under the Scheme, which
represented approximately 2% of the Company'’s shares in issue as
at that date.
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2.08 35
57 50
2.96 2.68
5 4.91
1.92 3.33

RERBAHRELNENEEREFEN
MBI IRIERERNAIBELER EHAF
Rt BFEDErE -

REBERR KRAT R ZAEEBETAE
5,343,040 BEPRE M RITE - IRIBAR
NEIBRFEREE  2EITERKRITE
TERG S 5| B0 8517 RB AN 5,343,040 4
NEEBAG > EA53,430ETAIZEINB
IR #916,964,0005 RIS 1A E (30
BREE1TRASZ A ©

RZEGRFRERIMELI AT R Z
SHEIIETHS,343,04010 BE BB i R 1T
FHEERATREBCETROHN
2% ©



32. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group's reserves and the movements therein
for the current and prior years are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity of the financial statements.

(a) Mergerreserve

The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued
capital of the then holding company of the companies now
comprising the Group and the capital contributions from the
equity holders of certain subsidiaries now comprising the
Group before the completion of the reorganisation.

(b) Statutory surplus reserve

(c)

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC,
the Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits
after tax, as determined under the Chinese Accounting
Standards, to the statutory surplus reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of its registered capital. Subject to
certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC regulations
and in the articles of assaociation of the Group, the statutory
surplus reserve may be used either to offset losses, or to be
converted to increase share capital, provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered
capital of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes
other than those for which it is created and is not distributable
as cash dividends.

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the
par value of the shares issued and the consideration received.

32.

f#E

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

REFERBEFE  AEBNREES
BRHEBFH2INNUMHFREREZECE

HEBE-
(a) EHHi#E

(b)

(c)

FEBNGHEBIEEHTHA
FEBRRFKETARNERIZER
NBANWEHITRERAEEIRE
BETRENETHEBLABRDR
BABES-

EERRGEE
RIEHEA B AR A E ALY
MEASMMABSERME] &
B BRI B AR A1 0%IR B
TEREHE LR ETEZ
ZAET BEE#BRTEEEE
He & AR50%5 1 o 2 HERI P E
TR AR B 7 5 (B 40 45 EE A2 4R B B &
ETRAINRIE AERERFHEB
] A A 8 S 18 O 85 3 5 18 0 AR
K> BERBHEERBEASLOR
KREBFAMERM25%  FHE T
BREERIIEMNUISINNEMA
BONAEBIEARERE DK

B {5 i {8
R EEIEEETRONEESR
BB EZERELE-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BATSERRMISE
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. iIFRRERMERME
CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions () FEFEREXRH
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to FRO-AEEERBFHEZH
right-of-use assets and investment property of RMB NEREEERKEENMEZIFR
42,276,000(2022:RMB7,235,000) and non-cash lease EREDNABARMEL2,276,000
liabilities of RMB 42,276,000 (2022: RMB7,235,000), 7 (20224 : AR 7,235,000
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for buildings. T RFBREHEARBARE
42,276,0007T (20225 : AR
7,235,0007T) ©
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEEFFELENEBES
2023 202345
Due to
Lease Bank and related
liabilities other loans companies
RiITR BERBHAR
HEAE HithE® ]
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AEBTT ARETT
At 1January 2023 72023E1 818 16,809 118,546 13,146
New leases #rARAY 42,276 = =
Interest expense MERXS 1,874 3,818 -
Cash flows from-financing MEZBMERERE
activities (2,148) (57,550) -
Cash flows from non-financing FRMEEIMBRERE
activities - - (5,196)
At 31 December 2023 120235128318 58,811 64,814 1,950
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BATSERRMISE
33. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 33. IFRRERERMT @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities (b) MEITBELENEBES @)
(continued)
2022 20224
Dueto
Lease Bank and related
liabilities other loans companies
RITR & 11 R B
HEaE HifE & NEIFIA
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBBFT ARETT
At 1January 2022 72022418 1H 16,624 209,000 17,121
New leases R4 7,235 - -
Interest expense MERZ 779 6,500 -
Cash flows from financing activities ~ B¥EZEBNFTSIRERE (7,829) (96,954) -
Cash flows from non-financing FFMBABMERERE
activities - - (3,975)
At 31 December 2022 720228E12H31H 16,809 118,546 13,146

(c)

Total cash outflow for leases

The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of

cash flows is as follows:

(c) HERETAHMEE
SPARERERNVEERE AN
MBEELT -

2022
20224
RMB'000
ARBEFIT
Within operating activities KEEER 8,786 6,396
Within financing activities REEEIN 2,148 7,829
10,934 14,225
R SERIE AR AT

2023FEERS
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION 34, XA

PR2023F 2R A EBEB A REBILE
“HBEBEGREVEEERRAF
(TEHRR) 60Nk E  Re N E
AR ¥3,000,0007c - W IE A A EE R
BEBY—EB D IR HYEEERHE
A HIHEE R -

In February 2023, the Group acquired a 60% interest in 55
MESEERAG (MEIFR 1) from an independent third party
of the Company at a cash consideration of RMB3,000,000. The
acquisition was made as part of the Group's strategy to expand its
market share of property management operation in local market.

BHRSPBELRNTENEER
BEZAREBENT

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of #E&#55 5=
as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

188

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

FR U R B 22

HaREE

RMB'000

ARBFT

Cash and cash equivalents HERREEEY 1,143
Trade receivables B WIS 3,479
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FANTRIE ~ B ;e LM FEWGRRIA 1,603
Property, plant and equipment M= BERRE 3
Trade payables B S eI =IE (472)
Contract liabilities FEATHRIE (197)
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HMEMRIE  BliZs R ETE A (538)
Total identifiable net assets at fair value BARNEBEFENTHREEFEERE 5,021
Non-controlling interests FFIE R e R (2,008)
3,013
Gain on bargain purchase HEBEWG (13)
Satisfied by cash DURE 3,000
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued)

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in
respect of the acquisition of #7585 is as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

34 EHEH @

ERBBESRENHEERIETEE
YIREFER DT -

RMB'000
ARET T

Cash outflow on acquisition: g 2 IR
Cash consideration RBEE 3,000
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BWERENRIRESEEY (1,143)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BRARERGRENIRER
in respect of the acquisition of &5 R 5 REFBYI LR 1,857

Since the acquisition, #5515 has contributed RMB13,128,000
in total to the Group's revenue and profit of RMB2,409,000 to the
consolidated profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2023.

Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year,
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 would have been RMB1,984,099,000 and
RMB128,184,000, respectively.

In June 2023, the Group acquired a 60% interest in &k N3 &
AR AT ("BRINEIL") from an independent third party of the
Company at a cash consideration of RMB1,086,000. The acquisition
was made as part of the Group's strategy to expand its market share
of elevator maintenance services operation in local market.

B A LUk » 82023512831 H LEF
E @B EMAERSmaHEA
F113,128,00070 UK A & B AR & i 7
AER¥2,409,0005T

WMEHPREPELE > HZE2023512831
BirFEREBE UGS R AREB RN
DR ANREE,984,099,000c & AR
1128,184,0007C ©

R2023F 68 AEBBEARABBEILSE
ZHWBEHMNEBEILERERAD (T8
ML) B960%ME > MEXBARE
1,086,000 0 c Z W B B AR E E R
—Z MIBAEEBRBER T AN
mBEEE

SR A SERRIS AR AR
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34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34, EFFaH @

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of & &1z

as at the date of acquisition were as follows:

FRONEILR BB AR EE R
BEZARNEBENT

Fair value
recognised
on acquisition
KUK B SR Y
AREE
RMB'000
AREFT
Cash and cash equivalents RERBEEEY 33
Trade receivables B 5 eI 2,337
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TETRRIE ~ 12 R H MR BGRIE 176
Inventory 78 18
Property, plant and equipment MEBRE KRB 38
Trade payables B2 EARIE (70)
Contract liabilities = =L (83)
Tax payables ANE (52)
Other payables, deposits received and accruals HEMENRIE BliZs R ETE A (1,433)
Totalidentifiable net assets at fair value BANBESENFHBEEFERRR 964
Non-controlling interests FEER (386)
578

Expenses on acquisition recognised in other PRIEm A M RN
expenses in profit or loss 508
Satisfied by cash MIREZ A 1,086

An analysis of the net outflow of cash and cash equivalents in

respect of the acquisition of & N7 is as follows:

ERWRBHEMNETINRERIRESE
YPREF RO T -

RMB'000
AR®ET T

Cash outflow on acquisition: WHEZ &R -
Cash consideration RWERE 1,086
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BEWBERENIREESEY (33)
Consideration to be paid included in SFAEMENRIEZ FORE
other payables (326)
Net outflow of cash and cash equivalents BRAWESHMNEIINIRE K
in respect of the acquisition of & N3z REFBYI MR8 727
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TS ERRMIEE
34. BUSINESS COMBINATION (continued) 34, ¥BSH @
Since the acquisition, R/ has contributed RMB2,647,000 BUREE LIz » B E 202351283 1HLEE
in total to the Group's revenue and net loss of RMB642,000 to the B BMEBEIEEMAER R REBE
consolidated profit for the year ended 31 December 2023. FEEHARE2,647,0000 U KRS
w@ A AR H642,0007T
Had the combination taken place at the beginning of the year, MEHREYEL > 822023512831
the revenue of the Group and the profit of the Group for the year B IEFE A& B U A & B A
ended 31 December 2023 would have been RMB1,988,390,000 and DHIAANREET,988,390,000c R AR
RMB128,789,000, respectively . #£128,789,0007T °
35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEMBAT
In May 2023, the Group disposed 51% interest in ;T &k & #B4) 2 AR [R2023F58 REBEA—HFE =T H
AR AT (WIEFA%D") to a third party at a cash consideration of EIHAMMERBBRAR (NI
RMB1,279,000. BHB1) 1951 %R He UER AR
1.279,0003% ©
2023
20235
RMB'000
AR®T T
Net assets disposed of: BHEEESE
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY 89
Trade receivables B 5 U EIE 1,540
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables  FE{ITUIE & K H i EUEIE 1,602
Property, plant and equipment L ER =Y ] 1
Trade payables H IR (2,733)
Contract liabilities =E =k (120)
Other payables, deposits received and accruals  EAMERTRIE BUWIZE M ETE A (2,942)
(2,553)
Non-controlling interests ) T 1,214
(1,339)
Gain on disposal of T 77 & 4B HE T 8RR U 2,618
Satisfied by cash PIR&SZ (T 1,279
R SERIE AR AT

2023FEERS



192
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BATSERRMISE
35. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 35. HEMBAE @
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect BEREENRERREEBYRAZ
of the disposal of is as follows: BEoMmAT
RMB'000
ARETT
Cash inflow on disposal: HEZREMA
Cash consideration RERE 1,279
Cash and bank balances disposed of BEHERERIBITAERR (89)
Cash consideration not received and included A0 AR ERAG 5+ A EA AT FRIE
in other payables, deposits received and Bz kETERNRESNE
accruals (1,079)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents BRME IHRMNEE R
in respect of the disposal of ;L7 & 48 REZEMRAFE 11
36. COMMITMENTS 36. EiIE
The Group had the following contractual commitments provided for REBRBSHRBUTEELEK
joint ventures and associates at the end of the reporting period: & A TR MR S A RIE
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFT ARBFT
Contracted, but not provided for: BEFIANEREMR !
Capital contributions BAREE 26,958 25,333
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

37. FAMAERS

(1) EXFBERS

(1) Significant related party transactions

The following transactions were carried out with related

companies during the year:

RERNEFBARETUTRS

2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARETTT
Advances to related companies Eea)i VNI E 218,000 370,000
Recovery of advance to related W [B] =) B Bk A B BO ERRR
companies 212,258 322,950
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AEETT ARBETTT
Rental fees to companies controlled  MARFRREZEFLERFI
by Mr. Huang Qing Ping, a REIZHEER
shareholder of the Company 4,739 4,689
Security service fees to an associate  [A—REIEE AT 2T
RERBE R 375,007 377,608
Purchase of materials from BEBTFLREZEFINABEEN
companies controlled by el
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 1,096 282
Property management services MEEERBUWA
income
Companies controlled by A FEREETNAT
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 23,162 45,357
Joint ventures and associates of IRIMERERBRAE
Yincheng International Holding =FFSREERNAR) B
Co., Ltd., a company controlled BEhERBE AT
by Mr. Huang Qing Ping 10,352 11,210
Joint ventures and associates AETLERBEEAT 838 6,319
Value-added services income HEIBERBUA
Companies controlled by BRFREERINAT
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 3,896 8,896
Joint ventures and associates BEPENMENT 14,676 8,580
Joint ventures and associates of IRIMEIRERE R ATHN
Yincheng International Holding HEPERBENTE
Co., Ltd 389 386
These transactions were carried out in accordance with the ZEXZHIRBE2EATHER
terms and conditions mutually agreed by the companies TE BV R R R 1T ©
involved.
R SERIE AR AT
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 37.

(2) Other transactions with related companies

The Group's shareholder, Mr. Huang Qing Ping and R
MELEBEMARAT, a company controlled by Mr.
Huang Qing Ping, has guaranteed the Group 's bank loans
of up to RMB30,000,000 as at 31 December 2023 (2022:

(3)

RMB75,000,000).

The Group paid deposits to Yincheng International Holding
Co., Ltd. for selling parking lots as an agent. The deposits
is refundable, and balance of which is RMB61,201,000 at 31
December 2023 (2022: RMB55,552,000).

Outstanding balances with related companies

FAE S X5 @
(2) HRBATMEMRS

2023F12831H ZEEK SR
BATFRERBAEBEFIILELS
HNABRIMMEERREATE
ERES ARBEE30,000,00070HY
AEERITER (202256 AR
75,000,0007T) ©

AEFBDRPEERERERA
AXAREHEFEFEERES N
2023F 12831 E A ER >
ME&EGRA AREES1,201,0007T
(2022% : AR #¥55,552,000
7T) °

(3) BB ABIBIRIESER

2023 2022
20235 20228
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETT
Due from related companies: FEU RRE AR FRIE -
Companies controlled by HEBTERLEEFINAT
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 144,890 171,162
Associates A= YNET| 61,803 31,615
Joint ventures AR 6,421 3,408
Joint ventures and associates of RIMERERBRABN
Yincheng International Holding BELERBEAT
Co., Ltd. 8,803 5,703
221,917 211,888
Impairment allowance BERE (55,178) (10,924)
166,739 200,964
Due to related companies: FE& {3 BR Bk A B)FRIE
Companies controlled by HEBFAEERINAT
Mr. Huang Qing Ping 1,076 10,842
Associates i =UN=I 874 1,457
Joint ventures aEhE - 800
Joint ventures and associates of R BIPREIR B PR A BIRY
Yincheng International Holding BEPERBEAT
Co., Ltd. - 53
7,950 13,146

The balances with the above related companies were
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed repayment terms.
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(3) Outstanding balances with related companies

(4)

(continued)

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of due
from related companies are as follows:

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

37. FABAE RS @
(3) ERAEATIMNRTEER (@)

FE U R B A F)
LI

RERBREEHES

2023 2022

20234 20224

RMB'000 RMB'000

AR®TT ARETT

At beginning of the year FH] 10,924 3,655
Impairment allowance HERE 44,254 7,269
At end of the year FR 55,178 10,924

The credit periods granted to related parties are mainly 60
to 90 days. The Group has assessed that the calculation of
ECLs on these property management service and value-
added service receivables was based on the credit risk
characteristics of the counterparties, and an assessment of
forward-looking information, including general economic
conditions, was considered. The calculation of the loss
allowance for receivables arising from related parties
was carried out by an independent specialist, Asia-Pacific
Consulting and Appraisal Limited ("APAC").

The balances with the above related companies were
unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed repayment terms.

Compensation of key management personnel of the
Group:

(4)

RYBEBONEEHEEERG0
HEH -AEBENE > ZEY
FEERE &I E R EURUR
WEREEBERAENENEF
HHEERBSE 1LE s RY
AIBEMEE RIS B ERK
R ST o R B 75 FE WSORR TR S 48 1
(CESETR-=PER=:E - VA S N
BB MRATE (TAPAC ) EiTe

LR A B A BR A IR AR 5t
BRI EAB B AR

BASHM :

rEEETEE

2022
20224
RMB000
AREFIT
Short-term employee benefits EHAREER 4,284 4,299
Pension scheme contributions BEEBTEIMHR 358 376
Equity settled share-based payment MR mEBELURD 2 ERD
expense 52 506 374
Total compensation paid to key THTFEEEEAEN
management personnel #rENARER 5,148 5,049
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note EENENE—THFBEHNUH
8 to the financial statements. HARMIEE8

The related party transactions in respect of property
management services and value-added services income
above also constitute connected transactions or continuing
connected transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

BRI E XY EEIE R ILEARF I
ABIRAEE S X Z A ETHRA
E+HAEFRENFERZ K

SR A SERRIS AR AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TS ERRMIEE
38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 38. £ T RS
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RHREHFRZEESHRTANREEN
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: B
31 December 2023 2023%F12831H
Financial assets EMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
F i SR R S
FTER
TREE
RMB'000
ARBETT
Financial assets included in prepayments, FFATE IR S R EHAMEWRIERN
deposits and other receivables TMEE 91,722
Trade receivables B 5 EWEIE 394,732
Due from related companies FEUW AR A BT IE 166,739
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 2 AR EEFABENERE E 26,004
Pledged deposits BIEIRER 7,912
Restricted cash SIRHIIRE 639
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 433,444
1,121,192
Financial liabilities =it
Financial
liabilities
at amortised
cost
FeiE S R S
FTER
=R
RMB'000
ARBETT
Trade payables B S (I =IE 108,534
Financial liabilities included in other payables, FFAHRMEMRIE  BEliZE RESHER
deposits received and accruals HEmEE 178,182
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings FHRIRITREMMER 64,814
Lease Liabilities HESE 58,810
Due to related companies FE(T AR A BIRIA 7,950

418,290
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY (continued)  38.

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

(continued)

31 December 2022

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

@

PATS R AR IMTEE

EMTESE@®
RREPRZFEM TENRBEAEND

20224128318

Financial assets EMEE
Financial
assets at
amortised
cost
B A
STE
ERBEE
RMB'000
AREFIT

Financial assets included in prepayments, EFATEMRUIA g K H A EWERIER

deposits and other receivables TREE 82,053
Trade receivables B N IE 342,083
Due from related companies FE N BE B A Bl 7R 18 200,964
Financial assets at fair value through profitorloss A A BES ARG ERMEE 76,434
Pledged deposits BIEIRFER 3,977
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 292,058
997 569

Financial liabilities B U]
Financial
liabilities at
amortised
cost
STEN
TRMEE
RMB'000
AREBFT
Trade payables B2 EARIA 75,404

Financial liabilities included in other payables, STAEMBEMRIE  BliZE K
deposits received and accruals FEStERNEMEE 178,728
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings sHERITER 118,546
Lease Liabilities HEsE 16,809
Due to related companies FE (I BB A Bl k18 13,146
402,633

R SERIE AR AT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

39. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group's financial
instruments, other than those with carrying amounts that
reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows:

AREFT

Financial assets TRBEE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREEFTAEZN
THREE

39. %Eﬂlﬁﬂ’\]’z}ﬁfgﬁﬁ'z’z}ﬁﬁﬁ

an

FREmMEREAABEGEMEENE
MIEN AEBE/MTANKEER
NREEWMT

Carrying amounts Fair values
fREE AREE
2023 2022 2023 2022
20234 20224 20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARETT PNl \RETT

26,004

76,434 26,004 76,434

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, the fair values of pledged deposits and restricted cash,
amounts due from related companies, trade receivables, financial
assets included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
trade payables, financial liabilities included in other payables,
deposits received and accruals, amounts due to related companies,
interest-bearing bank borrowings and amounts due to a non-
controlling shareholder approximate to their carrying amounts
largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group's corporate finance team headed by the chief finance
officer is responsible for determining the policies and procedures
for the fair value measurement of financial instruments. The
corporate finance team reports directly to the chief financial officer
and the board of directors. At the reporting date, the corporate
finance team analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the
valuation. The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief
financial officer. The valuation process and results are discussed
with the board of directors twice a year for annual financial
reporting.

During the reporting period, there were no transfers of fair value
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or
out of Level 3 for both financial assets and liabilities.
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39.

FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE HIERARCHY OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Fair value hierarchy

39.

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group's financial instruments:

Recurring fair value measurement for

Financial assets at FVTPL

PN RRETHER T
RRBEE

R BE ABIER
ERMEE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

ERITANAABERANEE
[ 4R (&)
ARBEERER

TERAPAKESRIAZAREE
HEER

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2023 using

K203 123 BERAU T RN AREESE

Quoted
pricesin
active
markets
(Level 1)
MiER
T2 RE
(BE—E)
RMB'000
ARBTT

Significant
observable
inputs

Significant
unobservable
inputs
(Level 3)
BEARARE
BAYE
(B=E) Bt
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT ARETR®

(Level 2)
EATHE
AR
(BZRE)
RMB'000
AR¥ETT

26,004 - 26,004

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2022 using

K202 12 B3 BERUTRANAREEHE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable  unobservable
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level3) Total
WEE  EAUBRE EXFTEZE
HIEZRE EUN: G BAHE
(B—E) (€ l)) E=E) w5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREBTT ARBTR ARETT
Recurring fair value measurement for MU TEBETHERES
RpEEHE
Financial assets at FVTPL BAREES ABEN
TRMEE - 76,434 - 76,434
SR TERBARAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RAESERR MG

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance
for the Group's operations. The Group has various other financial
assets and liabilities such as trade and other receivables, trade
and other payables, amounts due to related companies and
amounts due from related companies which arise directly from its
operations.

It is, and has been throughout the year under review, the Group's
policy that no trading in financial instruments shall be undertaken.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial instruments are
interest rate risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group has not
used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes to
keep the Group's exposure to these risks to a minimum. The Group
does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading
purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.

(a) Interestrate risk

The Group's exposure to risk for changes in market interest
rates relates primarily to the Group's interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings set out in note 29. The Group does not
use derivative financial instruments to hedge interest rate
risk, and it obtains all bank borrowings with a fixed rate.

(b) Creditrisk

The Group is exposed to credit risk in relation to its trade
receivables, financial assets included in prepayments,
deposits and other receivables, due from related companies
and cash and bank balances.

The Group expects that there is no significant credit risk
associated with cash and bank balances since they are
substantially deposited at state-owned banks and other
medium or large-sized listed banks in Chinese Mainland.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Creditrisk (continued)

The Group expects that the credit risk associated with trade
receivables is considered to be low, since There are no
significant concentrations of credit risk for trade receivables
as the customer bases of the Group's trade receivables
are widely dispersed. In addition, receivable balances are
monitored on an ongoing basis. Information about the
impairment provision of trade receivables recognised during
the yearis disclosed in notes 23.

Credit risk exposure for due from related companies is
minimised by the management of the Group through
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action
is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group
reviews the recoverable amount of each individual receivable
balance at the end of the year to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In
order to enhance the timeliness of property management
fee and other payments, the Group has undertaken effective
measures aimed at boosting the collections of trade and
retention receivables. Information about the impairment
provision of due from related companies recognised during
the yearis disclosed in notes 37.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40. ARG EIEEERBER @&

(b) EEERR @

M A B EERRIRN E P B IE
BB FILERHRENEER
AL AN G o b5 o B8 GRR B A4S BR
REFERZE AFEREDOE
W IEBEEBERN IR E235
RER -

rEEEEERRRERER  M®
TRERE 18 4817 B Uk [0l AR R 75
A8 T 1 B B 2 B R R B9 15 B B R
fEERMIIN AERMBEFE
BEESERUREG R B
T URAREEEZRONEE
ETBENREGE BRESY
%Eﬁ%?ﬁ’zﬁ@mlﬁﬁ’]&ﬁﬁ{’
FEESRIWAMIER > Ue &
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RAESERR MG

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. BMiBEMEEREEFEREBE @

POLICIES (continued)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EEREE @&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging R RABRERD R
The tables below show the credit quality and the maximum TRBEAEBREERRIIRE
exposure to credit risk based on the Group's credit policy, EBEExE=EERR  RIFR
which is mainly based on past due information unless other REBARBAHBHERGHME
information is available without undue cost or effort, and B FAEFENEBENKRE
year-end staging classification. The amounts presented are RABDE -2 EEATH
gross carrying amounts for financial assets. BEENRALERVBEERESY
K& & R BRAE -
As at 31 December 2023 7120235128318
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12f8A T8 .
BEER PHEHEEHE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F—RE AR FMRE of(yapi hy
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®ETT AEEBTR ARETR ARBTRT ARETR
Trade receivables* B R REhzEr - - - 442,734 462,734
Financial assetsincludedin s ABAFE ek
prepayments, deposits HinEwEEn
and other receivables THEE
- Normal** —EF* 92,751 - - - 92,751
Financial assets atfairvalue AR EE AR
through profit or loss THEE
26,004 = = = 26,004
Due from related companies  FEWEB A BIFUE 3 61,201 - - 160,716 2917
Pledged deposits BHAER 1912 - - - 1912
Restricted Cash ZRHRE 639 - - - 639
Cashand cashequivalents ~ RE&RREEEY 433,444 - - - 433,444
621,951 = = 603,450 1,225,401
202 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. ARG ESIEBEREE @)
POLICIES (continued)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERK @&
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) REEBRERD K @&
As at 31 December 2022 12022412 831H
12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
12181 A 6 HA
EEE8 PHRHEESS
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
FIEE EIEE B kAP e

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARBTR ARETR AREBTRT ARETR

Trade receivables* 8B 5 e Ia - - - 376,286 376,286
Financial assets includedin 5t ATBIRIE &R
prepayments, deposits HiEWTIEN €

and other receivables RMEE
- Normal** —EE** 82,807 - - - 82,807
Financial assets at fair BAABESARD
value through profit or NeHMEE
loss 76,434 - - - 76,434
Due from related R B AR R
companies 55,552 - - 156,336 211,888
Pledged deposits [REiREEE 3,977 - - - 3,977
Cashand cash equivalents ~ HR&RIFEEEY 292,058 - - - 292,058
510,828 - - 532,622 1,043,450
* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified * RN AEBRBECHESEH
approach for impairment, information based on the provision FEW B S8R = > BRI IREEfENS
matrix is disclosed in notes 23 to the financial statements. R B R E M 523 E o
**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments, *x HAFERAHIE EfhEW S ERE
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” MEENESREENEEEER
when they are not past due and there is no information indicating MBS A ERE » B
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk BRIKRBEVBEHERLURZESR
since initial recognition. BEENECERREBEER.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. BMiBEMEEREEFEREBE @

POLICIES (continued)
(c) Liquidity risk (c) FWENEEZRERE
The Group's objective is to maintain a balance between FEENBERRBBEERRIR
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of ThEMMEREFTREFELE R
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings. Cash flows are FEM BN T AERFFE
closely monitored on an ongoing basis. BYBERIBEREB N
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities as AEERREARZ SRR
at the end of the reporting period, based on contractual NHFENSREBENIEER
undiscounted payments, is as follows: mE
Less than 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months Over 1 year Total
BEX  MEALUA 3Z12{8H 1EME st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARBTT AR¥ETR ARET:
31 December 2023 20235128318
Interest-bearing bank and other s EIRIT R EMER
borrowings = 2,703 63,565 188 66,456
Lease liabilities AEEE - 20 19,841 47,781 67,642
Trade payables BREMTIE 108,534 - - - 108,534
Other payables HifetIE 178,182 - - - 178,182
Due to related companies FERAB AR FIE 7,950 - - - 7,950
294,666 2,723 83,406 47,969 428,764
Lessthan 3to
On demand 3 months 12 months QOver 1 year Total
BER 3EAUA 3E12ER TENE 5t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREBTRT ARBTR AR¥TR ARET:
31 December 2022 20225128310
Interest-bearing bank and other st RBTER
borrowings - 3,307 112,446 5,989 121,742
Lease liabilities HEaR - - 8,925 9,499 18,424
Trade payables BRENE 75,404 - - - 75,404
Other payables HtnfE e 178,728 - - - 178,728
Due to related companies e ABTIE 13,146 - - - 13,146
267,278 3307 121371 15,488 407 4t
204 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. MHEREMEEBERBE @
POLICIES (continued)
(d) Capital management (d) BEXEE
The primary objectives of the Group's capital management AEBBEAEENFTEZEERS
are to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going REAEEFELCE L ETFER
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to HNEALEENAE UZFHZE
support its business and maximise shareholders' value. Bl EREEERAI
The Group manages its capital structure and makes FEEGRBEER INESEECE
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. BRAERHERRE REFTH
To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may BAEEARE AEEHFTHIK
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to FFRENKE - REEAREDR
shareholders orissue new shares. WEITHRIEL AR
The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is rEBRAEAEGER RMEFRF
net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Group BERRUE A RERBERZE )
includes, within net debt, interest-bearing bank and other REEER c REBNEFHFEE
borrowings, amounts due to related companies and lease FFASERIRIT R EMMER S B
liabilities, less cash and cash equivalents. Capital represents AR MIEREESERRES
equity attributable to owners of the parent. EREEBY BEARIERABHE
B ARG # o
The gearing ratios as at the end of the reporting periods were RREPRNEREERAT :
as follows:
2023 2022
20234 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®BTT AREBFT
Interest-bearing bank and other st RIRTT R EMER
borrowings 64,814 118,546
Due to related companies FETRAR A B FIE 7,950 13,146
Lease liabilities HEsE 58,811 16,809
Less: Cash and cash equivalents L IRERIREEBY (433,444) (292,058)
Net debt &7 38 (301,869) (143,557)
Equity attributable to owners of ISYNSIEZ P DN Y 4
the parent 443,033 324,687
Gearing ratio BEABEX N/A RiEFH N/A 35 A
EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 41. FJREHAEFIE

On 22 February 2024, having considered the business, financial and
cashflow position of the Group, the Board resolved the declaration
a special dividend of HK$0.124 per ordinary share of the Company.

202428228 EEAAEERNE
B MBRREEREBNR N EFERE
EMKEFIRE  SREBER0.124
BTt

SR A SERRIS AR AR
2023FEERS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

TS ERRMIEE
42 STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 42. TATIHAFERAR
COMPANY
Information about the statement of financial position of the KRABRBERARNTBRRERER
Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows: wmr:
2023 2022
20235 20224
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARHEFIT
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Cash and cash equivalents REMRREFEY 68 2,548
Due from related parties e BB 75 1B 57,320 55,024
Total current assets MENEEMRE 57,388 57,572
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RBARNKEE 4,724 3,497
Total non-current assets JEREBEERE 4,724 3,497
CURRENT LIABILITIES REAR
Due to related parties e BE R 5 1B 15,375 7,990
Other payables, deposits received and HMMENRIE - BREER
accruals FESTE R 3,778 12,855
Total current liabilities BB EERE 19,153 20,845
NET CURRENT ASSETS MENEEFE 38,235 36,727
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERERRBAER
LIABILITIES 42,959 40,224
NET ASSETS BEFE 42,959 40,224
EQUITY HExE
Equity attributable to owners of BATHEA ARGED
the parent
Share capital f& s 2,387 2,387
Reserves i 40,572 37,837
TOTAL EQUITY HEmiage 42,959 40,224

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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43.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BAESERR MG

42. RBRBRAR @

COMPANY (continued)
Note: FfsE -
Exchange
Share Share fluctuation Other Accumulated Total
capital premium reserve reserve losses equity
ER
kE  REE kBRE  HttREe  RHER L3
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETH
(note 30)
(GEZ))
Balance at 1 January 2022 $202241 81 BBV 2387 74,969 (7,605) 2,959 (6798) 65912
Loss for the year FREE - - - - (181) (181)
Exchange differences ontranslation ~ BHERER - - 1,294 - - 1,294
Total comprehensive income FREENGRE
forthe year - - 1,294 - (181) 1,113
Final 2021 dividend declared BERKENNERE - (27,339) - - - (27,339)
Equity-settled share-based payment ~ WERAEELRIR A
BERZ5 - - - 538 - 538
At31 December 2022 and 120225128318 K
1 January 2023 202351818 2,367 47,630 (6,311) 3,497 (6979) 40,224
Profit for the year FRiEA] - - - - 536 536
Exchange differences ontranslation ~ HHEREERE - - 9 - - 9
Total comprehensive income FREERGHAE
for the year - - 971 - 536 1,507
Equity-settled share-based payment  LUER#E LR AR
(note 31) NENGEX - - - 1,228 - 1,228
At31 December 2023 $2023%128318 2,367 47,630 (5,340) 4,725 (6463) 42,959

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 27 March 2024.

43. HUEMEHRER

MBMEREN2024F3827T0EESRE
HOER IR RT3 o

R ETERIBARAR
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES
RERENYIZE

Particulars of the properties of the Group held for investment purposes as at 31 December 2023 are as follows:

12023128310 ARBEFFRENYESFBNT ¢

No. Location Land lease term Usage
R UE T uhFRHA A&
1. 1-2/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 1, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Residential
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 19 March 2057 E
R A & B 288 1 552508 RS B 3R i1 - 2 /8 201743820 E
F2057F3819H
2. 2-2/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 2, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Residential
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* \ 19 March 2057 e
AR OREERe 15258 A 5 12 -2/8 2017438208
F2057F3H819H
3. 5-5/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 5, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Commercial
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 19 March 2057 [SES
R Rs & M 5 288 1 8525 8BS & SR 5 -5/ 20174F33208
F2057F3819H
4. 1-5/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 1, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Commercial
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* ‘ 19 March 2057 [EES
AR s LB M 5 2881952508 1L 1R 4630 461 - 5 B 20174E35208#E
F2057F3819H
5. 2-5/F, Building 25 Sports Facility 2, No. 81 Baima Road, From 20 March 2017 to Commercial
Pukou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 19 March 2057 [EES
R s & 1 5 288 1 82518 S0 1L IR 5448 12 -5 /8 201738208
F2057F3819H
6. LG1-2/F and Room 103, Building 4, Qianhuaxi Garden, From 31 August 2016 to Residential
No. 10 Qingshuiting Road East, Moling Sub-district, 29 July 2080 E
Jiangning District, Nan %ng the PRC* 201658@31 it
ﬁ??ﬁ,lmmﬂ*&mmk EREZ105E TR 0408 220805 75298
13E-8—E -8°E
7. Room 2101, Building 2, No. 268 Jigingmen Main Street, From 21 April 2020 to Commercial
Gulou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 30 June 2058 [EES
R S B B Pk 268582182101 = 202044 F21 B2
F2058F6H30H
8. Room 2102, Building 2, No. 268 Jigingmen Main Street, From 21 April 2020 to Commercial
Gulou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 30 June 2058 EES
B B 8 B P 2688202102 20204 4H21 B2
F20585F6H30H
9. 2 car parking spaces in the basement of No. 268 Jigingmen  From 21 April 2020 to Commercial
Main Street, Gulou District, Nanjing, the PRC* 30 June 2058 [EES
B g @ B P A 12685 iHJ'FFE%NIEﬁ 20204821 HIE
F205856830H
10. Room 103, Building 3, No.3 Shishi Road, Qixia District, From 1 July 2022 to 9 July 2043 Commercial
Nanjing, the PRC* 202FF7THTHEESE [EES
ﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁEEéﬁmEﬁﬁEy@mi 2043F7H9H
11. Room 106, Building 3, No.3 Shishi Road, Qixia District, From 1 July 2022 to 9 July 2043 Commercial
Nanjing, the PRC* 202257 HEEE [SES
BRI & A I ER 393081 06% 2043F7H9H
208 Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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PROPERTIES HELD FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES

FERENYE

No. Location Land lease term Usage

wmiE (UE T uhFAHA RE&E

12. Room 501, No. 289 Jiang Northeast Road, Gulou District, From 1 January 2022 to Commercial
Nanjing, the PRC* 18 April 2049 (HES
MR E& TRIEEK28958501E 2022F1A1HEE

2049F 48188

13. 220 car parking spaces in the basement of From July 2003 to July 2073 Residential
Zhongshan Jingdian Lower Area, Qixia District, 2003F7HEE20735F78 F=E
Nanjing, JLa_ngsu Province, the PRC* )
I EmREERELRHE TR T220EE L

14. 148 car parking spaces in the basement of From July 2003 to July 2073 Residential
Jinma Q+ Community, Qixia District, Nanjing, 2003 7HEE2073F7A e
Jiangsu Province, the PRC* )
ABEERTEEERZEQHLEM T 148E %

15. 227 car parking spaces in the negative second floor of From August 2014 to Residential
the basement of Nanxigu Garden, Moling Sub-district, August 2084 (=
Jiangning District, Nanjing, Jiangsu Province, the PRC*  20145F8 3 {22 208448 H
IFFEm R LB RREEEEESTEEME
B TE227EE AL

16. Yuegui Garden Independent Commercial Complex, From September 2022 to Commercial
No. 15 Yaoxin Avenue, Qixia District, Nanjing, September 2032 [EES
Jiangsu Province, the PRC* 202249 B {2 E 2032498
IHamRhEEREMABISAEE
B EEGRER

17. 33 car parking spaces in the negative first floor of From July 2018 to July 2088 Residential
the basement of Tianjing Fudi, Xihu District, 201857 B EE 2088478 FE
Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province, the PRC*
HTE NN T P & R AR ER/ & TRy
8—[E33E=E N

18. Room 106, Unit 176, Building 19, Shangjincheng, From April 2006 to April 2046 ~ Commercial
Binhu District, Wuxi City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC* 2006F 4P EZE20465F 47 EES
BB EHTEAERIRIIISREI 768 ITI06E

19. 50 car parking spaces in the basement of Shangjincheng, From April 2006 to April 2076~ Residential
Binhu District, Wuxi City, Jiar]?su Province, the PRC* 2006F 4B f2E20765F 48 e
LR 85 OB & 5] SR 10 T 50E B 1

SR TERBARAT
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DEFINITIONS

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings
when used herein:

RAEFHER BFXESBEN TIEERRERREBUT RS

"AGM" means the annual general meeting to be held by the Company on Tuesday, 18 June, 2024
MRERBEFERE] 5 RABRI2024F68180 (BID) BT 2RRBFARE
“Articles” or means the articles of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

"Articles of Association”
MR ST =T24MA) $5 AT BB ETR AN CRFEST)

“Audit Committee"” means the audit committee under the Board

EBZEE8) & EEg TENEZEZEY

“Board"” means the board of Directors

EEg) & 5T

“Board Committees” means collectively the Audit Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee, and the "Board Committee” means any of them

E£%&B88) 5 BEZZEE REEZEGAFNEZEGNGRBE MIEEEZEG I IEEREN—EZE

(553}
=

“Board Diversity Policy”  means the board diversity policy as adopted by the Company
EEEMEZTIEEE 15 KABIFFRMNEEERE L TEBER

“CG Code” means the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules
Mg/ 5 EHRAINERCIFr 8 EEEATR]
“China" or "PRC" means the People's Republic of China, which for the sole purpose of this annual report, shall

exclude Hong Kong, the Macau Special Administrative Region of the People's Republic of
China and Taiwan

MR 5 hEARAME ERAFRMS > FEEEE PEARAEMERPIFHIITHE K&
“Company” means Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an

exempted company with limited liability on 3 April 2019 and the Shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

NSl 5 IRMEERBERAS > —ER2019F4A3HEHSFSEMMULNERRE R
8 ERMIEA A ERLET

“Director(s)" means the director(s) of the Company
&%) 5 RREESR
“Dividend Policy" means the dividend policy as adopted by the Company
Mg BER) 15 A B PRI IR S BUER
"GFA" means gross floor area
MEREE) 5 BRREEE
“Group” or"Yincheng Life means the Company and its subsidiaries
Service"
M50 15 AT REW B AT
MR AL 2 % AR 5

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
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“Hong Kong"
M54

“Hong Kong dollars”,
"HKD" or "HKS$"
BT

means

=
=]

means

5

“Inside Information Policy” means

MR B EER]

“Listing”
rE)

“Listing Date"
rEmHE
“Listing Rules"

M Em#RA
“Memorandum” or

"Memorandum of
Association”

NN
TAR 4 S5 42 4D

"Model Code"
MEAEFA)

"Nomination Committee'
HERZEH)

“Nomination Policy”
MEREER
"Prospectus”

MERER)

"Remuneration
Committee”

FNEEE)

"RMB"
AT

i

5

means

=
B

means

means

=
=]

means

=
B

means

=
=]

means

means
5

“Securities Dealing Code” means

M55 TR

5

DEFINITIONS
BE

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
hEARANBEEBRFHTHE

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
BREEEBET

the internal policy and procedures in relation to the handling of inside information as
adopted by the Company
KRB ERIENRHENA BB ERREF

the listing of the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
BN BRSSP EAR £ 7B

the date on which dealings in the Shares on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange first
commence, being 6 November 2019

ROCBERPBRZFAEREEZH B12019511568

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

X PREE 25 L RA EARHEST s R U E M5 B

the memorandum of association of the Company (as amended from time to time)

RABVEBERRME (EFEESD)

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules
ETARBIMERCIFA & LB ITAERETE S HRETH

the nomination committee under the Board

EFETENREREZES

the nomination policy as adopted by the Company

AT PRERABITR B R

the prospectus of the Company dated 25 October 2019
KA HEAA2019F10825BARKRERR

the remuneration committee under the Board
EEENENFMEES

Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
PEEEEBARE

the code for dealing in securities of the Company by the Directors as adopted by the
Company
AT FRMNEZTEEARBEFHTR

SRINAEERIEAIRAE 211
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DEFINITIONS

"SFQ"
M58 55 R R G R

"Shareholder(s)"
MG 2R

"Share(s)"

Rl

“Share Option Scheme"
EE A st &)

“sq.m.”

M 75K

“Stock Exchange”
TH 3P )

"Yincheng Group”
MR

"Yincheng International”

MR 390 B %

"Yincheng International
Holding Group”
MR 390 B PR 4 AR S

"Yincheng Property
Services"

MR AR
"Yincheng Real Estate”
MER 50 7 |

"Yincheng Real Estate

Group”

M8 50 3t E B2 [

Note:

In this annual report, English names of the PRC entities marked "*" are translations
of their Chinese names for identification purpose only. If there is any inconsistency
between the Chinese names and their English translations, the Chinese names shall

prevail.

Yincheng Life Service CO., Ltd.
Annual Report 2023

means

means
B

means

means

=
=

means

=
B

means

=
=

means

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong), as
amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time

EBEABNER/FREAERD EFRET MRS E M S BN

holder(s) of the Share(s)
EAREST=IN

ordinary share(s) with nominal value of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of the
Company, which are traded in Hong Kong dollars and listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange

FABREFEREEBITHEBER BT Z RICBAr R £

a share option scheme of the Company with terms complying with Chapter 17 of the
Listing Rules which was conditionally approved and adopted by the then shareholders of
the Company on 25 January 2021

FABBBIRES S EFUET EHRAE17E WER2021F1825HE AR AT
= 5 I SR A IR A HE A R B

square metre

FHK

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
BERMERZMERAR

Yincheng International Holding Group and Yincheng Real Estate Group

SR 9950 B R 42 e e I e SRl 31 E £ [

Yincheng International Holding Co., Ltd., a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands
as an exempted company with limited liability on 8 January 2018 and the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 1902)
IRMEIRER AR AR —RIK2018F1 B8EEHSHEEMMUNER RERA
&) HRRMICEAIFr AR £ (BRMAASE 1 1902)

Yincheng International and its subsidiaries
IR R M B AR

Nanjing Yincheng Property Services Co., Ltd.*, a company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC with limited liability and an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company
PSR ERB AR AR —HREBEPEIEREEMR LB RAE  HELEHE
REENB AR

Yincheng Real Estate Group Co., Ltd.*, a joint stock company incorporated under the laws
of the PRC with limited liability
IR EEBRNDABRAR —BRETENEREMMR LR ERAT

Yincheng Real Estate and its subsidiaries

R E R EF B A S
B -
RAFHR ZE M I NPEEREELBAETATE

BURR > (AR - WP R B A R 8 B E I
%o B RIEHE
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YINCHENG LIFE SERVICE CO., LTD.

Paper | Supporting responsible forestry
MR | X3 ARENMRE
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